
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact  on 
01733 452447 as soon as possible. 
 

 

AB    
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2013, 1.00 PM 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
Contact – Alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 452447 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

3 – 6 

COMMISSIONING ISSUES 
 
4. Health Watch  
 (a) Hydrotherapy in delivering outcomes from the HWB Board’s 

Strategy 2012-15 
7 – 76 

  Evaluation and proposal as to way forward – presented by 
Healthwatch and Chas Ryan, Public Health 
 

 

5. NHS England / Local Board  
 (a) Metastatic Liver Resection Service Reconfiguration 

Information to follow 
 

 

 (b) Primary Care Strategy 
Information to follow 
 

 

6. Clinical / Local Commissioning Groups  
 (a) Local Area Team (LAT) agreement s256 transfer 77 - 100 
  The Board is asked to comment on the agreement. 

 
 

 (b) Commissioning Intentions  
  Discussion item – information to follow. 

 
 

7. Public Health  
 (a) Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 101 – 106 
  The Board is asked to agree the report. 

 
 

8. Adult Social Care  
 (a) Winterbourn View Report 107 – 126 
  The Board is asked to comment on the report.  

Public Document Pack



 
 (b) Learning Disabilities 127 - 138 
  The Board is asked to name a lead member for learning disabilities, 

and support the CCG signing up to Mencap’s care charter. 
 

 

INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 
 
9. Board Development  
 (a) Peer Challenge 139 – 156 
  The Board is asked to review the Peer Challenge guidance 

document and discuss actions required to get ourselves ready for a 
review in the Spring. 
 

 

 (b) Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Delivery Plan 157 – 174 
  The Board is asked to discuss the delivery plan and 

recommendations. 
 

 

10. Public Health England's Longer Life Toolkit 
 

175 – 182 

 Information only. 
 

 

11. Joint Commissioning - Child Health Update 
 

183 – 190 

 Information only. 
 

 

12. Child Health Outcomes 
 

191 – 200 

 Information only. 
 

 

13. Health and Wellbeing Board Event 
 

201 – 202 

 Information only. 
 

 

14. Schedule of Future Meetings and Draft Agenda Programme 
 

203 – 204 

 To note the dates and agree future agenda items for the Board.  To include 
frequency of reporting from other Boards, where appropriate, including Local 
Safeguarding Boards, Children’s and Adults Commissioning Boards, LCG 
Commissioning Board.  Also to consider how we will monitor progress 
against the Health and Wellbeing strategy.  

 

 
 
 

Board Members: 

Cllr M Cereste (chairman), Cllr W Fitzgerald (vice chairman), Cllr J Holdich, Cllr S Scott, Cllr I 
Walsh, Gillian Beasley, Louise Ravenscroft (Healthwatch), Dr M Caskey, Dr R Withers, Dr P Van 
den Bent, Jana Burton; Cathy Mitchell; Sue Mitchell; Andrew Reed; Andy Vowles; Sue Westcott. 

Substitutes: Dr Neil Sanders and Dr Harshad Mistry 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Alex Daynes on telephone (01733) 
452447 or by email alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



���
�

��������	
�����������	
������������������������	�����
��������������	
�������������������
�����
�������

�
�������������	
�� ��	����������������
�������������
�����	������������	��

��	������ ��	� ������� �� ����	�
� ������� ��� �����
�	�� ������� �	��
 	�!����
"�
��	��#��
	���$���
�!��%����
����&���
�����������������
������
�������%����
���������������
�������
����'��
�

���$���
�!��%����
�����������	(�����!����������
%��)�������'�
������#������	��������������	�	*�+��,�
%������������"����
�����*����
"�������������	�	*�+��,�
%�������������
�"����
�����*����
"�������������	�	*�+��,�
+��	�����"����
�����*���-.�������������
�'�
���
��
�"� ��
������� �������*������� /� ��
�����*�� ���	����� �������	�	*�
+��,��
&	���0�)�����.����	*��	�����
�&	*���������1����
���������**�	����������	���������
�����*�����
	�����,�
�

&����	�&

�	��	����� &��$�%�"	������	���+!��	�	���2������������
3�����0"�������������*������!�����
'�	���2*��4'�����	��&����
�	
�%����
�������
��	������ -��	��'����������	�
�������� ��� ����	�
"� �����	�� ����
"�
�	�������������
��
�

����� ������������������������ �������
�

56�&,�*���������
&���	���

&,�*���� ��� ����	��� 0���� �����!��� ���� %�!��� '������� ��	������
7�
8*������� ��	������ ��

�� %�� 3�	� )�**�� %�� ����� !�	� ��	� #�	
� �	��
)�������'�
�6�
�

�

96�%������
�	����
-	
����
�

.	��0���������!��6� �
�

:6���	�
�����
���
���!�������
�	*��

1�����	�
�����
������
�	*������	�9;�������9<5:�0�����,,�!��������

�����	��������
�������6�
�

�

=6�)�*��
�����
-	
����
���	��
�������	���
�

1��� #���� �����!��� �� ��,�
� ���0�	*� *����	��� ���� 
��� �����
+!��	��	
�&�����
�	��	���	�	*�*!��	�	����	���	�
�
�
�	����������
��� ����
�� �	�� '������	*� #����6� � �������� 0���� ��!����� �� 
���
��>������	
�
���,��
������*��
������	
����
�����
��
�0�����,,�"�0��	�
�	���
�	*�
�������	������
���#���6�
�
�������� �	���� 
��� ��*���
�	�� �	�� ��>������	
�� �	���	�	*�
)�*��
���	*�-	
����
���	�������	*��"�
�����
"���	���(���������	���
6�
�
)�*��
�����-	
����
������0�������,�!����������,��
�	6�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

Public Document Pack

3



;6�#����
���������,�

1����������	���!�����
���#���������	*���
�
�����
"���	���(������	�
�
�������,�
������	��
��������
�	������,	������
"���������������
�6��-
�
0�����>���
��� 
��
�
���#���(�� 
�������������	���������	����
����0�
��	������'������ ��� ����	�
�������� ��� ����	�
"� �����	�� ����
"�
�	�������������
���
��������������������
���#���6�
�
1���#�����������
��
�
���1�������)�����	���������������	����
�
���0� 
��� ����	�
� ������� ��� ����	�
"� �����	�� ����
"� �	�� �������
����
��
��������������������6�
�
1���� 0���� ��� ������	���� 
� 
��� ����� ��	���� �� ��
�����*�� ��
"�
��	����
��,,�!�6�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
3��

?6�.����	*��	��@�
�����1����

1���#���� �����!����	����� �,��
��	� 
���0����� 
��� ����� ����� 
���6��
7�!����"����������������*����
�

56� ��,�
���1���
���	�	����4���,�
���������
����$,��
����"�
����	��
��
���0���A�

96� ��)������,��*	����	�����0�
��+������
���!������������
�����	�
���"A�

:6� ������"�������
��
�*"�����*�	���������	���� 
����	������	������
���	��$
�	��������
����0���0�
������,��
	������>�����A�

=6�  �*�	
�����*�	�"��������&�����	
��	������*�	�"�,������	���
	
����
�	*��
�	�����A��	��

;6� ��!�����	�������!��������,�������������!����
�����������	������

���0������*�	���
0�����������!����.�0�����	���������*��6�

�
7��
�����	����
�	�,�!������	����,	���
�>���
�	���	��������
�

•� ��!����� ����� 
����� ��"� 	���� 
� ����	�
�� 0��� 
� �	����� ��
����!�	
�������"�������
��
�*"A�

•� 1��������1����0����0�������������0�
��-�1�,�!���	A�

•� -
�0����$,��
���
��
�
�����0��������	�
���	
�����	������������

����
��
�*"����
���������
���A�

•� ���
� �������� 	���� 
� �!�� ,�
��	
�� �
� �� ��,�
��� �	�� �	
�
������"�����A�

•� ���������*	���������"�������
��
�*����0����������6�
�
����	����.����	*��	��
�0��������"�0�
����+���	��,��
	����*�	�����

���!��,�������"�������
��
�*"6��1����'#�#����
������,
��,,�������
��,�*������	�
��������6�
�

�

B6����	�����@������
�������	�	*�
+��,��

���� %���
���+����,��
���
�
1��� #���� �����!��� �� ��,�
� ���� 
��� ���	����� �������	�	*� +��,�
���+�� 	� �
�� ����
� ,��,��
��6� � -	,�
� ���� 
���#���� 0��� ��>���
��� �	�
�����
���!��,��	����	������
���,��,��
��6�
�
����	
���	�����,	����
�>���
�	���	��������
�

•� )�,����	
�
�!��� ���� 
��� ��
��	
� ���
���,�
�	� +��,� 0����
�	��������	�
�����
��	
�)�����	���+��,A�

•� -	�����	�������
�0�
����	�
���,��,��
���
�����������������
���A��

•� 1��� ������"� ����� �
��
�*"� ��!��0� ����� ��� �	������� �	� 
���
�����	
A�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���

4



7��
��������	
������#�������������	��������
�

•� ���
� �	����� .��� �	*��	�� ����� 
���� �	�� 
��� ��+� 0����

*�
����	�
�����!�������
��
�*���6�

�

���� 2�������,��(����*������
�
1���#���������!����� ��,�
��,��
�	*� �
�	� 
���,�*��������	*�������"�

�����+�
0����� 
���,�������	
���2�������,��(�����!������ 
�����!���

��� �
����� ��!��,��� �"� 
��� ��+@����� ���	����� �������	�	*�
+��,�����+���	��	C�	�
�	�0�
��
���������"�
������
	���6�
�
7��
��������	
������#�������������	��������
�

•� ��,�
���1���
��	,�
�	���������
����0��A�
D%�������"�����!��E�

•� 2�����,�,��(������������0��������	�
"���������!��	
������	��
,������4�	
�C��
����!����,�!�������
����������������������6�

�

��

���� �������	(�� ���!����� �� �������*������� ����	�
"� ���!�����
� 1��	��
�	�@��������*���	����
�����*��7�	��
�	�1���
�
�
1���#���������!�������,�
����0�	*���0����,�	�
���9<
������"�9<5:�
�

�	���� �"� ����
��� ����� &�
���
"�� &���� 1���� �	�� ������� ����
��
�������	���� 
� �$,���� ,
�	�� ��� 
��� ��
���� �������	�	*� ��
�������	(�����!�����0�
��	�
�����+�*�*��,��������	������6��
�
����	
���	�����,	����
�>���
�	���	��������
�

•� ��	"�,
�	��,�
4&,����9<5=�0�������	*��	�������A�

•� ��	����,��������	�	*�0���,��������6�
�

�

F6������������
�� ���� ���������
�����.�����&�������	
�
�
1���#���������!�������,�
� 
��,��
�� �
�	� �
���
�
�
�"����,	������
"� 
�
���	
��	��	��,������������������
�����.�����&�������	
���.&�6��
�
����	
���	�����,	����
�>���
�	���	��������
�

•� ��	�������>������	
�����,����������0���������������A�

•� 1��������	
�,�!���	�0���������!��0��A�

•� �	
���
�� �	�� 0��� �	���
��� �
� ,���������� 0���� ���� ���
��!��0��6�

�
7��
��������	
������#�������������	��������
�

•�  �*�	
����������������	!�!����	�
�����!��0A�

•� ������ ��� 
� �$,�	�� �����	*� 	� �	�� ���� �� 
��� �	
��	�
� ���
��,��
�,������,
�	�A�

•� -�,�!���-�1�,
�	��,�!���	������������!��0���
6�
�

�

G6�����
�"�������
��*������<4;�
H�������)�*�	���
��C��
��

�

1����������� �� 
��� #���� �����!��� �	� !��!��0� �� 
��� ,�C��
6� � 7�	���
��,�
�
����,����	
���
�
���#�����	���	���"�9<9=6�

�

5



5<6�2�
���������
#����
%�!��,��	
�
�����	��

1���#���� �����!����� ��,�
� ���������	*� 
���,�������	���
�������
����	
� #���� ��!��,��	
� �����	�� �	�� ��*�
� 
��� #���(�� !��0�� 	�
,
�	��������
����#������!��,��	
6���
�
1��� #���� ��>���
��� 
��
� ���� �	����
�	� 0��� ,�!����� ���
� 
���
�����	���	����
����,����
�����	������
���

���,��	��
��0��6�
�

�
�
�
�

���

556������������
7�
�������
�	*��
�	��%���
�&*�	���
��*������

1���#���������!����	���	��������
����*�	���,��	������
�������
�	*��
�	��0�����!�����
��
�
������������������
�	*����
���"����������������
������	������
������
�	*��0������������	�1������"������54:,��
�
��

����	�����+���

�	��	��6�
�

�
�
&%�

�
�

��������� !"#�$��
�%��&����

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

��'����(������ ����	��� �)�*%��� �)�*%���

#�������������,� �����
� ������	��
�	� 
� ����� ��	���� 
� ���	�� 
���
���������,���
���#���6�
�

3���
��0"���

5<����"�

%���
���+�
���,��
���

�	������ ,
�	�� 
� �	������ ����
�0�
��� �	� 
���
,��,��
��6�

��
�"�
��
������

2	*�	*�

2�
���������
#����%�!��,��	
�
�����	��

��!����*���
�����!������	����
�	����
�
��������	��
�	����
����,����
���� 
��	����� 
���#���� 
���

���,��	�
�
��0��6�

����
��
������

.�$
�
���
�	*�

�����������7�
����
���
�	*���	��%���
�
&*�	�����*������

&��	����������������
�	*��
�1������"��54:,�6� &��$�
%�"	���

&�&��

6



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4(a) 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Angela Burrows, Chief Operating Officer, Healthwatch Tel.  

 

ST GEORGES HYDROTHERAPY POOL USER EVALUATION REPORT 2013 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Healthwatch Peterborough  Deadline date: N/A 

 
1. Note the contents of the evaluation report; 
2. Consider future provision of the service as a means to improve health and wellbeing of 

residents. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following a request from the Healthwatch Peterborough 
HWB Board Representative.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

a) Provide a summary version of a comprehensive report compiled for clinicians for 
members to review the outcomes and impact of the aquatic therapy service for local 
residents. 

b) Review how aquatic therapies provide measurable outcomes and translate in to a 
service that reflects the PCC Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-15 including: 

• Deliver the best possible health and well being outcomes, including promoting 
equality  

• Provide the best possible health and social care provision 
 
c) Provide the Board with detailed information and review of recommendations in light of the 

resent decisions to review the hydrotherapy services.  
 

2.2 This report is for Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No.  2.2 To actively 
promote partnership working across health and social care in order to further improve 
health and wellbeing of residents. 

 
  
3. MAIN BODY OF REPORT  
 
 Overview: 
3.1 The report aims to provide a comprehensive data and patient/carer evaluation of aquatic 

therapies (hydrotherapy) based on research carried out at St George’s Community 
Hydrotherapy Pool where results demonstrated it as a method to improve the lives, health 
and wellbeing of users and carers. 

 
3.2 St George’s hydrotherapy pool is a popular, in-demand and well supported provision that 

improves the lives, health and wellbeing for users and carers. It is a preventative provision 
as well as a valuable means of recovery – delivered directly in line with the key aims and 
objectives of the strategy.  

 

7



3.3 Hydrotherapy has the rare advantage of being able to deliver benefits to all of Peterborough 
City Council’s public health, education and social care services - contributing to the 
improvement - direct use of integrated health and social care solutions.  

 
3.4 Hydrotherapy shows a greater delivery of innovative, forward thinking and proactive – not 

reactive – provision.  
 
Pages 37-42 Peterborough City Council Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2012-15                                                                                       
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1  As far as Healthwatch Peterborough is aware - this is the only comprehensive report  
 currently available reviewing this service locally. 
 
4.2 Further consultations/reviews would be welcomed. 
  
 
5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1 That the Board is fully aware of the provision and the service that currently being provided. 

 
5.2 That the Board makes a fully informed choice in regards the future of this provision. 

 
5.3 That further public consultations are undertaken as part of any future changes to this 

service. 
 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 To highlight the improvements this service has been providing for local residents. To 

maintain such a service to continue to provide a real and evidence based provision for local 
people.  

 
7.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

N/A. 
 
8.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

N/A. 
 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 

Information) Act 1985) 
N/A. 

 

8



 
 

 

  

2013 

SAM RING 

THE JOHN LEWIS                                                                          

GOLDEN JUBILEE TRUST 

 

St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User 
Evaluation 

9



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

1 
 

 

  

10



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

2 
 

 

    

                                   CONTENTS                           page 

Introduction 3 

         a .Overview by Mike Maynard Grad Dip phys MCSP MSOM HT                 

         b. Golden Jubilee background                  

What is hydrotherapy?                                                                                 6 

St. George’s hydrotherapy pool                                                                7 

Aim of the study                                                                                        9 

a. Why use self reported experience as a measure of outcomes            

b. What was the methodology used                                                    

c. index of data collected                                                                   

Family Voice telephone survey results                                                    11 

St. George’s evaluation survey                                                               13 

          a. Hydrotherapy existing user evaluation summary                                       

          b. Level of improvement graphs                                                                

          c. summary conclusion                                                                                    

          d. conditions listed from evaluation form                                                   

Self referring users                                                                                         24 

a. EQ-5D-L results                                                                                                                                                                       

b. EQ VAS results                                                                          

c. MYMOP                                                                                

Case studies, stories and feedback                                                                           29 

  

LINk pathfinder Healthwatch Peterborough                                                                  32 

               a. What is commissioning?                                               

Commissioning 34 

               a. EQ-ED-L and VAS   results                                                                                                                                                  

 b. MYMOP results                                                                   

Peterborough City Council Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2012-15                                                                                       37 

Working together                                                                                      42 

Users by PCC ward (area)                                                                 43 

Final summary   44 

Appendix  (including updated data)     46 

Acknowledgements      64 

11



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

3 
 

 

Introduction 

 

In 2008 I had an accident; I suffered lower back and hip problems and had 

to undergo a hip operation the same year. At my GP surgery I came across 

a leaflet about St George’s hydrotherapy pool. Having tried a few sessions 

of land-based physiotherapy, I was keen to 

try anything extra to get myself mobile and 

self sufficient.  The effect of using the pool 

was so great; I became a regular user, and 

over the months found hydrotherapy to be of 

immense benefit. 

In 2012 I approached my employers –John 

Lewis – to request their support to start a 

project to research the hydrotherapy pool 

during a trial period of commissioning. 

The physiotherapist at St George’s and I 

discussed various methods of data 

collecting, and decided on MYMOP and EQ-

5D-L. These are recognised by health 

professionals who are able to analyse and 

evaluate the data. MYMOP and EQ-5D-L are tried and tested questionnaires 

that give a holistic picture of the patient. Numerous studies show their 

specificity and reliability.  

Unfortunately, due to various reasons, commissioning was delayed until 

September. The delay meant adapting the work plan for collecting data. I 

decided to use the current users and new users and gathered the feedback 

from these groups, until the commissioning started.  

This paper aims to provide a comprehensive data and patient/carer 

evaluation of aquatic therapies (hydrotherapy). Based on research carried 

out at St George’s Community Hydrotherapy Pool where results 

demonstrated it as a method to improve the lives, health and wellbeing of 

users and carers. 

Sam Ring 

March 2013 

 

 

12



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

4 
 

 

Mr Mike Maynard, Grad Dip Phys MCSP MSOM HT1
 describes                 

hydrotherapy: 

                                  
                                Roman Spa                                                             St George’s community pool 

“Aquatic physiotherapy, despite perhaps being the most ancient therapy, is also a 

contemporary therapy for the modern world. A five year plan published by the Government 

encompassing the period 2010-2015 emphasises the need for a more preventative, people-

centred and productive National Health Service (Department of Health 2009). Modern 

aquatic physiotherapy involves people who otherwise are likely to be inactive or not 

regularly involved in exercise (Jackson et al 2004), is suitable for all (Epps 2009), focuses 

on the individual (HyDAT team (2009) and can be exceptionally cost effective (Maynard 

2003). Thus aquatic physiotherapy can be argued to be extremely relevant to the future 

delivery of an efficient and effective health care service modern aquatic physiotherapy can 

be defined as:  

 “A physiotherapy programme utilising the properties of water, designed by a suitably 

qualified physiotherapist. The programme should be specific for an individual to maximise 

function, which can be physical, physiological, or psychosocial. Treatments should be 

carried out by appropriately trained personnel, ideally in a purpose built, and heated 

Aquatic Physiotherapy pool (Aquatic Therapy Association of Chartered Physiotherapists 

(ATACP) 2009)” 

Thus in contemporary health care provision aquatic physiotherapy should form an integral 

part of a rehabilitation programme and more broadly be considered as a part of the patient 

pathway. It may be used as the only form of treatment being offered at that time, or may 

form part an overall treatment plan, designed to be complementary to other aspects of a 

person’s planned treatment programme. 

Working in water at a temperature of around 34 degrees C enables smooth movements in 

an environment that aids relaxation and pain relief. The buoyancy of the water offers 

weight relief for painful joints or muscles (e.g. at chest depth only 30% of normal weight is 

being taken through the legs (Harrison 1983))  

Balance and control work can also be carried out in an environment that allows challenging 

work to be carried out in greater safety than on land, while the properties of water allow 

very effective mobility strengthening and cardiovascular work to be undertaken especially 

by those recovering from serious injury, after surgery, or long term illnesses 

Mike Maynard is also Editor of the Journal of the Aquatic therapy association of Chartered 
physiotherapists 

                                                             
1 http://www.welbeing-cpd.co.uk/Lecturer.aspx?L_ID=20 

 

13



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

5 
 

 

                            Golden Jubilee Trust 

The Golden Jubilee Trust (GJT) was established as a charity in April 2000 as part of the 

John Lewis Partnership's Golden Jubilee celebrations. Through the charity, any Partner, 

regardless of age, seniority or length of service, can apply for a full or part-time 

volunteering secondment with a UK registered charity for up to six months. 

The GJT provides innumerable benefits, first and foremost to the charities it supports, by 

providing them with the resources and skills they need to meet their own objectives in 

serving the needs of the wider community.  

In June 2012 Mrs Sam Ring was successful in her application to the GJT trust in securing a 

six month part-time secondment. She used two days a week for the six months to create 

questionnaires, compile case studies, and collate information. Sam is a LINk member and 

has been a service user of the pool having had hip surgery four years ago. 

The primary aim of her secondment was to collect evidence and case studies to 

support continued commissioning from the PCT, and to produce a document with 

her findings. 

        Family Voice Peterborough 

 

Family voice Peterborough (FVP) came about through The Aiming High for Disabled Children 

Programme which was launched in May 2007. Its stated aim was “to improve service 

provision across the board for disabled children and their families, enhancing equality and 

opportunity for them” DCFS. FVP is “pan disability” which means “all disabilities”. March 

2013 FVP successfully registered as a charity and all the trustees work on an entirely 

voluntary basis and are themselves parents/carers of children and young people. 

They also have an open forum group of parents and carers who are informed and involved 

in the forum on various different levels. Their charity objects are; to relieve the charitable 

needs of disabled children and children with complex needs and their families and carers in 

Peterborough in such ways as the trustees shall think fit, in particular by the provision of 

advice, information, support and advocacy. 

FVP as a local charity were best placed to take on a support role and provide a secondment 

position to facilitate more in depth research in to the benefits of more comprehensive 

hydrotherapy provision. 

FVP facilitated the secondment of Sam Ring as part of the John Lewis Partnership Golden 

Jubilee Trust by way of access to families with disabled children, office time and volunteer 

support. 

Sam has used the Family Voice database to carry out an initial phone survey to find out if 

people on the database had any knowledge of hydrotherapy and the pool. 

 

      

14



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

6 
 

 

 What is Hydrotherapy?  

Hydrotherapy is an aquatic physiotherapy treatment conducted in a heated pool 

where people undertake exercises to help with rehabilitation, to regain or enhance 

their well-being and improve their levels of fitness. The therapy has been found to 

be beneficial in the treatment of the following range of conditions2; 

· Arthritis. 
· Pain in the back, neck, and shoulder; sports injuries. 

· Balance and co-ordination problems; dementia; Parkinson’s disease. 
· Post-operative rehabilitation, especially hip and knee replacements. 

· Cerebral Palsy, MS and other neurological disorders.  
· Autism, Down’s syndrome, learning difficulties. 
· Stroke rehabilitation 

Hydrotherapy has been shown to offer a viable rehabilitation alternative for the 
treatment of spinal pain and dysfunction.3 

 
The Technical Bit 

Hydrotherapy (aquatic physiotherapy) is a form of physiotherapy carried out in 

water, providing a warm, relaxed atmosphere for treating chronic and acute 

conditions, and an effective therapeutic environment for those in need of 

rehabilitation. Hydrotherapy is conducted in a pool containing heated water. The 

water in a pool is typically heated to 32-36°C provides the optimum temperature 

for muscle relaxation. This helps to decrease pain, increase range of movement and 

increase muscle activity.  

The buoyancy of the water enables movement to be either assisted or resisted and 
allows for more fluid movements. The properties of water are used to decrease the 
effects of gravity and provide assistance, support and resistance for exercises.  The 

aim is to gain flexibility of joints, strengthen muscles and enhance core stability to 
restore or improve function. Users don’t need to be able to swim or get their head 

wet in order to benefit from hydrotherapy.  

Water also provides an excellent medium in which to increase patient confidence 
and motivation prior to embarking on dry land exercise. Hydrotherapy benefits 

many people with neurological conditions – hospital patients, social services clients, 
people with long-term neurological disorders, musculoskeletal problems, those 

recovering from operations, sports injuries, and the elderly population. It is often 
used with children and adults who have physical and learning disabilities. 

For a more detailed explanation of the principles and benefits of Aquatic 

Environment for rehabilitation, please turn to Annexe 1. 

                                                             
2 Profundus 2000 
3 Konlian ,1999.Aquatic therapy; making a wave in the treatment of low back injuries. Orthopaedic nursing 
18(1);11-8 

15



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

7 
 

 

St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool 

Since it’s re-opening in March 2011, St George's hydrotherapy pool has helped over 

1000 people providing pain relief, health improvements, and freedom from 

isolation. It also offers valuable leisure time for those with learning and physical  

 

 

 

 

 

 

disabilities.St George’s hydrotherapy pool is situated in Dogsthorpe, Peterborough 

and is available to the whole community of Peterborough and surrounding areas. 

         St. George's is a fully accessible hydrotherapy pool with a spa facility. 

· Pool measurements 7.35m x 4.25m (24 x 14ft) and is 0.80 (2ft 7”) to 1.40m 
(4ft 7”) deep.  

· Easy to manage steps with a double handrail  
· Hoist with both chair and sling attachments with a full set of slings. 
· A wide range of flotation aids  

· Exercise equipment and exercise sheets.  
· Hoisting facilities in the changing areas, trained staff to assist .  

· A hydraulic shower trolley  
· Baby changing facilities 
· Male and female changing rooms with grab rails and seating.  

· The showers are level access- easy push button controls & pull down shower 
seats.    

· Each changing area has a disabled toilet.  
· Walking frames are available-crutches should not be used poolside. 
· Pull cords for alarms 

· Hairdryer at lower level 
· Waterproof sheet to protect users wheelchair 

 

The pool is staffed by a small team, a Pool Manager and two life guards. There are 

three aquatic physiotherapists who volunteer their time on a regular basis 

People can access the pool in two ways. They can self-refer or their GP can refer 

into a clinician-led aquatic physiotherapy session. Anyone can use the pool, along 

with their family members and carers. The pool currently benefits children and 

adults, and those rehabilitating from a stroke, long-term conditions or from an 

injury. 

16



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

8 
 

 

The pool is run by Peterborough City Council working in partnership with the SURF 

group (service users’ rehabilitation forum). It is funded by Peterborough City 

Council, NHS and local grant giving organizations. 

The hydrotherapy pool is supported by local and regional organisations such as: 

DIAL and LINk/Healthwatch -a local consumer champion for patients, service users 

and the public. 

St George’s is a community pool; any users can be involved with the St George’s 

Service Users’ Rehabilitation Forum (SURF Group) who have an active role in the 

pool's operations and decision making process. 

 

 

  

  

  

Some of the many users 

of St George’s hydrotherapy pool 

 

17



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

9 
 

 

 

Aim of this study: To demonstrate the effectiveness of long term 

hydrotherapy for health and wellbeing as measured by self reported 

experience of service users 

Why use self reported experience as a measure of outcomes? 

Service users’ perceptions of services they receive are an essential aspect of 

assessing whether the personal outcomes that people want from health and care 

are being delivered and their needs met. The NHS Institute for Innovation and 

Improvement support the premise that patients care about their experience of care 

as much as clinical effectiveness and safety. The government has made it clear that 

patient experience is a crucial part of quality care provision4  

 

 

 

Whilst measuring physical improvement outcomes is important, it is just as 
important to be aware of the emotional and psychological improvement outcomes 

that any therapy may provide - which is more difficult to measure quantitatively. 
The reported outcomes with respect to a feeling of overall ‘well-being’ are just as 
important and can be measured through qualitative methodology.  

 
Commissioners and providers of health and social care are currently facing the 

challenges of ensuring that they enable and deliver positive patient and service 
user experience. Talking to people about how hydrotherapy impacts on their quality 
of life is a valid and important way of measuring the possible benefits of this 

therapy to a wide range of people and conditions.   
 

What was the methodology used? 

A questionnaire (evaluation form) was created to find out what difference the 

hydrotherapy pool had made to the lives of users.  This survey was carried out on a 

random selection of users, new and existing, across a six month period. 

Case studies/ user quotes were collected. 

A phone survey using the Family Voice database was carried out to find out a local 

charities understanding and knowledge of hydrotherapy and specifically St.George’s 

hydrotherapy pool. 

 

 

                                                             
4 www.institute.nhs.uk/patient_experience/guide/home_page.html 

We want an NHS that meets not only our physical needs, 

but our emotional ones too. 

Now I Feel Tall, D o H 2007 

18



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

10 
 

 

A ‘MYMOP’ questionnaire was completed by randomly selected self referred new 

users on their initial visit. On their third visit users completed a MYMOP follow -up 

questionnaire. 

‘EQ-5D-L’ and ‘VAS questionnaire’ were completed by randomly selected self 

referring new users on their initial visit. On their third visit they completed an ‘EQ-

5D-L’ and ‘VAS questionnaire’ follow- up questionnaire. 

 From the 28th September 2012, these questionnaires were also used on new GP 

referred patients on their first session and their follow up session. 

 

Index of the data collected 

Self referral user data  

Family Voice phone 

survey 

Random selection from 

FV database 

Independent  

researcher 

MYMOP  data 1st session Independent researcher 

EQ-5D-L   &  VAS  1st session Independent researcher 

MYMOP follow-up 3rd session Independent researcher 

EQ-5D-L   &  VAS  3rd session Independent researcher 

Evaluation Form 
 

3rd session Independent researcher 

Evaluation Form -  
Existing users 

Random selection 
 

Independent researcher 

Case studies and quotes Random selection  Independent researcher 

 

GP referred user data  

MYMOP  
 

1ST commissioned session Clinician/pool manager 

MYMOP follow-up 
 

2nd commissioned session Clinician/pool manager 

EQ-5D-L & VAS  
 

1st  commissioned session Clinician/pool manager 

EQ-5D-L & VAS follow-
up 

2nd commissioned session Clinician/pool manager 

 

The commissioned data collected was sanitised before being given to the author to 

include into their report 

  

19



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

11 
 

 

Family Voice Telephone Survey 

Over a period from 26/9/12 to 10/10/12 a telephone survey was conducted using 

the database from Family Voice-Peterborough.  

28 Family Voice members were randomly selected. The questions asked were for 

the purpose of gathering information about St. George’s hydrotherapy pool. This 

was to help give a snap shot of public understanding about the pool within the 

community. 

1. Have you heard of St.George’s  

hydrotherapy pool 
 

YES 
 

NO 

 20 8 

2. Where did you hear about the hydrotherapy pool? 

 
Word of Mouth                    8 
GP/medical professional    1 
Media Story                           1 
Leaflet/poster                       2 
Other                                       8 
Not heard of pool               8 
 

3. Would you like to use the   pool?  
YES 

 
NO 

Comments were invited – see below 24 4 

4. Have you ever used the hydrotherapy 
pool? 

YES NO 

 3 25 

 

User comments about question 3 – Would you like to use the pool? 

Yes: 

Not used recently, but have booked in for next week 

Found it okay but time was limited.  

The changing rooms are too small-had to share space                                 

Mum has used the pool, but is too unwell at the moment, but I haven’t personally used 

it 

It was long time ago when children were very young-just lost interest 

No: 

Didn’t know when open and access. 

I don’t have time, I can’t swim. 

I can’t swim, it doesn’t appeal to me. I’m as ‘fit as a fiddle’ I don’t see the need to use 

it. 

Not interested. 

I don’t know what it’s about. 

20



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

12 
 

 

I haven’t had the time, my children do a lot of swimming at regional pool with school, 

but I would like more information. 

Was not sure of criteria needed. 

Didn’t know if I could use it. 

Didn’t know how to. 

Lack of information-didn’t know where to find it. 

I didn’t think it was open to the public. 

Didn’t know anything about it 

Knew about it, but hadn’t realised the public could use it, thought it was for disabled 

people only. 

Didn’t know we could use it .I have a disabled daughter and would need hoist to get her 

in 

I’ve just booked my 1st appointment 

I hadn’t heard about it until yesterday, my friend was telling me she had booked her 1st 

Appointment, I’m waiting to hear what she has to say. 

I didn’t know anything about it, but my son has Aspergers and doesn’t like noise, would 

it be too loud for him? 

 

Further information gathered: 

25 people have requested news letter/further details mostly by e-mail.  

There are a couple of people who have not got access to a computer or e-mail address so 

requested information to be sent by post. 

When asked if they knew about pool 8 people said ‘No’, but when they were told where it 

was a  few people acknowledged that it was there, but thought it was  part of  the school 

and not a separate unit open to the community. 

Summary and some thoughts: 

A high percentage of people have heard of the pool but have no understanding of the use of 

the pool and how to access it.  

· This could be addressed by re-designing and simplifying current leaflets and posters. 

· Ensure that the newsletters are sent out to everyone on the mailing list and 

regularly updated. 

· Marketing of the pool to local companies and businesses 

· Arrange visits to local groups and schools in the community  

·  Ensure physiotherapists and GP surgeries have enough information and 

understanding of hydrotherapy 

· This could also be delivered to more specific groups i.e. mother and baby groups, 

charity groups Age UK, mental health groups. 

· Strive for media coverage –local radio, television get councillors and celebrity 

involvement. 

  

21



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

13 
 

 

St George’s Evaluation users Survey 

The evaluation form was designed to collect as much data as possible to measure 

the benefits if any, that people have had whilst using hydrotherapy. It asked for a 

time span, and how often they use it .They were also asked to mark on a scale of 

0-3 or N/A over 15 headings to rate whether there has been any improvement or 

not. 

They were also asked if they had been in hospital at all over the last 12 months, 

and why they were using hydrotherapy. They had the opportunity if they chose to 

share any experiences of the St George’s hydro pool and using aquatic therapy. 

They were also asked if they would recommend St George’s Community 

hydrotherapy pool. Finally they were asked to rate the hydrotherapy pool on a 

scale of 1 -5. (1-very poor, to 5 - excellent). 

This form was kept simple and easy for users to use, which enabled the researchers 

to capture overall user experience.  

To see the evaluation form turn to annexe number 6 

 

Information collated from St George’s Evaluation form 

 47 people took part in the survey- all existing users 

Q1)  How regularly do you use the pool? 

· 97% of users visit the hydrotherapy pool once a week, the remaining 3% 

visited twice a week.(n=41) 

 Q2)  how long have you used the pool? 

· 11%  using the pool in the last 6 months  or less (n=5) 

· 47% using the pool 6 months – 1 year (n=21) 

· 42% using the pool 1 year +(n=19) 

Q3) Have you recently received hospital treatment? (In the last 12 months) 

· 33% said –yes, they had received hospital treatment recently. (n=15) 

· 67% said -  No, they hadn’t received hospital treatment recently(n=30) 

· 8 of the 15 (53%) that said ‘yes’ to hospital treatment stated that it was for 

a surgical procedure(n=8) 

Q4) Would you recommend hydrotherapy at St George’s to your family and friends? 

·  96% - Said yes, they would recommend St George’s (n=43) 

·    2% - Said they would ‘Maybe’ recommend St George’s (n=1) 

·    2%   didn’t write their view n=(1) 

22



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

14 
 

 

         Q5) On a scale of 1-5, how would you rate your experience at St.George’s             

hydrotherapy pool? 

     Of the 47 people to take part in the questionnaire  

· 47 % of people said they rated the pool   “EXCELLENT” (n=22) 

· 45 % of people said they rated the pool   “GOOD”  (n=21) 

·    2% of people said they rated the pool   “AVERAGE” (n=1) 

·    3 people didn’t rate (6%) 

Summary 

The chart below shows in percentages the results. Over the 15 headings it can be 

seen that there has been significant improvement on all of the headings for long 

term users.  

The results demonstrate that three regular sessions or more (long term use) of 

hydrotherapy are beneficial for people with various conditions to help with 

controlling pain, helping people keep mobile, helping their balance and co-

ordination. Some users feel this could mean keeping them out of a wheel chair and 

being able to keep their independence for as long as possible. 

 It also demonstrates that hydrotherapy provides holistic benefits to the individual, 

improving their energy levels and general fitness. It would also suggest that quality 

of life, sleeping pattern, self confidence and relaxation results show mental ‘health 

and wellbeing’ are being supported by using hydrotherapy on a regular basis.    

Results 

 

Total % 
of overall 
improve

ment 

0-No 
Improvement 

% 

1-Slight 
Improvement 

% 

2– 
Improvement 

% 

3-Great 
Improvement 

% 

Pain 100.00 0.00 34.88 46.51 18.60 

Mobility 97.73 2.27 29.55 47.73 20.45 

Range of joint movement 93.18 6.82 25.00 40.91 27.27 

Balance and co-
ordination 86.49 13.51 29.73 29.73 27.03 

Muscle strength 95.00 5.00 30.00 40.00 25.00 

Muscle spasms 80.00 20.00 20.00 32.00 28.00 

Circulation 88.57 11.43 34.29 25.71 28.57 

Energy levels 85.37 14.63 31.71 36.59 17.07 

General fitness 90.48 9.52 19.05 59.52 11.90 

Self-confidence 92.31 7.69 25.64 30.77 35.90 

Relaxation 97.62 2.38 14.29 42.86 40.48 

Sleeping pattern 76.92 23.08 33.33 30.77 12.82 

Wellbeing/quality of life 95.45 4.55 27.27 43.18 25.00 

Medication lowered 44.44 55.56 19.44 2.78 22.22 

Reduced visits to GP 57.14 42.86 28.57 2.86 25.71 

23



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

15 
 

 

 

The following pages have tables and graphs comparing improvement levels 

between new users, if a relevant symptom, on their third session of hydrotherapy 

and existing users, who have had six sessions or more. 

St George’s Evaluation-New and existing users 

Breakdown of results between new users and existing users 

 

     

PAIN results shown in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 90 10 50 25 15 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 100 0 35 47 19 

New users  N=20 
 

Existing users N=43 
 

   

 

   
                                     

  

MOBILITY results shown in 

% 

Total who 
showed 

improvement   
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 95 5 45 35 15 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 98 2 30 48 20 

New users  N=20 Existing users N=44 
   

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

Total 0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Levels of Improvement - Pain 

New users 

Existing users 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement - Mobility 

New users 

Existing users 

24



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

16 
 

 

  

RANGE results shown in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement  
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 85 15 40 35 10 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 93 7 25 41 27 

New users  N=20 Existing users N=44 
    

 

 

 

ENERGY results shown in % 

Total who 
shows 

improvement  
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 59 24 53 6 0 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 85 15 32 37 17 

New users N=14      Existing users N=41 
   

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 
Level of improvement - Range of Joint movement 

New users 

Existing users 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

Level of improvement - Energy levels 

New users 

Existing users 

25



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement -General fitness 

New users 

Existing users 

0 

10 
20 

30 

40 

50 
60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement - Self-confidence 

New users 

Series2 

      

General fitness results 

shown in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 80 15 60 10 10 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 90 10 19 60 12 

New users  N=19    
     

 

SELF CONFIDENCE results 

shown in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement  
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 70 5 25 35 10 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 92 8 26 31 36 

New users  N=15 Existing users N=39 
   

26



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

      Balance and Co-
ordination results 

shown in % 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

New users (third 
session) 60 30 35 20 5 

Existing users ( 6 
sessions or more) 86 14 30 30 27 

New users  N=18 Existing users N=40 

     

 

 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 
Level of improvement - Wellbeing/Quality of life 

New users 

Existing users 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement -Balance & Co-ordination 

New users 

Existing users 

WELLBEING results shown in 

% 

Total who 
showed 

improvement  
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 90 5 60 25 5 
Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 95 5 27 43 25 

New users  N=19 Existing users N=44 
   

27



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

19 
 

 

 

 

 

           Muscle strength  in 
% 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

New users (third 
session) 75 25 35 30 10 

Existing users ( 6 
sessions or more) 95 5 30 40 25 

New users  N=20 
     Existing users N=37 
      

 

 

      Muscle spasms 
results shown in % 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

New users (third 
session) 40 25 30 10 0 

Existing users ( 6 
sessions or more) 80 20 20 32 28 

New users  N=13 
     Existing users N=25 
      

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement -Muscle strength 

New users 

Series2 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

Level of improvement - Muscle spasms 

New users 

Existing users 

28



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

20 
 

 

 

 

      Circulation results 
shown in % 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

New users (third 
session) 30 25 15 10 5 

Existing users ( 6 
sessions or more) 89 11 34 26 29 

New users  N=11 
     Existing users N=35 
      

 

      Relaxation results 
shown in % 

Total who showed 
improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - 
Improvement 

3 - Great 
Improvement 

New users (third 
session) 95 0 30 30 35 

Existing users ( 6 
sessions or more) 98 2 14 43 40 

New users  N=19 
     Existing users N=42 
      

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement -Circulation 

New users 

Existing users 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement - Relaxation 

New users 

Existing users 

29



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

21 
 

 

 

 

 

      
Sleep pattern results shown  

in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 70 25 35 15 20 

Existing users ( 6 sessions 
or more) 77 23 33 31 13 

New users  N=19 
     Existing users N=39 
      

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
MEDICATION  
LOWERED 
results shown in % 

Total who 
shows 

improvement 
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 2 - Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 30 55 10 20 0 
Existing users ( 6 sessions 
or more) 44 56 19 3 22 

New users  N=17 Existing Users N=36 
   

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total 0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

re
c

n
t 

Level of improvement -Sleeping pattern 

New users 

Existing users 

0 
10 
20 
30 
40 
50 
60 
70 
80 
90 

100 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 

0 - No 
Improvement 

1- Slight 
Improvement 

2 - Improvement 3 - Great 
Improvement 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Level of improvement -Medication lowered 

New users 

Existing users 

30



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

22 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

REDUCED GP VISITS  
results shown in % 

Total who 
showed 

improvement 
0 - No 

Improvement 
1- Slight 

Improvement 
2 - 

Improvement 
3 - Great 

Improvement 

New users (third session) 20 50 15 5 0 

Existing users ( 6 sessions or 
more) 57 43 29 3 26 

New users  N=14 Existing users N=35 
    

Summary conclusion 

The data collected using the evaluation form has shown great support for using 

hydrotherapy (aquatic therapy) for a complex variety of conditions. All the users 

were self-referring, paying clients who have sourced hydrotherapy through their 

own means including internet research, word of mouth, advertising or 

recommended by someone. 

The majority of existing users have been using the pool regularly once a week, 

between 6 months and a year. This would support the theory that regular long 

term hydrotherapy sessions are found to be beneficial to most users. 

 A third of those have received hospital treatment in the last 12 months, half of 

those stated that they had a surgical procedure in relation to the condition that 

they use the pool for. Many of the existing users have shown great improvement 

right across the heading. The results from new users have also been very 

encouraging, and show a similar trend. 100% of existing users showed 

improvement with their levels of pain. The results show many of the existing users 

have shown great improvement right across the headings.  

The results from new users have also been very encouraging, and show 90% of 

new users also reporting that their levels of pain had improved over a short time of 

using the pool.  

90% of existing users and 80% of new users are both showing significant 

improvement in their general fitness. Both groups have reported very encouraging 

Reduced visits to GP

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Total who

showed

improvement

0 - No

Improvement

1- Slight

Improvement

2 -

Improvement

3 - Great

Improvement

P
er

ce
n

t

New users

Existing users

31



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

23 
 

 

scores of improvement with mobility and a steady improvement with range of joint 

movement.  

Energy levels shows 85% of existing users are gaining a steady feeling of having 

more energy, were 59% of new users have shown slight improvement.  

With an amazing score of 95%, existing users say that their wellbeing and quality 

of life has improved since using hydrotherapy. 90% of the new users also reported 

that their quality of life and general wellbeing had improved.  

An impressive 44% of existing users and 30% of new users said they have been 

able to reduce their medications since using hydrotherapy for their conditions.  

The results shows 50% of longer term users and 20% of new users have reported 

reducing their visits to their GP. It gives good evidence that hydrotherapy covers 

many important aspects, including helping to reduce GP visits, emergency hospital 

admissions and medication. Whilst also demonstrating the increase in personal 

health and wellbeing and less pain. 

Hydrotherapy enables local people to access a facility that is not a luxury, but an 

essential part of the patient pathway to recovery and/or rehabilitation. It is also a 

vital provision that stabilises or improves a number of longer term conditions.  

Family and Friends Test 

‘Would you recommend St George’s Hydrotherapy pool to friends and family?’ 

A resolute 96% of users stated they would. 

List of conditions from evaluation forms: 

Knee surgery & replacements; recovering from stent 
operation; stroke; Rheumatoid arthritis; Ankle surgery; 

Pain in thigh; General wellbeing/fitness; Kyphoscoliosis; 
Diabetic; Spinal muscular atrophy; Spasmodic back pain; 
Various –Arthritis; back pain and slipped disc; Cerebral 

palsy; Insomnia; Muscle weakness /spasms                                                             
Arm surgery;  Cervical spondilosys; Spinal muscular 
atrophy; Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome; Breast cancer-
radiotherapy recovery; Developmental dyspepsia; 

Osteoporosis; Selective dorsal rhizotomy                                 
Osteoarthritis; Hip replacement; Walking/standing - 

weight issues breast cancer; Fibromyalgia; ME; Anxiety; 
Foot surgery; Joint problems; Nerve compression; weight 

bearing on leg; Ankylosing Spondilitis; Neck problems; 

32



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

24 
 

 

EQ-5D-L 

The Eq-5d-l is a tried and tested questionnaire that gives a holistic picture of the 

patient. It is well recognized throughout the health services. It is useful for 
researchers and clinicians, health care providers and policy makers who need to 

evaluate health care. 
EuroQOL (EQ-5D)5. The EQ 5D has five domains (physical, self care, ability to 
perform usual activities, pain/discomfort, and anxiety/depression) and five levels of 

severity on each domain. Scoring generates a single health state profile and 
subsequently a single utility score.  

Patients also rate their own health on a visual analogue scale, ranging from 0 
(worst imaginable health state) to 100 (best imaginable health state). 

 

EQ-5D-5L Results for self referring hydrotherapy users 

 Before treatment After treatment (Session 
3) 

 N=33 N=18 

Mean  (Standard 

deviation) 

0.488  (0.242) 

 

0.561 (0.171) 

 

Median 0.498 0.602 

(Scale: 1 = full health and 0 = death) (Better health depicted by higher scores in Eq-5d-l)   

The results from the self referring users who took part in the EQ-5D-L 

questionnaire have shown: Between their first session and their third session there 

had been a small change of improvement in their index values. The EQ 5D score 

improved by mean .073, median .10 

Graph showing EQ-5DL figures for self referring user                                            

 

 

  

 
                                                             
5 The EuroQol group.EuroQol –a new facility for the measurement of health related quality of life, Health Policy 
1990:16:199-208. 

0 

0.2 

0.4 

0.6 

0.8 

1 

Before After session 3 

 EQ 5DL Median score 

33



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

25 
 

 

 

EQ-5D VAS score results for self referring hydrotherapy users 

 Before treatment After treatment 

(session 3) 

 N = 33 N = 18 

Mean (standard 
deviation) 

57(18.68) 60  (21.34) 

Median 55 69 
The EuroQol Vas scores showed improvement of mean +3, Standard deviation 2.66, and 

median of +14             

Graph showing EQ VAS figures for self referring user 

 

 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

Before After session 3 

EQ VAS Median Chart  

34



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

26 
 

 

Measure Yourself Medical Outcome Profile (MYMOP) 

MYMOP is a tried and tested questionnaire that gives a holistic picture of the 

patient. Numerous studies show their specificity and reliability. With their consent, 
each user was asked to complete Measure Yourself Medical Outcome Profile 

(MYMOP) form immediately prior to treatment and post treatment. 
 MYMOP is an individualised questionnaire where the patient is asked to nominate 
the problem that they are coming to use the hydrotherapy pool for help with 

(symptom 1 & 2) and one way in which it affects their daily living. The patient 
scores severity on a seven point scale and also scores their general well being. An 

overall MYMOP profile score and individual dimension scores are calculated. The 
Mymop questionnaires were administered according to their standard instructions. 
MYMOP designed by Dr Charlotte Paterson6 Mymop has been used by clinicians, 

GPs and the NHS . 

Self referring users -session 1 & 3 

The MYMOP was used to determine the effectiveness of the treatment of 

hydrotherapy (aquatic therapy). Initial sessions 1, 3 and 6 were going to be the 
target sessions to collect data. For various reasons; users being poorly, unable to 

attend, being in hospital, not wanting to continue. The figures for session 6 were 
too small so we have concentrated on session 1 and 3 only. 

 The MYMOP has an initial assessment and a follow-up assessment. The follow up 

assessment was 2 sessions after the initial assessment. Below is a table of the 
findings, detailing the changes. The MYMOP scales range from 0-6. Higher values 
represent the worst outcome and lower scores represent the best outcome.  

MYMOP Results 
 

The questionnaire data was transferred from paper data collection forms to an 

excel spreadsheet where it could be analysed. 

Self referring new users (Questionnaire responders n=31) 

 Number Percent 

Female 24 77   % 

Male 7 23   % 

Gender not reported 0 0     % 

Duration of health problem   

4 -12 weeks 2 7     % 

3-12 months 6 19   % 

1-5 years 8 26   % 

Over 5 years  15 48   % 

With an average age of 52 years old 

 

                                                             
 

35



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

27 
 

 

MYMOP Results for new self referring users 

 

MYMOP 

scores 

 
Before 
treatment 
 
N=31 

 
At follow-up 
(3 sessions) 
 
N=18 

 
 
Change in score 
 

 
Mean (SD) 

 
Mean (SD) 

 
Mean (SD) 
 

 
95% 
confidence 
interval 

Symptom 1 
n.31 

3.84 (1.18) 3.33 (1.41) 0.51 (1.09) 0.13 
0.89 

Symptom 2 
n = 26 

3.88 (1.21)  3.07 (1.10) 0.82(0.79) 0.52 
1.12 

Activity 
n = 31 

4.23 (1.12) 3.50 (1.29) 0.73 (1.04) 0.35 
1.10 

Wellbeing 
n = 30 

2.87 (1.55) 2.67 (1.14) 0.20 (1.55) 0.65 
075 

MYMOP profile 
n = 31 

3.69 (0.84) 3.16(0.99) 0.53 (0.65) 0.30 
0.76 

 Scale: 0=“as good as it can be” to 6 =“as bad as it could be.” rated by the user. 

Although the number of participants was small the majority showed improvement. 

This study indicates that overall there were positive effects over the three sessions 

of hydrotherapy. 

MYMOP chart - new self referring users 
        

  

MYMOP scored 0-6, with lower scores = better health                          

 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

SYMPTOM 1 SYMPTOM 2 ACTIVITY WELLBEING MYMOP 
PROFILE 

u
se

rs
 s

co
re

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 0

- 6
 

Before and after treatment of 3 sessions 

before treatment 

follow up 

36



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

28 
 

 

Improvement was found for Symptom 1, Symptom 2, Activity, and Wellbeing. 
These findings indicate that the treatment was a positive success 

The MYMOP profile score represents the overall experience for the patient. As 

shown, this score was lower after treatment, indicating success with the treatment.  

This shows that even after a short trial period of three sessions improvement 
overall can be seen. This would support the St George’s evaluation report that long 

term use of hydrotherapy produces successful results. 

The MYMOP also asks patients about the importance of reducing medication and 
about the doses of medication that they are on, 39% of patients indicated that 

cutting down medication was very important to them and 19% were successful in 
reduction or cessation. This indicates some success with the treatment.   

(A change in score is clinically significant when it represents a change that is of 

importance to the individual patient concerned. Using a seven point score such as 
MYMOP, the clinically minimal important difference for the change score is between 
0.5-1.0. This means that any change below 0.5 does not represent a change of any 

importance to the patient, and any change above 1 probably does. In-between 0.5 
and 1.0 we are uncertain. 7 8 )    

  

                                                             
7 Guyatt GH, Juniper EF, Walter S, Griffith L, Goldstein RS. Interpreting treatment effects in randomised trials. British 

Medical Journal 1998;316:690-693.] 
1. 

8 MYMOP - Faqs sites.pcmd.ac.uk/mymop/index.php?c=faqs 

 

37



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

29 
 

 

CASE STUDIES 

 

JACKIE MANDLEY- lives in Chatteris, and has been a 

regular visitor and user of the hydrotherapy pool since 

April 2012. She uses the pool once a week.  Jackie has 

arthritis in her right hip and is also waiting for a hip 

replacement. Jackie found out about hydrotherapy and 

the pool through visiting her masseuse for her monthly 

massage. She discussed using the hydrotherapy pool 

with her consultant who also agreed, and recommended 

it after her surgery too.  

 Jackie finds it very difficult to walk upright, and struggles 

with land based exercise.   Using the hydrotherapy pool 

she finds exercising in water so much easier as the water 

supports her body, enabling her to stand up straight. 

Jackie believes that it is using the hydrotherapy pool that keeps her mobile, helping to 

strengthen her muscles. 

Jackie said” I can move in the water without the pain and can walk upright in the pool. It 

makes such a difference to me; it is also mentally refreshing too. When you struggle with 

pain and aches on a daily basis it wears you down, if I’m having a low day, once I get in the 

pool and start moving around I start to feel uplifted. There’s always a great group of people 

there. I come with my friend, and it’s like a social gathering- the lifeguards are so friendly 

and kind too. I would definitely recommend the hydrotherapy pool to friends and family.” 

 

Peter Hook from Parnwell has started to use the 

hydrotherapy pool after undergoing a hip replacement. 

Peter had found that his recovery from his hip operation 

was very slow. He had been off work since June and had 

surgery in September 2012.  

Peter said “I had been on very strong pain killers and 

didn’t seem to be getting any better. I was at the end of 

my tether, and decided I needed to investigate whether I 

could do something different. I used the internet and found 

out about St George’s and hydrotherapy. When I had my 

first session I enjoyed the warmth of the water, and it 

enabled me to move through the water without the pain. It 

means I can exercise without the strain and it has made a 

marked improvement on my health and well- being. Mentally I’m in a much better place 

and start back to work part-time next week .I will carry on using hydrotherapy, it’s a great 

way to keep fit and trim. I do recommend hydrotherapy to everyone.” 

  

38



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

30 
 

 

  

 Darren Towell was knocked down by a car last 

September whilst walking on the pavement over the town 

bridge in Stamford. He broke both legs and severely 

damaged both cartilages and ligaments in his knees. 

After 3 months of bed rest while the breaks healed and 

the swelling to both knees subsided, he lost most of the 

muscle tone in his legs and gained quite a bit of weight. 

He started land based physio but could not weight-bear 

unless he used a walking frame, Eventually he was able 

to weight-bear long enough to build up enough muscle 

tone to walk very short distances and tackle a few stairs 

using crutches. 

He was then advised to try the hydrotherapy pool which 

he says;”has been an absolute godsend, it has enabled 

me to have a lot more movement in my legs and has also built up my muscles again. The 

hydrotherapy pool has also been a very good meeting place to talk to people who have 

similar conditions. The staffs are very friendly and there is always a good atmosphere. I 

would recommend this to anyone who has had an operation, got poor circulation or who has 

got limited movement with aches and pains. It has definitely speeded up my recovery. 

Before I started using the pool my consultant and physiotherapist thought I was going 

backwards with my rehabilitation.  

 

Karen Oldale-conditions: Spinal muscular atrophy, 

Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome, Developmental dysplasia of the 

hips (6 left hip operations) Osteoarthritis, Osteoporosis, 

Kyphoscoliosis, Mild heart failure. 

Hydrotherapy is the only treatment I have received that 

has genuinely worked and helped improve my conditions. 

I use it to manage my pain; I do not take any medication 

for this at all. Hydrotherapy allows me to manage my 

conditions and I very rarely visit my GP. I use 

hydrotherapy as an alternative to hospital procedures, 

such as facet joint injections. 

 For the past ten years, hydrotherapy has enabled me to 

postpone major and complex hip surgery at Guys. By continuing hydrotherapy I hope I can 

prevent it altogether. There are enormous financial and personal benefits to this.  

It has genuinely slowed the degenerative progress of my conditions and allows me to retain 

a greater degree of independence for longer. Without regular hydrotherapy, I have 

increased pain and signs of irreversible muscle weakness within a couple of weeks. Pain, 

lowered medication intake, energy levels and wellbeing/quality of life are the four most 

important aspects for me, and in all these I have gained great improvement through 

hydrotherapy. If hydrotherapy was not available to me, I’m certain none of the above would 

continue.”  

            

39



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

31 
 

 

User’s stories and quotes 
 
Female user - 62 years old. She has been using the pool for about six months and visits on 

a weekly basis. She suffers with Arthritis and has found using the hydro pool very 

beneficial. Mrs.M. said 

” the pool is brilliant, and has changed my life as I have a lot of pain and have mobility 

issues. I make sure I come regularly to the pool as it helps to keep my joints moving. If I 

miss a session I can really feel the difference. It’s something that I enjoy doing and I look 

forward to coming each week. I’m proof it works”.  

 
 

 

User in her 5o’s- she has used the pool over the last year and a half on a weekly basis with 

her friend. She has been using the hydrotherapy pool to help with muscular pain, and to 

help with her Arthritis. 

They both agree that it helps relieve some of the stresses of life too. Using the pool has 

helped them to socialise, meeting up with other users, and getting them out into the 

community. They both recommend using the hydrotherapy pool to friends and family. 

 

 

 

 

A user aged 51 years old Recovering from spinal surgery- Mrs S. uses the pool weekly 

said, “I’ve been coming to the hydrotherapy pool for just over a year. I originally came to 

ease the pain as I had a lot of spasms in my back and I was waiting for spinal surgery. Now 

I’ve had the surgery, so I’m now building my core muscles again. I find it great for relieving 

the pain, and great to be able to exercise without weight bearing. I find the physiotherapist 

very helpful- I recommend it to everyone. I haven’t met anyone yet who hasn’t got 

something beneficial from using the pool.” 

 
 

User with back and leg trauma- 47 years old 

“I suffered a fall and lost the use of my leg, I also had to have a hip operation. I struggled 

with land based physiotherapy. Progress was slow, and I wondered if I would ever recover. 

After using the hydrotherapy I found I could reduce my painkillers and other medication 

too. This made me feel much better- mentally- I had been in a very low place. I was shown 

gentle exercises to try, and to be able to move in the warm water enabled me to do so 

much more than I could with land based physio. I wish I had been told about it earlier, I 

wish my GP had known more about hydrotherapy. I now walk unaided, and have returned 

to work. I would definitely recommend it to friends and family” 

 

Mrs T talking about her son: 'My son comes to hydrotherapy once a week. He is autistic and 

water has a very calming influence on him. It really calms him when he is finding situations 

difficult. It is the only thing that calms him down. He has a trapped nerve in his skull which 

is causing him a lot of pain. He has found this very difficult to cope with, so hydro has been 

a godsend and he really looks forward to it each week. It makes him calm for the rest of 

the day even if he is in discomfort with pain, it helps him deal with it better’ 

40



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

32 
 

 

LINk Pathfinder Healthwatch Peterborough 

In 2010 Peterborough LINk were contacted by Karen Oldale who raised the 
awareness of a lack of hydrotherapy facilities locally. The new Peterborough City 
Hospital did not re-locate the provision after a drop in referral rates at 

Peterborough District Hospital. LINk worked in partnership with adult social care, 
health services, hospitals, local community groups, councillors and other interested 
parties to research and attempt to find a solution to the loss of this service. LINk 

organised and facilitated partnership meetings across the city to listen and collate 
information about the service from local people. 

Research showed that there were 35,000 people with long-term conditions in the 

city, so re-establishing this provision for local people was vital.  

A local under-used local authority pool was identified as a possible alternative. 
Peterborough City Council funded refurbishment and management costs to evaluate 

the demand for the pool during the trial open week. Between 23rd and 30th March 
2011 users came from across the city to see, use and evaluate the pool. In the first 
four weeks over 200 had used the pool from across all parts of the city. 

LINk formulated a survey to obtain constructive feedback about the pool and the 
effect of hydrotherapy as a health provision. The demand was overwhelming, and 
the benefits to those who used the pool were demonstrated in the comments and 

reactions from users and carers.  

 St George’s Open Day 2011 

The age of users range from the very young to senior 
citizens over 80 years of age. Users have come from 

central, outlying, rural parts of Peterborough covered 
by 24 wards.  

Under government reforms to the NHS, clinical commissioning was becoming the 

new way of commissioning NHS services, in January 2012 LINk lobbied over 100 
local GPs to commission hydrotherapy-with support from numerous local and 
national statutory and voluntary organisations - who have supported and 

championed the need for the pool. 

Peterborough LINk delighted Hydrotherapy Pool to be 
commissioned:  

 “This is fantastic news and a massive step in securing the future of hydrotherapy 
locally. Many people behind the scenes have worked very hard to make this facility 
available. There is clear evidence that it is both cost effective and hugely beneficial 

to those who use it - and the carers to those who use it. This decision will increase 
patient choice and demonstrates how valuable local people and organisations 

working together can be.” 

David Whiles  
Chair – Peterborough LINk  

 

41



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

33 
 

 

What does commissioning mean? 
 
At the end of September 2012, NHS Peterborough sent information packs 

explaining that a commissioned NHS aquatic physiotherapy service was now 

available at St George’s Community Hydrotherapy Pool to every GP practice in the 

Peterborough and the surrounding Borderline area.   

This means GPs working in these practices can refer suitable patients for two 

sessions of hydrotherapy at St George’s with an aquatic physiotherapist. 

Patients in Lincolnshire are also able to receive the same service at St George’s 

because NHS Lincolnshire has agreed to be an associate to this commissioning 

agreement.  

The commissioning of this provision will increase patient choice and the available 

services a GP can offer for a range of conditions.  

The commissioning of this service addresses the Equalities Act 2010 by providing a 

service for the health and wellbeing of disadvantaged groups by making the 

provision available to all and tackling local health inequality. 

 The first patient cutting the ribbon at the opening 
ceremony for commissioning at St George’s: 

 

It is decided by the GP if a patient 

is suitable for aquatic therapy. Each 

patient can have two NHS aquatic 

therapy sessions.   

The aquatic therapist will assess 

the patient and plan an individual 

treatment programme for them. 

They receive exercises appropriate 

for their condition to practise in the 

water.  

Their second aquatic therapy 

session will be very similar to the 

first, followed by an assessment. 

After the two sessions the aquatic therapist will send a report on their progress to 

the GP.  

They would be able to continue with their aquatic therapy programme either in a 

supervised class or on their own at St George’s by using the self-referral pathway. 

Commissioning addresses health inequalities and makes the provision available to 

anyone who needs it. 

42



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

34 
 

 

 

EQ-5D-5L Results for GP Commissioned Patients 

GP commissioned patients attending their first appointment were asked if they 

would fill in the same EQ-5D-L questionnaire that self referring users also 

completed. 

The following charts and grids show the results of this questionnaire.  

 
 Before treatment After treatment (Session 2) 

 N=34 N=31 

Mean  (Standard 

deviation) 

0.521  (0.293 ) 

 

0.523  ( 0.336) 

 

Median 0.5375 0.567 
Scale1=full health and 0=death (better health depicted by higher scores in Eq5dl) 

Spread sheet of Eq-5d-l GP commissioned users shown in appendix 11 and 12 

                                

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

before after 

session 3

EQ-5D-L Median score

before

after 

session 3

        

                                     Table showing EQ-5D VAS score 

 Before treatment After treatment 
(session 3) 

 N = 33 N = 18 

Mean (standard 
deviation) 

57 (30) 62 (25) 

Median 62.5 70. 

                                    

                              

0
20
40
60
80

100

before after 

session 

3

EQ- VAS score

before

after 

session 3

       

43



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

35 
 

 

 

EQ -5d-l and EQ VAS results have not shown any great change in results. 

The EQ Vas scores showed result mean of +5, standard deviation -5, median +7.5. 

Because EQ VAS asks the user how they are on that particular day may not reflect 
specifically to their condition but to how they are generally feeling overall. 

The results from the GP commissioned users who took part in the EQ-5D-L 
questionnaire have shown: Between their first session and their follow up session 

there has been a small change of improvement in their index values. 

 The EQ 5D score improved by .002  

MYMOP Results for GP commissioned patients 

The same MYMOP questionnaire that self referring users filled in were then 

completed by GP commissioned patients. Data spreadsheet annexe 9 and 10. 

The following charts and grids show the results of this questionnaire. (N=33) 

 Number Percent 

Female 26 79  % 

Male 7 21   % 

Gender not reported 0 0     % 

Duration of health problem   

4 -12 weeks 2 6     % 

3-12 months 16 48   % 

1-5 years 9 28   % 

Over 5 years  6 18   % 

 

  

MYMOP 

scores 

 
Before 

treatment 
         N=33 

 
At follow-up 

 
         N=30 

 

 
Change in score 

 

        
       Mean 

 (SD) 
 

 
       Mean 

 (SD) 

 
         Mean 

 (SD) 
 

      95% 
confidence 
interval 

Symptom 1 3.91 (1.23) 3.27 (1.23) 0.60(1.30) 0.16 
1.04 

Symptom 2 3.58 (1.70) 3.20 (1.69) 0.30 (0.88) 0.00 
0.60 

Activity 4.09(1.44) 3.40 (1.43) 0.67 (1.42) 0.19 
1.15 

Well being  3.30 (1.70) 2.53(1.76) 0.80 (1.77) 0.20 
1.40 

MYMOP Profile 3.72 (1.23) 3.10 (1.25) 0.59 (0.90) 0.28 
0.90 

44



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

36 
 

 

    Scale: 0 = “as good as it can be” to 6 = “as bad as it could be average age 52 

years old 

 

MYMOP chart showing before and after treatment of 2 

sessions for commissioned users 

                                                      

                MYMOP scored 0-6, with lower scores = better health     

As with the self referring users it can be clearly seen from the data collected from 

the patients that they feel that they have improved over their two symptoms, and 
their chosen activity and well being.  

The MYMOP profile score represents the overall experience for the patient. As 

shown, this score was lower after treatment, indicating success with the treatment.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
After the project ended, the hydropool decided to continue collecting routine 

outcome data for GP commissioned patients by using MYMOP-and EQ-5D-L.  

0 
0.5 

1 
1.5 

2 
2.5 

3 
3.5 

4 
4.5 

5 
5.5 

6 

symptom 
1 

symptom 
2 

activity  wellbeing Mymop 
profile 

u
se

r 
sc

o
re

s 
0

-6
 

Before and after treatment 

before 

follow up 
session 

The 80% who said they had improved 

following their two hydrotherapy sessions 

did so by an average of 0.90. 

The 13% who said they felt worse did so by 

0.95 

7% of the sample said they were unchanged 

45



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

37 
 

 

Peterborough City Council Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-2015  

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-2015 to be delivered by health 
commissioner in the Local and Clinical Commissioning Groups and Peterborough 
City Council want to translate their aspirations and needs into services that:  

· Deliver the best possible health and well being outcomes, including 

promoting equality  
· Provide the best possible health and social care provision and  

· Achieve this with the best use of available resources  

Hydrotherapy can provide a service to meet these targets and this report and the 
feedback from users and their carers demonstrates the impact to reflect that.  

St George’s hydrotherapy pool is a popular, in-demand and well supported 
provision that improves the lives, health and wellbeing for users and carers. It is a 

preventative provision as will a valuable means of recovery – delivered directly in 
line with the key aims and objectives of the strategy.  

Hydrotherapy has the rare advantage of being able to deliver benefits to all of 

Peterborough City Council’s public health, education and social care services - 
contributing to the improvement- direct use of integrated health and social care 

solutions.  

Hydrotherapy shows a greater delivery of innovative, forward thinking and 
proactive – not reactive – provision.  

Will have a positive preventative effect through promoting timely 

intervention  

By recognising conditions and illnesses and well being targets – and focusing on 
preventative and rehabilitation services – hydrotherapy demonstrates an effective 
way to deploy services- a single provision meeting a range of needs- proving the 

best possible health and social care provision.  

The strategy protects and gives due regard to the health and wellbeing needs of 
disadvantaged groups specified with the Equalities Act 2010 – and the database 

demographics and city council ward access shows it to be a service that is accessed 
by all protected groups in the city.  

Key facts  

Peterborough has more than the average number of children aged 11 are 

obese.  

The hydro pool can offer privacy to those who may avoid activity in water due to 
the personal perception of their image – for those with a range of eating disorders 

(aqua-aerobics groups).  

Over 1,400 children and young people ages 0 -17 are in receipt of 
Disability Living Allowance  

46



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

38 
 

 

Schools with aquatic provision can service limited numbers - many miss out on the 
provision (and it is not available for holiday periods – in excess of 13 weeks a 

year). Hydrotherapy is an effective way to treat children with neurological and 
orthopaedic conditions. It is enjoyed by children because it is fun and gives them a 

freedom of movement only experienced in a hydrotherapy pool.  

Peterborough has a higher than average number of pupils who are 
determined as having Special Educational Need (SEN)  

Family Voice Peterborough (FVP) working collaboratively 

with LINks were invited to be involved in discussions 
with various other agencies about hydrotherapy 
provision. FVP are aware many benefits exist for those 

with SEN ranging from physical freedom to emotional 
wellbeing. Hydrotherapy has shown that children with 

autism benefit from being in the warm water, helping 
them relax enabling them to concentrate better after 
their session. This also enables them to exercise freely 

and calmly in the water helping to treat other physical 
conditions they may have.  

St George’s hydrotherapy pool can support SEN schools and the council with 

providing special group sessions with stimulating music, lighting and fun. To 
encourage and develop movement, communication and social skills.  

A grandmother who helps to care for her grandson with hyper mobility 

syndrome and suspected autism/ Aspergers said; ” general fitness, 

confidence, relaxation and well being/quality of life has greatly improved 

since attending hydrotherapy. He has also learnt to swim underwater.”  

Children with Cerebral palsy may find hydrotherapy beneficial as the water 

supports their body weight, enabling them to enjoy a level of movement and 
independence which they cannot achieve elsewhere. The resistance of the water 

can help to strengthen the muscles, and can also reduce muscle spasms.  

Peterborough has a growth in the population aged 85+.This frail group 
need well organised and responsive health and social care services  

Hydrotherapy at St Georges can provide vital exercise sessions for our older 
population. Supporting groups like AGE UK, using gentle exercises in a friendly 

environment that makes them feel safe and comfortable in sessions of same age 
users.  

A couple in their late 70’s have been visiting the pool for the last 18 

months. Mr K says: “hydrotherapy has done him the world of good. He no 
longer has to wear a support belt and does not need to take pain killers 

anymore. Before visiting the pool Mr K tried sessions with a chiropractor 
but that did not help. Within two weeks of coming to the pool his condition 
improved”. The spa has also helped Mr K. he says” It is the best massage 

you can get, so gentle on your muscles”. Before he started to use the pool 
he could not lift his arms above his head, he can do this easily now. 

ol d th cil with

47



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

39 
 

 

The water provides fabulous physical support - making users feel safer on their 
feet, especially if they are unsteady and prone to falls – which in old age is one of 

the highest reasons for emergency admissions to hospitals i.e. broken hips and 
bones.  

Hydrotherapy is proven to speed recovery in those who have been unfortunate to 

have suffered a fall and demand from local care homes for the service has 
increased over the last two years.  

As well as the physical benefits it can also offer a social network, as people get 

older they often find that they are by themselves for the majority of their time.  

It may be the one time in the week that the actually get to interact/talk to other 
people. Being part of a group encourages people to keep active physically and 
mentally.  

If they have someone who cares for them, St Georges could play a part in 
‘signposting’ people to the right help, and create a ‘hub’ for people who need 
support from others who may also be carers. Being a carer can be very isolating, 

exhausting and distressing.  

Mr. W. who is in his early 80s has Myelitis9 disease which causes injury to 
the spinal cord with varying degrees of weakness, sensory alterations, and 

autonomic dysfunction: ”I’ve been visiting the pool now for about four 
months, it is helping my mobility, in water I can move around supported 
by the warm water, it has been such a great help. It is also helping me get 

more confident with doing many things; it makes me mentally feel better 
too”. 

Peterborough City Council currently commits substantially more of its 

gross budget on services for adults with a learning disability than 

comparator authorities  

Feedback has shown greater mobility / less support/ care needed for adults with 

learning disabilities who use hydrotherapy. Feedback from carers note that there is 
a freedom once in the water that allows people to be able to express themselves 

easier and have better mobility in the water.  

They say that if someone has been restless, frustrated, not being able to express 
themselves verbally, angry or general ‘out of sorts’ before their session, once they 
have gone into the warm water, being able to just relax, or be stimulated by the 

sensory lights and music has a very positive calming effect .This has lead to better 
response to socialising, learning and behaviour.  

                                                             
1    9 Transverse Myelitis Society, UK 

         www.myelitis.org.uk/ 

 

48



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

40 
 

 

Peterborough has a higher than average number of obese and those low in 
terms of physical activity (a quarter of adults are estimated to be obese)  

The hydro pool is open to people in the community who would like to have privacy 

because of having personal body image issues, either being overweight or being 
under weight /anorexic.  

Anonymous user said “I was advised by my consultant to come to the 

hydrotherapy pool to help to control my weight which in turn will help with 

my condition. I can come to ‘quiet, small sessions’ as I find being in public 

difficult” 

Offering availability to target groups, male /female only, ethnic groups the 

hydrotherapy pool offers provision not available anywhere 
else locally.  

The provision can be used by the education sector in 

collaboration with other activities to tackle those at risk or 
with obesity e.g. having regular aqua aerobics for 11- 15 

yrs in small groups etc  

Dementia – it is estimated that 20% of the over 80’s 
will be affected. As this age group increase- so will be 
demands and effects of this most serious illness have 

on carers and local services  

Hydrotherapy sessions can support people with dementia and their carers by 
providing sessions by having fun, creating social interaction and stimulation and 

expression of enjoyment.  

In 2002 Alzheimer’s Society awarded a hydrotherapy project an Excellence in 

Dementia Care Nursing Award10.  

Senior Policy Officer Martina Kane from the Alzheimer’s Society said  There are well 

understood benefits of physical activity to people with dementia, such as being 

engaged, increased social contact, exercise, and releasing energy. There is some 

anecdotal evidence about the benefits of swimming and water for people with 

dementia especially around difficult behaviour (aggression and agitation). This is 

probably due the combination of exercise, activity, calming environment etc rather 

than to one factor in particularly.  

Penny Smith, author of the Waterworks Project Report in Cornwall11 worked in a 

specialist dementia unit in a nursing home. She, along with the support of others, 

used a local hydrotherapy pool to support a number of residents. She reported; “ it 

creates positive changes in mood, communication skills and agitation for 

the residents. It shows much enjoyment is gained from these sessions” 

                                                             
10 ; http://www.careinfo.org/a-passport-back-to-youth-strength-and-independence/ 
11 Penny Smith waterworks project-  

49



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

41 
 

 

St George’s can offer a facility that can accommodate sessions to offer support to 

those with dementia and their carers in the local community. 

Peterborough have a higher than average hip fractures 

Hydrotherapy can be used wisely to help those after surgical intervention if 

commodities allows. 

Falls Assist UK: “exercise designed to improve strength and balance and co-

ordination (& safety changes at home) can lead to a reduction in falls”12. 

Hydrotherapy could provide almost risk-free exercise for this group. 

Physiotherapy supported hydrotherapy for hip fractures and other 

musculoskeletal injuries 

· Shorten recovery time 

· Faster return to work 

· Less pain medication 

· GP attendance 

· Complication/corrective surgery 

Hydrotherapy user attends Guys and St Thomas’ Hospitals for various conditions 

including congenital dislocation in her hip with secondary osteoarthritis problems. 

“I consider (hydrotherapy) to be essential for her care...I cannot stress 

too highly the importance of her need to continue to receive hydrotherapy 

on a regular ongoing basis...” Professor R Grahame CBE MD FRCP FACP 

Emeritus Professor of clinical Rheumatology supporting her use of hydrotherapy to 

control her conditions and pain to the PCT and her GP.   

Stroke  

Stokes affects more than 300 people in Peterborough annually. Hydrotherapy can 

benefit stroke survivors by improving their functional movement and well-being. 

Charles Ryan, Improvement Development Manager for Long Term Conditions said: 

“These services will make a real difference to people with stroke, their 

families and carers. Stroke can have a devastating and lasting impact on 

people’s lives and individuals often live with the effects for the rest of their 

lives. 

That’s why it’s important that patients, families and carers have access to 

and receive good quality rehabilitation services delivered by skilled 

professionals, as this will enhance long-term recovery and reduce long-

term disability. We want to give patients access to quality services 

delivered in the local community, and to ensure these services are co-

ordinated between different service providers for the benefit of 

patients.13” 

                                                             
12 Only Peterborough magazine –March 2012. 

13 Peterborough NHS- Improvements on the way for community stroke services in Peterborough 

50



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

42 
 

 

Working together... 

Brian Tyler Disability Forum Manager and founder of DIAL Sport has been an active 

supporter of the hydrotherapy pool since the re-launch. Brian has ensured the 

provision is widely know about by his service user groups through publicity and will 

signpost organisations and individuals to the pool. 

Local councillors from many of the wards across Peterborough have helped promote 

the hydrotherapy pool within their wards and also very kindly donated from their 

Community Leadership Funds (CLF). These funds enable elected members to 

support projects that will have a positive impact on communities within their wards. 

The hydrotherapy pool has been well supported by a great deal of statutory and 

voluntary organisations and many other local businesses and groups. 

Volunteers administer and design the website, produce the newsletter, assist in 

fundraising and provide front of house services. They also have volunteer 

physiotherapists providing clinical guidance to users. 

The ‘Friends of St George’s hydrotherapy pool’ fundraise to provide users with 

additional equipment.  

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                    

 

51



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

43 
 

 

Hydrotherapy users by ward (latest figures March 2013) 

 

 
This demonstrates that the facility has been accessed by residents in all wards of 

Peterborough City. At the time of publishing this report - March 2013 - there were 
1400 users on the database. Including:  
 

· 8 care homes 
· 2 day centres 

· 6 schools and/or nurseries 
  

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

users 

52



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

44 
 

 

                                               Final summary 

Between July and December 2012 Sam Ring carried out, with a range of research 

methods, a comprehensive case for the use of St George’s Community 

Hydrotherapy Pool as a provider of aquatic physiotherapy to improve the lives, 
health and wellbeing of patients, users and carers and demonstrate it by supported 
evidence of patient experience reports and feedback.  

The research was carried out at the hydrotherapy pool in Dogsthorpe, 

Peterborough. Users were engaged with throughout the project and updated on 
progress and outcome/s. Evidence and commentary was gathered by users 

attending their regular sessions whether through self-referring or GP referred.  

Data was collected using MYMOP, EQ-5D-L questionnaires, the St. George’s 
evaluation form and oral testimony and feedback. Further soft intelligence was 

gathered from the provided anonymous comments box.  

Sam had the opportunity to spend valuable time and resources talking to users and 
carers to help her to compile case studies, obtain quotes and valuable constructive 
user experiences.  

The study provides sound evidence that measurable improvement in the quality of 

everyday living may be obtained by users with various conditions by using 
hydrotherapy. Evidence shows that it can be of benefit for users who have chronic 

and progressive conditions showing it as an effective way of controlling pain and 
increasing mobility.  

The majority of the existing users have shown great improvement right across the 

15 target areas evaluated. The results from new users have also been very 
encouraging, showing a similar trend.  

The report provides positive evidence that hydrotherapy provides a cost effective 
provision to both the NHS and social care services - covering many important 

aspects, including reducing GP visits, reduction in emergency hospital admissions 
and medication reduction and in preventing conditions worsening.  

Continued commissioning and referrals for this service would show that the 

emerging surrounding Clinical Commissioning Groups (and the Local 
Commissioning Groups); Peterborough City Council; the primary and secondary 

sector recognise the tangible and evident health and social care benefits that 
hydrotherapy provide to the residents of Peterborough and surrounding areas.  

* People in the community should to have access to a facility that is proving to be 
an essential part of the patient pathway to recovery and wellbeing.  

* The delivery of hydrotherapy as a health and wellbeing provision is directly in line 
with the key aims and objectives of the health and wellbeing strategy 2012-2015.  

* The provision of this service will help in improving quality of life for many people. 
Aquatic therapy can help to stabilise or improve many life-long conditions.  

53



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

45 
 

 

 

 

 

Enhancing opportunities for independent living for people with life- long disabilities 

and complex needs14.  

After completion of the research, having spent six months at St George’s, Sam Ring 
has been so impressed with the impact the service has brought to such a range of 

vulnerable people, the ethos of the pool and the belief in the need for such a 
service, she has become a trustee of ‘The friends of St George’s hydrotherapy 
pool’.   

 

                                                                                                     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                             
14 Health and wellbeing Strategy 2012-2015.NHSPeterborough 

54



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

46 
 

 

Appendix 

1. The principles and benefits of Aquatic Environment for rehabilitation 

2. Example VAS questionnaire example MYMOP questionnaire 

3. Example MYMOP questionnaire 

4. Example St George’s evaluation form 

5. EQ-5D-L self referring data spreadsheet session 1 

6. EQ-5D-L self referring data spreadsheet session 3 

7. MYMOP publications  

8. MYMOP self referring data spreadsheet session 1 

9. MYMOP self referring data spreadsheet session 3 

10.GP commissioned MYMOP data spreadsheet session1 

11.GP commissioned MYMOP data spreadsheet follow up 

12.GP commissioned EQ-5D-data spreadsheet session 1 

13.GP commissioned EQ-5D-L data spreadsheet session 3  

14.Example EQ-5D-L questionnaire 

15. Latest data results from MYMOP and Eq-5D-5L 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

47 
 

 

                                                                                                        

Annexe 1 

The principles and benefits of Aquatic Environment for rehabilitation supplied by Pat 

Baker- physiotherapist 

 

 
 
      

56



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

48 
 

 

 
                                                           

57



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

49 
 

 

ANNEXE 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

· We would like to know how good or bad your health is  

TODAY. 

· This scale is numbered from 0 to 100. 

· 100 means the best health you can imagine. 

0 means the worst health you can imagine. 

· Mark an X on the scale to indicate how your health is TODAY.  

· Now, please write the number you marked on the scale in the 

box below.  

                     

 

 

 

YOUR HEALTH TODAY  = 

 

 

  
10 

0 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

80 

70 

90 

100 

5 

15 

25 

35 

45 

55 

75 

65 

85 

95 

The best health        
you can imagine 

The worst health       

 you can imagine 

Copy of EQ VAS form 

58



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

50 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                        ANNEXE 3 

                                                  COPY OF MYMOP FORM  

 

 

  

59



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

51 
 

 

St George’s Hydrotherapy Evaluation Form 
 

Name:                                                                               

   

Address:                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                            

Email Address:                                                                  

  

Phone No:               Mobile:                           

  

Today’s date:____/____/____ 

How long have you used the pool?                             

How regularly do you use the pool?  (Please tick below) 

Three times a week    Twice a week   Once a week    Only occasionally  Until recovered      

 
We would be very grateful if you could help us by completing the following table   
 
0  = No improvement   1 = Slight improvement  2 = Improvement  3 = Great improvement  
 

Please mark on a scale of 0-3 how much hydrotherapy has improved your:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 0 1 2 3 N/A – Don’t know  

Pain      

Mobility      

Range of joint movement      

Muscle strength      

Muscle spasms      

Balance and co-ordination      

Circulation      

Energy levels      

General fitness      

Self-confidence      

Relaxation      

Sleeping pattern      

Wellbeing/quality of life      

Has it allowed you to lower your medication 
intake? 

     

Has it allowed you to reduce your visits to the 
GP? 

     

60



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

52 
 

 

 If you would like to tell us anything more about your experience of using hydrotherapy, please use 

the box below.  

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you so much for making the effort and taking the time to complete this.  We do appreciate it.  We 

will use this data to evaluate the effectiveness of hydrotherapy as a medical treatment. 

And finally… 

                   Would you recommend St George’s Community Hydrotherapy Pool? (Please tick box) 

  

Yes    No     Maybe    Don’t know   

 

            On a scale of 1-5, how would you rate your experience at St George’s Community Hydrotherapy   

            Pool?  (Please circle)         

                                            Very Poor         Poor   Average       Good     Excellent 

                    1                    2                        3                    4                     5                                   

                        

                            Please return your completed form to Sam Ring or Kasia Chiva at: 

                                             St George’s Community Hydrotherapy Pool 

367 Dogsthorpe Road 

Peterborough 

PE1 3RE 

 

Alternatively, you can attach and send it by email for the attention of Sam or Kasia at: 

 

stgeorgeshydrotherapypool@peterborough.gov.uk 

61



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

53 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                             Annexe5 

EQ-5D-L. self referring   data spreadsheet  

session  1

Mobility Self care Usual activities Pain / Discomfort

Anxiety /                

Depression State EQ VAS

1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No pain 1=Not anxious

2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slighty 

3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderately 

4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severely 

5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Extreme 5= Extremely 

9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value

3 2 4 3 1 32431 75

2 1 2 4 2 21242 35

5 3 5 4 3 53543 20

3 1 3 4 2 31342 70

3 3 4 4 1 33441 50

2 1 2 4 1 21241 45

2 3 3 4 4 23344 72

3 2 3 3 2 32332 47

2 3 3 4 4 23344 72

3 1 5 4 1 31541 70

1 1 2 3 1 11231 70

3 3 4 4 1 33441 40

1 2 2 2 1 12221 72

1 1 1 3 2 11132 50

2 1 1 3 1 21131 100

3 1 1 3 1 31131 85

3 1 2 1 1 31211 40

4 2 3 3 1 42331 60

2 1 2 3 1 21231 62

2 1 4 2 1 21421 77.5

4 1 5 4 1 41541 35

2 1 3 3 1 21331 45

3 1 1 3 1 31131 50

3 1 3 3 2 31332 60

2 3 5 3 1 23531 40

1 1 2 2 2 11222 80

2 1 1 1 2 21112 70

4 3 4 4 2 43442 50

3 2 2 3 1 32231 55

1 2 3 4 3 12343 70

4 3 3 4 1 43341 35

4 1 4 4 1 41441 20

4 3 4 4 3 43443 50

56.74242

 

 

 

62



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

54 
 

 

                                                                                                                                           Annexe 6 

 EQ-5D-L self referring session 3 data spreadsheet

Mobility Self care Usual activities Pain / Discomfort

Anxiety /                

Depression State EQ VAS

Change + 

or -

1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No pain 1=Not anxious

2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slighty 

3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderately 

4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severely 

5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Extreme 5= Extremely 

9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value

3 2 2 2 1 32221 85 10

-35

-20

3 1 2 2 1 31221 70 0

-50

-45

2 2 3 4 3 22343 70 -2

2 2 3 3 2 22332 3 -44

-72

4 1 3 5 1 41351 75 5

3 3 3 3 1 33331 70 0

3 2 4 4 1 32441 45 5

1 2 2 2 1 12221 78 6

-50

-100

3 1 2 3 1 31231 60 -25

3 1 3 2 1 31321 55 15

4 2 4 3 1 42431 75 15

2 1 2 2 1 21221 68 6

2 2 3 3 1 22331 85 7.5

3 1 5 3 1 31531 40 5

3 1 2 2 3 31223 48 3

-50

-60

2 3 3 3 2 23332 35 -5

1 1 2 3 2 11232 80 0

-70

-50

3 3 3 3 1 3331 43 -12

-70

-35

-20

-50

60.27778 -787.5

 

  

63



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

55 
 

 

Annexe 7 

MYMOP Publications 
 

Short list of publications describing evaluations of, or use of, MYMOP. 

1. Chapman R, Norton R, Paterson C. A descriptive outcome study of 291 acupuncture 

patients. The European Journal of Oriental Medicine 2001;48-53. 

2. Hill S, Eckett MJH, Paterson C, Harkness EF. A pilot study to evaluate the effects of 

floatation spa treatment on patients with osteoarthritis. Complementary Therapies in 

Medicine 1999;7:235-8. 

3. Paterson C. Measuring outcome in primary care: a patient-generated measure, MYMOP, 

compared to the SF-36 health survey. British Medical Journal 1996;312:1016-20. 

 

Available online 

4. Paterson C. Complementary practitioners as part of the primary health care team: 

consulting patterns, patient characteristics and patient outcomes. Family Practice 

1997;14:347-54. 

5. Paterson C,.Britten N. In pursuit of patient-centred outcomes: a qualitative evaluation of 

MYMOP, Measure Yourself Medical Outcome Profile. J Health Serv Res Policy 2000;5:27-36. 

6. Paterson C, Langan CE, Mckaig GA, Anderson PM, Maclaine GDH, Rose LH. Assessing 

patient outcomes in acute exacerbations of chronic bronchitis: the measure yourself medical 

outcome profile ( MYMOP), medical outcomes study 6-item general health survey ( MOS-6) 

and EuroQol ( EQ-5D). Quality of Life Research 2000;9:521-7. 

7. Paterson, C. The context, experience and outcome of acupuncture treatment: users' 

perspectives and outcome questionnaire performance. 2002. University of London. PhD 

thesis 

8. Peace G,.Mannasse A. The Cavendish Centre for integrated cancer care: assessment of 

patients' needs and responses. Complementary Therapies in Medicine 2002;10:33-41. 

9. Ritchie, J, Wilkinson, J, Gantley, M., Feder, G., Carter, Y., and Formby, J. A model of 

integrated primary care: anthroposophical medicine. 2001. London, Department of General 

Practice and Primary Care, St Bartholomew's and the Royal London School of Medicine and 

Dentistry, Queen Mary, University of London. 

10. Paterson C, Britten N. Acupuncture for people with chronic illness: combining qualitative 

and quantitative outcome assessment. Journal of Alternative and Complementary Medicine 

2003; 9:671-681 

11. Paterson C. Seeking the patient’s perspective: a qualitative assessment of EuroQol, 

COOP-WONCA Charts and MYMOP2. Quality of Life Research 2004;13: 871-881 

12. Paterson C.(2006) Measuring changes in self-concept: a qualitative evaluation of 

outcome questionnaires in people having acupuncture for their chronic health problems. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Guyatt GH, Juniper EF, Walter S, Griffith L, Goldstein RS. Interpreting treatment effects in randomised trials. 

British Medical Journal 1998;316:690-693.] 
1 MYMOP - Faqs sites.pcmd.ac.uk/mymop/index.php?c=faqs  

64



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

56 
 

 

MYMOP Self referring Session 1                                                                       Annexe 8 

Research ID Age Sex 

Duration 

of problem

Symptom1 

at Time 1 

Symptom 2 

at Time 1

Activity at 

Time 1

Welbeing 

at Time 1

MYMOP 

profile at 

time 1

1 MR 73 M 3M-1YR 3 3 5 0 2.75

2 SL 41 F 5 YRS 4 4 4 5 4.25

3 HW 50 F 1-5 YRS 6 6 6 5 5.75

4 JH 72 F 1-5YRS 3 3 3 3.00

6 MM 73 F 5 YRS 5 5 3 2 3.75

7 WC 50 F 5 YRS 4 3 3 4 3.50

8 SB 27 M 5 YRS 4 6 4 4.67

9 KC 28 F 3M-1YR 4 4 4 3 3.75

10 SP 62 F 1-5 YRS 5 6 4 1 4.00

11 LC 65 F 5 YRS 3 3 5 3 3.50

12 SC 54 F 5 YRS 4 5 5 5 4.75

13 JR 52 M 4-12WKS 3 3 2 0 2.00

14 SJ 54 F 5 YRS 5 4 5 4 4.50

15 OS 68 F 5 YRS 2 3 1 2.00

16 MB 58 F 1-5 YRS 3 3 3 3 3.00

#DIV/0!

17 PP F 1-5 YRS 5 3 5 2 3.75

18 MH 58 F 5 YRS 4 3 5 1 5.29

19 JH 35 M 3M-1Y 2 5 4 3 3.50

20 PH 60 M 3M-1Y 4 3 4 2 3.25

21 GG 60 F 3M-1Y 5 3 5 3 4.00

22 KW 26 F 5 YRS 3 5 5 4 4.25

23 MC 83 F 5 YRS 4 3 1 2.67

24 MB 40 F 5 YRS 3 3 3 3 3.00

25 AW 54 F 5 YRS 4 2 3 3 3.00

26 SR 38 F 3M-1Y 4 4 5 4.33

27 RW 29 F 1-5 YRS 5 2 5 1 3.25

28 JM 59 F 5 YRS 0 6 5 3.67

29 ST 61 F 5 YRS 4 5 3 3 3.75

30 CS 41 M 1-5 YRS 4 5 6 5 5.00

31 JB 60 F 4-12WKS 5 4 4 2 3.75

32 DT 40 M 1-5 YRS 5 3 6 5 4.75

Number of clients 31 26 31 30 29.50

Averages 3.8387097 3.8846154 4.225806 2.866667 3.70

SESSION 1

 

 

  

65



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

57 
 

 

                                                         MYMOP Self referring -Session 3                                 Annexe 9 

 

Symptom1 

at Time 2

Symptom2 

at Time 2

Activity at 

Time 2

Wellbeing 

at Time 2

MYMOP 

Profile at 

time 2

Change in 

symptom 1

Change in 

symptom2

Change in 

activity

Change in 

wellbeing

Change in 

profile 

score Symptom 3

1 2 2 2 1.75 -2 -1 -3 2 -1

#DIV/0! -4 -4 -4 -5 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! -6 -6 -6 -5 #DIV/0!

3 3 3 3.00 0 0 0 0 0

#DIV/0! -5 -5 -3 -2 #DIV/0!

1 3 2 2 2.00 -3 0 -1 -2 -1.5

5 6 2 4.33 1 0 0 -2 -0.33333

#DIV/0! -4 -4 -4 -3 #DIV/0!

6 5 5 4 5.00 1 -1 1 3 1

3 3 3 1 2.50 0 0 -2 -2 -1

4 5 5 4 4.50 0 0 0 -1 -0.25

3 3 2 0 2.00 0 0 0 0 0

#DIV/0! -5 -4 -5 -4 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! -2 0 -3 -1 #DIV/0!

3 3 3 3 3.00 0 0 0 0 0

#DIV/0! 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

4 3 4 2 3.25 -1 0 -1 0 -0.5

4 3 4 3 3.50 0 0 -1 2 -1.78947

1 2 2 4 2.25 -1 -3 -2 1 -1.25

2 2 2 2 2.00 -2 -1 -2 0 -1.25

5 3 5 4 4.25 0 0 0 1 0.25

4 4 5 4 4.25 1 -1 0 0 0

#DIV/0! -4 0 -3 -1 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! -3 -3 -3 -3 #DIV/0!

4 1 3 3 2.75 0 -1 0 0 -0.25

4 4 2 3.33 0 0 0 -3 -1

#DIV/0! -5 -2 -5 -1 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! 0 -6 -5 0 #DIV/0!

3 4 3 3 3.25 -1 -1 0 0 -0.5

#DIV/0! -4 -5 -6 -5 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! -5 -4 -4 -2 #DIV/0!

#DIV/0! -5 -3 -6 -5 #DIV/0!

18 15 18 18 17.25 -13 -11 -13 -12 -12.25

3.3333333 3.0666667 3.5 2.666667 3.14 -0.505376 -0.817949 -0.72581 -0.2 -0.56228

FOLLOW UP SESSION 3

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

58 
 

 

GP commissioned MYMOP  session 1                       Annexe 10 

Age Sex 

Duration of 

problem

Symptom1 

at Time 1 

Symptom 

2 at Time 

1

Activity at 

Time 1

Welbeing 

at Time 1

MYMOP 

profile at 

time 1

26 F 3mnths - 1 4 4 6 4 4.5

62 F 3mnths - 1 5 0 6 5 4

82 F 1 - 5 yrs 3 4 4 3 3.5

60 F 1 - 5 yrs 3 4 1 6 3.5

60 M 3mnths - 1yr 4 4 5 4 4.25

62 F over 5yrs 3 3 5 4 3.75

34 F 1 - 5 yrs 4 5 3 2 3.5

69 F 1 - 5 yrs 4 4 5 1 3.5

40 F 3mnth - 1yr 3 2 3 2 2.5

49 F 3month - 1 4 6 5 5 5

77 M 3mnths - 1 2 2 1 1 1.5

44 F 3mnths - 1 4 4 5 4 4.25

12 F 4 - 12wks 5 6 6 5 5.5

44 F 1 - 5yrs 4 4 4 3 3.75

62 M over 5yrs 5 5 5 5 5

60 M 3mnths - 1 2 2 3 2 2.25

50 F 5 yrs + 5 3 4 4 4

51 F 3mnths - 1yr 2 4 2 0 2

62 F 3mnth - 1 5 5 5 5 5

52 F 3mnths - 1yr 6 6 6 6 6

14 M 1 - 5 yrs 5 4 3 5 4.25

48 F 3mnths - 1yr 5 3 5 3 4

56 F 1 - 5yrs 1 0 1 0 0.5

63 F 4 - 12wks 5 0 3 1 2.25

68 F 3mnths - 1yr 5 6 6 5 5.5

55 F 0ver 5yrs 4 3 4 4 3.75

76 M 1 - 5yrs 4 3 3 3 3.25

38 F 1 - 5 yrs 6 6 5 5 5.5

40 M 5yrs + 2 1 4 2 2.25

56 F over 5yrs 3 4 5 3 3.75

24 F 3mnths - 1yr 4 4 4 4 4

45 F 3mnths -1yr 3 3 4 2 3

72 F 3mnths - 1yr 5 4 4 1 3.5

MEAN 3.91 3.58 4.09 3.30 3.72

STDEV 1.23 1.70 1.44 1.70 1.23 

 

  

67



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

59 
 

 

GP commissioned MYMOP -follow up                                          Annexe 11 
 

 

CHANGE

Symptom1 

at Time 2

Symptom2 

at Time 2

Activity at 

Time 2

Wellbeing 

at Time 2

MYMOP 

Profile at 

time 2

Change in 

symptom 

1

Change in 

symptom2

Change in 

activity

Change in 

wellbeing

Change in 

profile 

score

2 4 3 0 2.25 -2 0 -3 -4 -2.25

4 0 3 5 3 -1 0 -3 0 -1

1 3 2 3 2.25 -2 -1 -2 0 -1.25

4 3 3 4 3.5 1 -1 2 -2 0

3 2 3 3 2.75 -1 -2 -2 -1 -1.5

4 4 6 5 4.75 1 1 1 1 1

3 3 2 3 2.75 -1 -2 -1 1 -0.75

4 3 4 1 3 0 -1 -1 0 -0.5

2 3 2 2 2.25 -1 1 -1 0 -0.25

4 6 6 5 5.25 0 0 1 0 0.25

0 1 1 1 0.75 -2 -1 0 0 -0.75

4 4 4 4 4 0 0 -1 0 -0.25

6 6 5 1 4.5 1 0 -1 -4 -1

5 5 5 6 5.25 1 1 1 3 1.5

5 3 5 4 4.25 0 -2 0 -1 -0.75

1 3 3 2 2.25 -1 1 0 0 0

4 2 4 2 3 -1 -1 0 -2 -1

6 5 6 6 5.75 1 0 1 1 0.75

4 4 3 4 3.75 -1 0 0 -1 -0.5

3 0 3 1 1.75 2 0 2 1 1.25

1 0 1 1 0.75 -4 0 -2 0 -1.5

4 6 3 2 3.75 -1 0 -3 -3 -1.75

4 3 4 3 3.5 0 0 0 -1 -0.25

2 3 3 0 2 -2 0 0 -3 -1.25

5 6 5 0 4 -1 0 0 -5 -1.5

3 2 1 2 2 1 1 -3 0 -0.25

1 3 4 1 2.25 -2 -1 -1 -2 -1.5

3 4 2 2 2.75 -1 0 -2 -2 -1.25

3 2 3 1 2.25 0 -1 -1 -1 -0.75

3 3 3 2 2.75 -2 -1 -1 1 -0.75

3.27 3.20 3.40 2.53 3.10 -0.60 -0.30 -0.67 -0.80 -0.59

1.51 1.69 1.43 1.76 1.25 1.30 0.88 1.42 1.77 0.90

30

FOLLOW-UP

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

68



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

60 
 

 

                                                              Annexe 12 
 

 

Research 

ID Mobility Self care Usual activities Pain / Discomfort

Anxiety /                

Depression State Result

1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No problems 1=No pain 1=Not anxious

2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slight 2= Slighty 

3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderate 3= Moderately 

4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severe 4= Severely 

5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Unable to 5= Extreme 5= Extremely 

9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value 9= Missing value

2012/002 1 3 3 3 4 13334 0.372

2012/003 4 2 3 3 3 42333 0.496

2012/004 3 3 3 3 1 33331 0.587

2012/005 2 1 3 2 4 21324 0.444

2012/006 3 1 2 2 2 31222 0.666

2012/007 3 3 3 3 3 33333 0.516

2012/008 2 1 2 3 1 21231 0.71

2012/009 4 2 3 3 1 42331 0.567

2012/010 3 1 2 2 1 31221 0.723

2012/011 1 2 5 3 1 12531 0.346

2012/012 2 1 2 2 1 21221 0.735

2012/013 4 3 4 4 3 43443 0.206

2012/016 5 3 4 5 3 53453 -0.28

2012/017 1 1 1 3 2 11132 0.74

2012/018 4 1 4 4 3 41443 0.31

2012/020 4 3 4 4 3 43443 0.206

2012/021 2 2 2 3 2 22232 0.567

2012/022 1 1 2 2 5 11225 0.287

2012/023 1 1 1 1 1 11111 1

2012/024 4 1 4 4 4 41444 0.18

2012/025 4 1 4 4 4 41444 0.18

2012/028 2 1 3 3 1 21331 0.703

2012/032 1 1 2 3 2 11232 0.711

2012/035 1 1 1 1 1 11111 1

2012/040 2 2 2 3 2 22232 0.567

2013/002 3 2 4 3 4 32434 0.256

2013/003 2 1 2 3 1 21231 0.71

2013/004 1 1 1 1 1 11111 1

2013/005 4 3 4 5 4 43454 -0.134

2013/007 2 1 2 3 1 21231 0.71

2013/008 3 2 2 2 1 32221 0.636

2013/012 2 1 3 3 2 21332 0.647

2013/016 3 1 3 3 2 31332 0.635

2013/022 2 1 3 3 1 21331 0.703

Mean 0.520647

Median 0.5375

Standard deviation 0.293194

GP commissioned EQ-5D-L  session1

 

 

 

  

69



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

61 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         Annexe 14 
UK (English) v.2 © 2009 EuroQol Group. EQ-5D™ is a trade mark of the EuroQol Group 

 
Under each heading, please tick the ONE box that best describes your health TODAY  

 
MOBILITY 
 
I have no problems in walking about      q 
I have slight problems in walking about                          q 

I have moderate problems in walking about     q 

I have severe problems in walking about                          q 
I am unable to walk about       q 
 

SELF-CARE 

I have no problems washing or dressing myself                         q 

I have slight problems washing or dressing myself                         q 

I have moderate problems washing or dressing myself                        q 
I have severe problems washing or dressing myself                                             q 
I am unable to wash or dress myself      q 

 

USUAL ACTIVITIES (e.g. work, study, housework, family or leisure activities) 

I have no problems doing my usual activities                        q 

I have slight problems doing my usual activities                        q 

I have moderate problems doing my usual activities                                            q 
I have severe problems doing my usual activities                        q 
I am unable to do my usual activities                         q 
 

PAIN / DISCOMFORT 

I have no pain or discomfort       q 
I have slight pain or discomfort                           q 
I have moderate pain or discomfort      q 
I have severe pain or discomfort      q 
I have extreme pain or discomfort      q 

 

ANXIETY / DEPRESSION 

I am not anxious or depressed                           q 
I am slightly anxious or depressed      q 
I am moderately anxious or depressed                          q 

I am severely anxious or depressed      q 
I am extremely anxious or depressed                          q 

  

70



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

62 
 

 

Latest Results Data 

Table Showing EQ-5D-5L Results for Commissioned Hydrotherapy Patients  

 Before treatment 

N=56 

At follow-up   

N=46 

Mean  EQ-Index 0.544  (0.280) 0.530  (0.314) 

Median EQ-Index 0.587 0.603 

 

Scale: 1 = full health and 0 = death 

Table Showing EQ VAS Results for Commissioned Hydrotherapy Patients  

 Before treatment 

N= 49 

At follow-up   

N=43 

Mean  EQ VAS 

(Standard deviation) 
58  (28) 65 (24) 

Median EQ VAS 60 70 

 

100= “The best health you can imagine”  

0= “The worst health you can imagine” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

63 
 

 

Table Showing MYMOP Results for Commissioned Hydrotherapy Users 

 MYMOP 

scores 

Before 

treatment 

N=48 

At follow-up 

N=39 
Change in score 

Mean (SD) Mean (SD) Mean (SD) 
95% confidence 

interval 

Symptom 1 4.02     (1.21) 3.28     (1.62) 0.79     (1.40) 0.39, 1.18 

Symptom 2 3.44     (1.76) 3.08     (1.66) 0.41     (1.12) 0.10, 0.72 

Activity 4.08     (1.47) 3.33     (1.49) 0.72     (1.38) 0.33, 1.11 

Wellbeing 2.96     (1.74) 2.21     (1.76) 0.90     (1.83) 0.38, 1.42 

MYMOP profile 3.63     (1.16) 2.97     (1.22) 0.71     (1.00) 0.43, 0.99 

Scale: 0 = “as good as it can be” to 6 = “as bad as it could be.” 

79% of patients had improved.  The mean improvement was 1.04. 

13% of patients had got worse.  The mean was -0.95. 

8% remained unchanged 

 

Graph Comparing Average MYMOP Results Before Hydrotherapy Treatment and  

After Session Two

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

5

5.5

6

Symptom

1 

Symptom

2

Activity Wellbeing MYMOP

Profile

A
ve

ra
ge

 M
Y

M
O

P 
S

co
re

 0
 =

 G
oo

d
 6

 =
 B

ad

Before treatment N= 48

After session two N= 39 

72



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

64 
 

 

Acknowledgements 

Emma Valerio – Community Liaison Co-ordinator John Lewis-Peterborough, and 

John Lewis ‘GJT board’ for supporting a local community project, and funding the 

secondment of Mrs Sam Ring for six months. 

The Inclusion Manager - Leonie McCarthy and her team at Peterborough City 

Council  

Louise Ravenscroft, Family Voice- (Peterborough)and her team of volunteers.  For 

their support, and the use of the database. Thanks to the families who allowed 

Sam to join in with some of the ‘family fun’ on her days away from the hydropool. 

Aquatic physiotherapy specialist Mike Maynard for sharing his expertise. 

The physiotherapists Pat Baker and Lee Croft for all their help and knowledge 

All of the members of SURF (Service User’s Rehabilitation Forum)  

The Management, lifeguards of the hydrotherapy pool–for their expertise 

All the users of St.George’s hydrotherapy pool-without their input of information 

and sharing their experiences this would not have been possible 

This paper could not have been written without the invaluable help of Karen and 

Rob Oldale who first raised the issue of lack of hydrotherapy facilities and who are 

full-time supporters of St George’s. 

Special thanks to Angela Burrows, previously working with LINks, now Chief 

Operating Officer for Healthwatch Peterborough, whose continued support and 

guidance ensured the project, ran smoothly.  

                                                      

              

   

73



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

65 
 

 

 

  

74



St George’s Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation   
 

66 
 

 

 

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6(a) 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Cathy Mitchell/Jana Burton Tel.  

 

SECTION 256 AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AREA TEAM AND PETERBOROUGH 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM Cathy Mitchell, Local Chief Officer, Borderline and Peterborough LCG and Jana Burton, 
Peterborough City Council 

1. The Board has asked to consider and comment upon the contents of this report prior to 
submission to the Area Team 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and Peterborough City Council (PCC) are 
required to draw up a draft Section 256 and agree the outcomes that will be delivered from 
the funding held by the Local Area Team.  The Local Area Team will release funding to 
PCC social services based on the evidence that the outcomes have been delivered in 
2013/14. 

 
1.2 this is additional money and is paid to Local Area Teams by the Department of Health to 

invest in adult social care services to promote better services, as detailed by the National 
Health Service (NHS) Transfer Directions 2013. 
 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The purpose is funding for adult social care support in the NHS to benefit social care 
services that have mutual benefits to health.  

 
2.2 The attached Section 256 has been drawn up between the CCG and PCC to align with the 

 local needs of the population across the health and social care system.  The Joint 
 Commissioning Forum has been asked to comment on the draft plan prior to it being 
 submitted to the Area Team for their input and agreement as the budget holders who 
 will transfer the funding to PCC. Details of the Section 256 including the  metrics is   
attached. 

 
2.3  There is a requirement for the Final Version of the Section 256 to be presented to the 

 Health and Wellbeing  Board in September 2013 as part of the national governance and 
 approvals process.   

 
 
3. FUTURE PLANS 

 
3.1 In the spending review the government unveiled plans to create a £3.8bn “pooled fund” 

 between the NHS, the Department of Health, and the Department for Communities and 
 Local Government for the Joint commissioning of health and social care.  The government 
 is currently reviewing the creation of an Integration Fund from 2015/16.  The current 
 discussions are considering top slicing the CCG’s budgets nationally to create a new 
 pooled health and social care budget, which would equate to approximately 3% of the CCG 
 allocation.   There are discussions regarding the role and responsibility that the Health and 
 Wellbeing Boards will undertake in the oversight and governance of the Integrated Fund. 

77



 The Joint Commissioning Forum  will be updated  as the national position  becomes 
 clearer and then develop plans for the future commissioning related to the Integrated Fund     
in 15/16.  

 
 
4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 The Joint Commissioning Forum has endorsed the attached draft Section 256 prior to 

submission to Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2013. The draft agreement has 
been sent to the Area Team but no comments have been received to date from the Area 
Team. 

 
 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

5.1 To enable final consideration and comments to be made by the Health & Wellbeing Board 
prior to submission to the Local Area Team for release of funds . 
 

5.2 To request the Area Team Representative on the HWB to feedback comments on the 
Agreement in order that the Section 256 Agreement can be signed by PCC and the Area 
Team. 

 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 7(a) 

DATE: 12th September 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Sue Mitchell, Interim Director of Public Health Tel. 01733 
207173 

 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Sue Mitchell Deadline date :   

 
 

1.    Review of the NHS Peterborough PNA has concluded that there has not been any 
substantial change to the pharmaceutical needs of the local population since publication of 
the PNA in February 2011.  
 

2.    As a result it is recommended that producing a new PNA would be a disproportionate 
response, at this time. 
 

3.    The HWB is required to publish a fully revised PNA by 1st April 2015. This is a significant 
undertaking involving at least 60 days consultation and board level sign off.  It is 
recommended the process starts at least 12 months ahead of the publication date. 

 
4.   That in the mean time, as a separate piece of work, opportunities to further involve 

community pharmacies in the development and support of the Urgent Care Pathway are 
explored. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

This report is to update the Board on its statutory responsibility to maintain and publish a  
           Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA). The full background to this was presented      
            in a previous report to the HWB in June 2013. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

          From April 1st 2013 the Health and Wellbeing Board has statutory responsibility for the PNA       
          for its area.  
 

• NHS Peterborough published the current PNA in February 2011 
 

•    In order to meet its statutory requirements the Health and Wellbeing Board is required to 
review the current PNA, identify any changes to the need for pharmaceutical services in its 
area and assess whether any changes are significant. 
 

•    Decide whether producing a new PNA at this time is a disproportionate response, or not. 
 
 

3. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD PNA REVIEW 
 

• The key messages from NHS Peterbough’s PNA are reproduced in Appendix 1 to provide 
background to this review. 
 

• With the support of the public health team we considered the following aspects  

101



 
             The health needs of the population of Peterborough  
             Numbers and type of pharmacy services provided 
             The commissioning of public health enhanced services eg stop smoking   
             New housing developments planned or started since the PNA  
             Changes to location and nature of GP premises and primary care facilities 

 
            Review of these areas did not identify any substantial change to the pharmaceutical needs  
            of the population. 

 

• NHS Peterborough’s PNA demonstrated that there was adequate provision of 
pharmaceutical services in February 2011.  Appendix 2 provides the background to this 
conclusion.  
 
A key indicator as to whether complete revision of the PNA is required is changes to 
community pharmacy provision since February 2011. This was considered to identify 
whether gaps in service have developed since the PNA was published. The following 
changes were identified. 
 

Change Numbers Comment 

Pharmacy Closures 0  

Pharmacy Openings 2 Both mail/internet pharmacies 

Changes in Opening Hours  12 Six increases in supplementary/core hours 
Six decreases in supplementary/core hours 

 
In all cases changes in community pharmacy opening hours were minor (eg changes in 
lunch breaks) and have not affected the overall provision of pharmaceutical services.  
 
Particular concerns had been raised about access to pharmaceutical services and 
dispensing of prescriptions outside of normal working hours.  Board members may wish to 
focus on this area as a separate strand of work as part of the review and development of 
the Urgent Care Pathway. 
 
The conclusion of this review is that there has not been any substantial change in access to 
pharmaceutical services since February 2011. 
 

• A second key indicator to consider is whether, or not, new housing developments have 
started, or been planned, since publication of the PNA.  The Housing Development Plan 
for Peterborough UA 2013 makes the following statements 

 
“In this monitoring period Peterborough has continued to see housing 
growth, although like all other parts of the region, the level of growth is 
lower than that experienced between 2005 and 2010 as a result of the 
contraction within the construction industry in this economic climate. 
 
From 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 there were 772 net completions 
within the authority area. Of these 338 (43.8%) were built in urban 
extensions, 367 (47.5%) were built in the rest of the urban area, and 67 
(8.7%) were built in the rural area.” 

 
Growth in housing, and any associated increase in pharmaceutical provision was 
considered as part of the PNA in 2011.  Growth in housing has been slower than 
anticipated and in addition no housing developments have been planned that were not 
originally considered within NHS Peterborough’s PNA. 
.  

4. CONSULTATION 
 
During the process of developing a PNA the HWB must consult organisations identified in 
regulations at least once. There is a minimum period of 60 days for consultation responses. 

102



 
5. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

• Decision that the current PNA is up to date and meets requirements. 

• Agreement by commissioning partners to consider increased involvement of community 
pharmacists within the Urgent Care Pathway. 

• Development and publication of fully revised PNA by 1st April 2015   
. 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Statutory requirement.  
 
7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 

There are no alternative options. 
 
8. IMPLICATIONS 
 

• Resource to revise and publish updated PNA by 1st April 2015. Based on previous 
experience, and national guidance, it can take up to 12 months to develop a PNA that 
meets regulatory requirements. 

 

• Failure to comply with regulatory requirements about production of a PNA, and produce a 
robust PNA, could lead to legal challenges because of the PNA’s relevance to decisions 
about commissioning services and new pharmacy openings. The risk of challenge is 
significant and the HWB is advised to add the PNA to their risk register. 

 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments – Information pack for local authority health & 
wellbeing boards (DH) 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-
information-pack 
 
NHS Peterborough PNA (2011)  
http://www.lpc-
online.org.uk/bkpage/files/46/nhs_peterborough_pna__final__board_approved.pdf 
 

103



 
Appendix 1 

 
Key Messages from the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Peterborough, 2011 
 
1.17  As NHS Peterborough move towards world class standards of commissioning, we 
         recognise that our local pharmacies offer dispensing services along with a range of 
         'additional and enhanced services'. We wish to support and encourage the move 
          towards greater provision of clinical services from community pharmacy while 
          maintaining good access to provision of medicines. 
 
1.18 Pharmacists help and support patients to understand their medicines. This reduces the 
        problems associated with taking too much or too little or not getting the best from 
        medicines. The advanced service Medicines Use Review (MUR) has the potential to 
        improve understanding and use of medicines, particularly in priority areas such as 
        cancer, respiratory and cardiovascular disease. However, it is under-utilised. 
 
1.19 Most community pharmacies provide the local minor ailment enhanced service 
        (Pharmacy First), which provides easy access to a range of medicines and avoids the 
        need for GP, Walk In Centre or A/E visits, particularly in areas of Peterborough with 
        higher levels of deprivation. 
 
1.20 Services for those who need them such as stop smoking services, needle exchange, 
         supervised consumption are readily available, however, there is potential for these to 
         make a greater contribution. We have difficult issues to address regarding sexual health 
         and in particular, teenage pregnancies. NHS Peterborough will undertake further work 
        over the next 2 years to identify the best and most cost-effective means to deliver sexual 
        health services. 
 
1.21 Community pharmacies offer advice on healthy lifestyle, being active, eating well, 
        drinking sensibly and stop smoking. However, respondents to our patient survey would 
        like to see blood pressure monitoring, cholesterol testing and weight management 
        programmes being provided in the future. This links with our strategic intentions. 
 
1.22 Pharmacies offer convenient location and extended opening times. Prescriptions can be 
        dispensed and medicines are available to buy over the counter, throughout the normal 
        working week and well into late evenings and during weekends. We have 41 
        pharmacies, which is 1 pharmacy for every 4,350 people within Peterborough. 
        Throughout England there are, on average, 20 pharmacies per 100,000 populations. 
        Peterborough has 23 per 100,000 population. 
 
1.23 Over 98% of those responding to our patient survey indicated that access to pharmacy 
        services was either 'easy or ok'. Even taking into consideration our less urban areas, 
         you are never more than 20 minutes from a pharmacy in NHS Peterborough. This, 
        along with the above average number of pharmacies in Peterborough, demonstrates we 
        already have adequate provision of pharmaceutical services. 
 
1.24 Co-location of pharmaceutical services with other primary care service providers offers 
        both patient and service delivery benefits. The future pharmaceutical services 
        commissioning model will be co-location with other primary care service providers. 
        Where it is of mutual interest and within regulations, we recommend relocation of 
        existing pharmacies. 

 
 
 

104



 
Appendix 2 
 
Current Service Provision 
 

There are 41 community pharmacies within NHS Peterborough (figure 1).  
 
There are three dispensing doctor practices (Ailsworth, Thorney and Fletton practices), 
providing dispensing services to a total of 2,500 patients, one hospital pharmacy, one 
community care centre pharmacy and two dispensing appliance contractors (figure 2). 
  
The two national dispensing appliance contractors (DACs) which together with a number of 
community pharmacies who also provide appliances, meet the need for this type of service 
within NHS Peterborough.  
 
There are five pharmacies which are open for 100 hours or more per week (figure 2). These 
pharmacies are  
 
Asda (Rivergate)  
Pharmacy First (Lincoln Road)  
Sainsbury (Bretton)  
Boots (Bretton)  
Alfa Chemists (Park Road)  
 

         Pharmaceutical services are available from these five pharmacies from 7am until 
midnight (Mon-Sat). On Sunday access is available for 23 hours and throughout the 
night until pharmacies open on Monday mornings. There are, therefore, only 36 hours 
per week (not including Bank Holidays) where there are no pharmaceutical services 
available within Peterborough. These are between the hours of midnight to 7am (Mon-
Fri) and between 4-5pm on Sunday. 

105



106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 8(a) 

12th SEPTEMBER 2013  PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Jana Burton/Mubarak Darbar Tel.  

 

WINTERBOURNE – UPDATE/STOCK TAKE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Director, Safeguarding Adults Board, LGA, LD 
Section 75 Board 

Deadline date : Timetable attached 
Appendix 1 

 
1. The Board are asked to consider and comment upon the contents of this report. 
 
2. The DH Winterbourne View Review Concordat: Programme of Action has asked that the Health & 

Wellbeing Board, Safeguarding Boards and any of the Joint CCG and LA Commissioning Boards 
take an interest in the Winterbourne Review and the progress made.  A stock take report was 
completed and sent to the LGA in July 2013 (See Appendix 2). 

 
3. The Board to be reassured that Peterborough City Council with its partners will meet the  
    timetable set by the DH that by June 2014 it will resettle all the people placed in secure hospital  
    settings back into the community.    
 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Board following presentation at PCC Safeguarding Adults 
Board and the PCC Learning Disabilities Commissioning Executive Board. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with an overview of developments to date 
and satisfy it that appropriate action is being taken. 
 

2.2 This report is for the Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No.  2.2 To actively 
promote partnership working across health and social care in order to further improve 
health and well being of residents. 

  
3.      BACKGROUND - LESSONS LEARNT AND IMPACT 
 
3.1      Winterbourne View was a private hospital owned by Castlebeck. It was based in Hambrook, 

Bristol and was a purpose-built acute service offering assessment, intervention and support 
for people with learning disabilities, complex needs and challenging behaviour. It was 
registered with the Care Quality Commission to provide care for up to 24 patients aged 18 
years and over with a learning disability. It was registered for the treatment of patients 
detained under the Mental Health Act 1983. The hospital opened in December 2006 and 
closed on 22 June 2011. 

 
3.2 A BBC Panorama programme, broadcast on 31 May 2011, showed images of abuse and ill 

treatment of residents at Winterbourne View. 
 
3.3      A review was undertaken by the Department of Health of the roles of the organisations and 

the lessons learnt; this included independent input from recognised experts. 

107



3.4       Following this review and the lessons learnt and good practice has been further 
strengthened and implemented in Peterborough.  . 

 
3.5       A range of measures have been strengthened and new areas of work commenced in light 

of the lessons learned from Winterbourne View including: 
 

• Strengthening joint working arrangement is in place between key partner agencies 
including the Council, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CPCCG), Cambridge and Peterborough Foundation Trust (CPFT) and NHS 
Commissioning Board. 

• Adult Social Care and the CPCCG have assessed, reviewed and are regularly 
monitoring all out of area placements that Peterborough (ASC & CCG) commissions 
and are actively repatriating those people back that wish to return to Peterborough 
in a supported living setting. Those people that wish to stay in placements out of 
area or for whom it is in their best interest to do so are being supported to be 
ordinary residents of that locality in accordance with the National Assistance Act 
1948 and Ordinary Residence Guidance. 

• Greater oversight of all 7 people placed in secure commissioning settings (more 
information in section 3 below) 

• Improved transitions planning for people that move from children’s services into 
adult services particularly when placed in out of area placements with the approval 
of the implementation of a 14 to 25 age transitions team.  This will prevent people 
being placed in out of areas and secure placements and equally important when 
young people are placed there will be a co-ordinated plan to bring them back to 
Peterborough. 

• Implementation of a specialist local Intensive-behavioural Support Team (IST) 
serviced by CPFT who will respond to people that present complex and challenging 
needs and ultimately prevent admissions to secure commissioning settings. 

 
One of the major barriers in keeping people with complex needs in Peterborough has been 
the lack of bespoke housing needed to support people with complex needs in the 
community. A housing needs analysis has been completed which identifies the need and a 
range of accommodation required including bespoke housing which will support people with 
complex needs continue to live in Peterborough in a community setting and prevent the 
need to escalate to a secure out of area placement.  The bespoke housing will also support 
behavioural strategies and intervention as the structure of the accommodation has been 
designed with input from clinical and behavioural specialist. 
 
To avoid future out-of-area placements an Accommodation Planning Process is in place to 
ensure that people from Peterborough continue to live in Peterborough: 

 
The aim of this is:  

 
Ø Prevent the person being away from family and familiar environments 
Ø Quality of care that cannot easily be monitored in out of area 
Ø Re-settlement back in area becoming problematic 
Ø Expensive and very difficult to control costs once out of area 

 
The IST team are working closely with local provider services that support people with 
complex behaviour by supporting them to have strategies in place, ultimately minimising the 
risk of challenging behaviour resulting in appropriate intervention strategies.  This also acts 
proactively by reducing the escalation to a possible secure setting environment. All local 
services will have access to the necessary expertise for this to happen effectively and 
quickly. 

 
Since Dec 2011 the Council has resettled 30 people with a learning disability back to 
Peterborough.  Some of these people were in secure settings; however the vast majority 
were in residential homes. 

 

108



3.6 Adult Social Care are mid way through a major tender exercise which is due to complete by 
autumn 2013 with the aim to increase and strengthen the community support providers for 
local services and the lessons learnt from the review were incorporated within the 
specifications.   

 
3.7 Further work will take place with children’s services on planning from childhood and 

increasing local community based provider support capacity. 
 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TIMETABLE 
 
3.8 Following the Winterbourne Review the Department of Health (DH) set out a timetable for 

commissioning bodies within Health and Local Authorities to work together and meet key 
milestones  to ensure that people who may be inappropriately placed in medium and low 
secure settings and challenging behaviour residential settings are resettled back into their 
local  community  (See Appendix 2) 

 
3.9  Peterborough Adult Social Care  with CPCCG has met the all the milestones to date and 

submitted the information as required to the Department of Health (See Appendix 1)  
 
3.10 Peterborough has in total six people that are in low to medium secure commissioning 

settings and one person in a challenging behaviour residential unit associated with secure 
settings.  Of the six in secure settings, four people have been assessed in conjunction with 
the Secure Commissioning Group, now known as NHS Commissioning Board (NHSCB) 
and local services, to consider moving on to community placements. Three of these people 
are in low level secure units and one person is in a medium secure unit.  The one person in 
a challenging behaviour residential unit associated with the secure setting will also be 
resettled back into Peterborough.   

 
3.11 The remaining two people that are still in medium secure settings are currently assessed to 

remain there for the time being. However their circumstances may change during 2013/14 
and will be under constant review by the local IST with NHSCB. 

 
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Other than our usual practice of working directly with service users, carers and family 
members, no formal consultation is required. However in-depth person centred plans of the 
people to return to Peterborough are in place and regular involvement with parent carers 
and advocates is also undertaken.   

 
5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1 The new framework of high quality and skilled providers will ensure Peterborough City 

Council has both depth and breadth of providers that will support people locally and ensure 
their needs are met without the need to place people in out of area secure type settings. 

 
5.2 Adult Social Care is working closely with Strategic Housing to ensure the right type of 

housing is available for the next 3 to 5 years.    
 
5.3 It is estimated that the average resettlement cost of each person will be in the region of 

£135,000 per annum.  To meet the June 2014 target date of all individuals identified to be 
resettled back to Peterborough and receiving personalised care and support in appropriate 
community settings, a significant resource will need to be found this financial year.  The 
Learning Disabilities Executive Board is aware of this (national) cost pressure and has 
raised this both regionally and nationally as a major issue and concern. 

 
5.4 All the people assessed to be resettled back into Peterborough will be living in the 

community by the DH timetable of June 2014. 
 
 

109



 
 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

6.1 The board to consider the report and make comments.   
 
7.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

 
7.1 The DH Winterbourne Review sets out clear objectives that the Council and its partner 

agencies are to achieve by June 2014.  Leaving people in secure settings was not the 
option. 

 
8.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 There will be a financial implication as to resettle each person in the community will cost 
circa £130,000 per annum. 

 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
DH Winterbourne View Review Concordat: Programme of Action 
DH Winterbourne View Time Table 
Winterbourne Stock Take 

 
 
 

110



Appendix 1 
 

 
  
 

By March 
2013 

From April 
2013 

By 1 June 
2013 

By Dec 
2013 

By end 
2013 

From 2014 By April 
2014 

By 1 June 
2014 

The 
NHSCB will 
ensure that 
all PCTs 
develop 
local 
registers of 
all people 
with 
challenging 
behaviour 
in NHS-
funded 
care.  
 
 

KPIs from the 
DH, the 
Information 
Centre for 
Health and 
Social Care and 
the NHSCB to 
support 
commissioners 
in monitoring 
their progress 
from April 2013.  
 

Reviews 
completed 
and a 
personal 
care plan 
agreed for 
each 
individual 
based 
around 
their and 
their 
families’ 
needs and 
agreed 
outcomes 

The DH will 
publish a 
report on 
progress  
including 
reporting 
comparative 
information 
on localities. 

The DH 
will publish 
guidance 
on best 
practice 
around 
positive 
behaviour 
support so 
that 
physical 
restraint is 
only ever 
used as a 
last resort 
where the 
safety of 
individuals 
would 
otherwise 
be at risk 
and never 
to punish 
or 
humiliate 

The DH and 
DfE will 
work to 
introduce a 
new single 
assessment 
process and 
Education, 
Health and 
Care Plan to 
replace the 
current 
system for 
young 
people up to 
the age of 
25. 

The audit of 
current 
services for 
people with 
challenging 
behaviour 
will be 
repeated. 

All 
individuals 
should be 
receiving 
personalised 
care and 
support in 
appropriate 
community 
settings 

111



112

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

  

W
in
te
rb
o
u
rn
e
 V
ie
w
 J
o
in
t 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

In
it
ia
l 
S
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 o
f 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
k
e
y
 W

in
te
rb
o
u
rn
e
 V
ie
w
 C
o
n
c
o
rd
a
t 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 W

in
te
rb
o
u
rn
e
 V
ie
w
 J
o
in
t 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 a
s
k
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 n
o
 l
a
te
r 
th
a
n
 1
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
4
. 

 T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
to
 b
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
T
h
e
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
a
t 
h
e
lp
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 c
a
n
 

b
e
s
t 
b
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 
P
le
a
s
e
 m
a
rk
 o
n
 y
o
u
r 
re
tu
rn
 i
f 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 a
n
d
 a
tt
a
c
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
ils
. 

 T
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
fo
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
le
tt
e
r 
fr
o
m
 N
o
rm

a
n
 L
a
m
b
, 
M
in
is
te
r 
o
f 
S
ta
te
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
H
W
B
B
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

to
o
l 
fo
r 
y
o
u
r 
H
W
B
B
. 

 W
h
ile
 t
h
is
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 i
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 W

in
te
rb
o
u
rn
e
 V
ie
w
, 
it
 w
ill
 f
e
e
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
o
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 j
o
in
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
S
A
F
).
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
ile
d
 h
e
re
 w
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 T
h
is
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 c
a
n
 o
n
ly
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 a
s
k
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 r
o
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
s
 b
u
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
C
G
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W

e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
s
. 

 T
h
e
 d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 s
to
c
k
ta
k
e
 i
s
 F
ri
d
a
y
 5
 J
u
ly
. 
A
n
y
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 o
r 
fi
n
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
to
 S
a
ra
h
.B
ro
w
n
@
lo
c
a
l.
g
o
v
.u
k

 

(E
x

te
n

si
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 S

a
ra

h
 B

ro
w

n
 t

il
l 

th
e

 1
2

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

) 
 A
n
 e
a
s
y
 r
e
a
d
 v
e
rs
io
n
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 L
G
A
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
  

113



 

2
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

  

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 L

o
ca

l 
S

to
ck

ta
k

e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3
 

1
.  
  
 M

o
d

e
ls

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

is
su

e
s 

a
ri

si
n

g
 

G
o

o
d

 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

e
x

a
m

p
le

 

(p
le

a
se

 t
ic

k
 

a
n

d
 a

tt
a

ch
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

1
.1

 A
re

 y
o

u
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
in

g
 l

o
ca

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

th
e

 L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
(s

).
 

Y
e

s.
  L

o
ca

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 

si
n

ce
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
sh

ir
e

 &
 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

H
S

 (
n

o
w

 C
C

G
) 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 

(A
S

C
).

  
 M

o
re

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y

 t
h

e
se

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 

re
v

is
e

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
  t

h
e

 W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
C

G
s.

  
T

h
is

 i
s 

o
v

e
rs

e
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l (

P
C

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
sh

ir
e

 

a
n

d
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
li

n
ic

a
l C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
  

(C
&

P
C

C
G

) 
S7

5
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

 

  
  

1
.2

 A
re

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
; 

if
 s

o
, 

w
h

o
. 

(P
le

a
se

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 

o
n

 h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
sp

e
ci

a
li

st
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 &

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

).
  

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 &

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 T
ru

st
 

(C
P

F
T

),
 P

C
C

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 P

C
C

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 

T
e

a
m

, 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 R
e

g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

La
n

d
lo

rd
s,

 

N
H

S
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 S

p
e

ci
a

li
st

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 T
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 a

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

se
ct

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
 

 

  
  

1
.3

 H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

k
in

d
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

n
e

e
d

s.
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
co

n
si

d
e

rs
 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 p
la

ce
d

 i
n

 s
e

cu
re

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 

w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
n

e
e

d
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

 n
e

e
d

s 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

so
u

n
d

 i
n

te
ll

ig
e

n
ce

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t

y
p

e
 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

b
o

th
 f

o
r 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 

p
ip

e
li

n
e

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 

 

  
  

1
.4

 I
s 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
 (

o
r 

a
lt

e
rn

a
te

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t)

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 (
LD

P
B

),
 

LD
 s

7
5

 E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 v

a
ri

o
u

s 
su

b
 g

ro
u

p
s 

o
f 

th
e

 L
D

P
B

 

a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s 
B

o
a

rd
 a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y 

k
e

p
t 

u
p

 t
o

 

  
  

114



 

3
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

d
a

te
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

ve
, 

re
p

o
rt

s 

a
re

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l C
a

re
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s.

 

W
e

 w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
xt

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 (
H

W
B

B
) 

in
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.
 

1
.5

 I
s 

th
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

d
e

li
ve

ry
 a

n
d

 

re
ce

iv
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
o

n
 p

ro
g

re
ss

. 

T
h

e
 L

D
 s

7
5

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 B

o
a

rd
 i

s,
 i

n
 e

ff
e

ct
, 

a
 s

u
b

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 H
W

B
B

. 
 S

e
n

io
r 

e
xe

cu
ti

ve
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
a

re
 a

ls
o

 b
ri

e
fe

d
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y
. 

 A
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 g

o
 t

o
 t

h
e

 H
W

B
B

 i
n

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 

 

  
  

1
.6

 D
o

e
s 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

v
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 r

e
so

lv
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

y
 

a
ri

se
. 

Y
e

s.
  

 

  
  

1
.7

 A
re

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
ie

s 
to

 lo
ca

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l b

o
d

ie
s 

cl
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 –

 e
.g

. 
H

W
B

 B
o

a
rd

, 
N

H
S

E
 L

o
ca

l A
re

a
 T

e
a

m
s 

/ 
C

C
G

 f
o

ra
, 

cl
in

ic
a

l 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
&

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s.

  

Y
e

s.
  

  
  

1
.8

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

is
su

e
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 O
rd

in
a

ry
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ce

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
ri

sk
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

o
n

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
o

m
 P

C
C

 a
n

d
 C

C
G

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
rs

 a
re

 i
n

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
C

C
G

/L
A

. 
 

Lo
ca

l c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
rs

 h
a

ve
 in

v
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

 S
e

cu
re

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 (
S

C
G

) 
a

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 (
N

C
G

) 
to

 f
in

d
 a

 r
e

so
lu

ti
o

n
. 

 

  
  

1
.9

 H
a

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 b
e

e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s 
w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 u

se
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
y

o
u

r 
p

la
n

. 
 

Y
e

s.
  

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 lo

ca
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

s 
to

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
s 

a
re

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 s

o
 

p
e

o
p

le
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
e

te
ri

o
ra

te
 o

n
ce

 r
e

p
a

tr
ia

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 T
h

e
se

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

st
ra

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 h
a

v
in

g
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
sp

e
n

d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s.
 

  
  

2
. 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

e
y

 
  

  
  

2
.1

 A
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
st

s 
o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
 Y

e
s.

 

 

  
  

115



 

4
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

2
.2

 I
s 

th
e

re
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 

so
u

rc
e

(s
) 

o
f 

fu
n

d
s 

to
 m

e
e

t 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

co
st

s,
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s,
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
a

re
 a

n
d

 N
H

S
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
a

l C
a

re
. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

re
 i

s 
cl

a
ri

ty
 o

f 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
, 

th
o

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 d
o

e
s 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

n
 a

 c
a

se
 

b
y

 c
a

se
 b

a
si

s 
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 a
n

y
 c

o
st

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

 

A
S

C
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

. 

 

  
  

2
.3

 D
o

 y
o

u
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 u
se

 S
7

5
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

&
 r

o
b

u
st

. 
Y

e
s.

   
H

o
w

e
v

e
r,

 t
h

e
 L

D
 s

7
5

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
e

xt
e

n
d

 

to
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
 a

s 
it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
a

 p
o

o
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  
T

h
e

 

ri
sk

s 
a

re
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 o
n

 a
 c

a
se

 b
y

 c
a

se
 b

a
si

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
C

G
. 

 

  
  

2
.4

 I
s 

th
e

re
 a

 p
o

o
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 /
 o

r 
cl

e
a

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

ri
sk

. 
N

o
 p

o
o

le
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
T

h
e

 s
7

5
 i

s 
a

 f
ix

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 l

a
rg

e
ly

 

st
a

ff
in

g
. 

  

  
  

2
.5

 H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 a
n

y
 p

o
o

l.
 

N
o

 p
o

o
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

  
  

2
.6

 D
o

e
s 

it
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

co
st

s 
o

f 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

N
o

 p
o

o
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 A
S

C
 h

a
s 

e
st

im
a

te
d

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l g
ro

w
th

 m
o

n
e

y
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 A
S

C
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

u
rn

in
g

 1
8

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 

  
  

2
.7

 B
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 is

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
st

ra
te

g
y

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 

th
a

t 
is

   
b

u
il

t 
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
co

st
, 

fu
tu

re
 i

n
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

sa
v

in
g

s.
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

st
ra

te
g

y 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 c

o
st

s 
a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s,

 

th
o

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l

ig
h

t 
o

f 

st
ru

ct
u

ra
l 

ch
a

n
g

e
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

C
G

s.
 

 
 

3
. 

C
a

se
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

  
  

  
  

3
.1

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

 j
o

in
t,

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
  c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
te

a
m

. 
  

  

3
.2

 I
s 

th
e

re
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 t
e

a
m

. 

Y
e

s.
 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
is

 i
s 

a
 w

e
ll 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 t
e

a
m

. 

 
  

  

3
.3

 D
o

e
s 

it
 h

a
ve

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

-p
ro

v
is

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
C

&
P

C
C

G
 h

a
s 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
n

si
v

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a

m
 

(I
S

T
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y

 C
P

F
T

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

d
u

lt
s 

w
it

h
 

co
m

p
le

x 
n

e
e

d
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

T
h

is
 t

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

s 
v

e
ry

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 le
a

rn
in

g
 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 a

u
ti

sm
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 t
e

a
m

 b
y 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  
  

3
.4

 I
s 

th
e

re
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 

o
ve

ra
ll

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

s 
th

e
 l

e
a

d
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

r 
fo

r 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

, 

w
it

h
 C

P
F

T
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 I
ST

. 
  T

h
e

re
 is

 s
o

m
e

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 a
b

o
u

t 

th
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 s
it

 

w
it

h
 C

P
F

T
 a

ro
u

n
d

 c
li

n
ic

a
l 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y

, 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l a
ro

u
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

o
ve

rs
e

e
n

 b
y

 t
h

e
 L

D
 s

7
5

 E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
  

  
  

116



 

5
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

 

3
.5

 A
re

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

re
st

s 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 o
f 

fa
m

ily
 c

a
re

rs
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

b
y

 n
a

m
e

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 /

 o
r 

a
d

v
o

ca
te

s.
 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 I
S

T
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
ca

re
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 a

 n
a

m
e

d
 

w
o

rk
e

r 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
ia

is
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
, 

th
e

ir
 f

a
m

ily
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
o

ca
te

s 
is

 

m
a

d
e

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

se
r 

in
 s

e
cu

re
 s

e
tt

in
g

s.
 

A
d

v
o

ca
cy

 i
s 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll

 t
h

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

. 

  
  

4
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
  

  
  

4
.1

 I
s 

th
e

re
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 w
il

l 
b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
re

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

in
g

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

Y
e

s.
  

In
 t

o
ta

l 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
e

v
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 w
it

h
 a

d
vo

ca
cy

 a
n

d
 n

a
m

e
d

 w
o

rk
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
. 

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 c

a
re

rs
' a

d
vo

ca
cy

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
a

re
n

t 

a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
y 

ca
re

rs
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

. 
  

 

  
  

4
.2

 A
re

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
  

  
  

cl
e

a
r.

 

Y
e

s.
  W

e
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
a

ct
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 t
e

a
m

 s
in

ce
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
1

. 
  

 

  
  

4
.3

 A
re

 t
h

e
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 j

o
in

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
, 

ca
re

rs
, 

a
d

vo
ca

cy
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 L

o
ca

l H
e

a
lt

h
w

a
tc

h
) 

a
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
la

ce
. 

 Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 L

D
P

B
 o

n
 j

o
in

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
ro

u
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
y 

ca
re

rs
' s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
st

re
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 a
t 

a
n

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
  

M
o

re
 w

o
rk

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 w
it

h
 

H
e

a
lt

h
w

a
tc

h
. 

  

 

  
  

 4
.4

 I
s 

th
e

re
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 lo
ca

l 
re

g
is

te
rs

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

th
a

t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 u
se

d
. 

 Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 I
S

T
 a

n
d

 P
C

C
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 a

re
 f

u
ll

y 
e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 

n
e

e
d

s.
  

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
3

 p
e

o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 in
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
v

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 i

n
 s

e
cu

re
 

se
tt

in
g

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 

co
m

p
le

x 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
w

it
h

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s.
  

T
h

e
 I

S
T

 i
s 

ve
ry

 

in
v

o
lv

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

ll
 7

/1
3

. 
 

 

  
  

4
.5

 I
s 

th
e

re
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

re
g

is
te

rs
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

C
G

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 w

h
o

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 

co
n

ta
ct

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

T
h

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

g
is

te
rs

 i
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
. 

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 i

s 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 t
o

 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

 w
h

ic
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i

s 
b

e
st

 p
la

ce
d

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

  
  

117



 

6
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
a

s 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 i
s 

m
a

d
e

. 

 

4
.6

 I
s 

a
d

vo
ca

cy
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

y
) 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t,
 c

a
re

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

 Y
e

s.
  A

d
vo

ca
cy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 r
e

a
d

ily
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
. 

 

  
  

4
.7

 H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

. 

T
h

e
 I

S
T

 t
e

a
m

 h
a

s 
d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 p
ra

ct
it

io
n

e
rs

 w
h

o
 t

a
ke

 p
a

rt
 

in
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
o

f 
ca

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

a
ke

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
fu

tu
re

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 P

C
C

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 s

e
n

io
r 

ca
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

st
a

ff
 m

e
e

t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 a
n

d
 f

re
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 I

S
T

 i
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 i

n
te

rf
a

ce
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

h
e

re
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 o
n

 e
a

ch
 

se
rv

ic
e

 u
se

r 
is

 d
is

cu
ss

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

se
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 c

h
e

ck
s 

o
f 

fi
le

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

co
u

p
le

d
 w

it
h

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

. 
  

T
h

e
 L

A
 h

a
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

tw
o

 p
e

o
p

le
 (

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
it

h
 a

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 a
 

fa
m

il
y 

ca
re

r)
 o

n
 t

h
e

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 C

h
e

ck
e

rs
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 T

h
e

 

a
im

 i
s 

to
 t

ra
in

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
 e

xp
e

rt
 b

y
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
 

  
  

4
.8

 D
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
g

iv
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

 b
e

in
g

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

in
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
si

tu
a

ti
o

n
s.

 

 Y
e

s.
  

  
  

4
.9

 H
a

v
e

 a
ll

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

A
re

 y
o

u
 s

a
ti

sf
ie

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 c
le

a
r 

p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

A
ll

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y

 s
e

cu
re

 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 I

S
T

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s.

  

  
  

5
. 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

  
  

  

5
.1

 W
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 p

la
ce

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
a

re
a

, 
a

re
 y

o
u

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 lo
ca

l s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 –
 e

.g
. 

in
 l

in
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 A
D

A
S

S
 p

ro
to

co
l.

 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s 
B

o
a

rd
 (

P
S

A
B

) 
m

u
lt

i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

d
e

ta
il

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

P
S

A
B

 a
d

o
p

ts
 t

h
e

 A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

 

o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(A

D
A

S
S

) 
p

ro
to

co
ls

 f
o

r 
in

te
r-

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

ve
st

ig
a

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 P

C
C

, 
a

s 
le

a
d

 a
g

e
n

cy
, 

u
ti

li
se

s 
th

e
se

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 w
h

e
n

 d
e

a
li

n
g

 w
it

h
 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 c
a

se
s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
is

 p
la

ce
d

 ‘
o

u
t 

o
f 

a
re

a
’ 

b
u

t 
a

ls
o

 a
cc

e
p

ts
 i

ts
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
s 

le
a

d
 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
g

e
n

cy
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
a

ri
se

 w
it

h
in

 P
C

C
’s

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s.
 T

h
e

 P
S

A
B

 h
a

s 
re

ce
iv

e
d

 

  
  

118



 

7
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

re
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 R

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 w
o

rk
 s

tr
e

a
m

. 

5
.2

 H
o

w
 a

re
 y

o
u

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 h
o

u
si

n
g

) 
to

 e
n

su
re

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
is

k
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 I

S
T

 w
o

rk
s 

v
e

ry
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 r
is

k 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 r
is

k 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s.

  B
e

sp
o

ke
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
s 

o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
o

re
 s

ta
ff

 t
e

a
m

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
se

tt
le

d
 i

n
 

li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

lie
n

t’
s 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
n

e
e

d
s 

a
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

IS
T

. 
T

h
e

se
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 

w
it

h
 s

p
o

t 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 c
h

e
ck

s 
b

y 
th

e
 I

S
T

. 
 I

f 
th

e
re

 a
re

 

is
su

e
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
/s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

fo
r 

in
st

a
n

ce
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 

fa
il

in
g

 t
o

 s
ti

ck
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

 o
r 

th
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
t 

st
a

ff
 

co
n

ti
n

u
it

y,
 t

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 P
C

C
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 w

il
l 

m
e

e
t 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 t

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 t

a
k

e
 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 a
ct

io
n

s.
 

 

  
  

5
.3

 H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
lly

 b
ri

e
fe

d
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
u

n
it

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

lo
ca

li
ty

 h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 

p
la

ce
, 

a
n

d
 i

f 
so

 a
re

 i
ss

u
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 b

e
in

g
 w

o
rk

e
d

 o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 s
e

cu
re

 u
n

it
s 

in
 t

h
e

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 l

o
ca

li
ty

. 

W
e

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
ll

 ‘
in

 a
re

a
’ 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 ‘
o

u
t 

o
f 

a
re

a
’ 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

e
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

 i
n

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 i

n
 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
a

ti
sf

ie
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 i

ss
u

e
s 

o
r 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
 

 

  
  

5
.4

 A
re

 y
o

u
 s

a
ti

sf
ie

d
 t

h
a

t 
yo

u
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s 

a
re

 i
n

 t
o

u
ch

 w
it

h
 

y
o

u
r 

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

Y
e

s.
  P

S
A

B
 h

a
s 

h
a

d
 t

w
o

 p
a

p
e

rs
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

f 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 in

 t
h

e
 l

a
st

 n
in

e
 m

o
n

th
s.

  

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 j

o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 is
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 w
it

h
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
il

l 
b

e
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

. 
 

 

  
  

5
.5

 H
a

v
e

 t
h

e
y 

a
g

re
e

d
 a

 c
le

a
r 

ro
le

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 t

a
k

e
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s/
a

le
rt

s,
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

D
o

LS
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
re

st
ra

in
t.

  

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 I
S

T
 h

a
s 

a
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
ro

le
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 e

xi
st

in
g

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

D
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
Li

b
e

rt
y 

(D
O

LS
) 

a
n

d
 o

f 

re
st

ra
in

t.
  L

o
ca

l 
p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 a

re
 o

ff
e

re
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

st
ra

te
g

y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 i

n
te

n
si

v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 b
y

 t
h

e
 I

S
T

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 t

h
re

a
d

 o
f 

co
n

si
st

e
n

t 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ta

ff
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
n

e
e

d
s.

 

  
  

119



 

8
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

 

5
.6

 A
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
g

re
e

d
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

th
a

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 i

n
 a

ll
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 
to

 s
h

a
re

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 le
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

th
a

t 
ch

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s 
w

h
o

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

la
ce

d
 i

n
 h

o
sp

it
a

l 
se

tt
in

g
s.

 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 I
S

T
 w

o
rk

s 
w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 b

o
th

 i
n

 h
o

sp
it

a
l 

a
n

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

s 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
o

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 

co
n

ti
n

u
u

m
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 u
lt

im
a

te
ly

 

re
su

lt
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 a
im

 o
f 

p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

d
e

te
rr

in
g

 r
e

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
 i

n
to

 s
e

cu
re

 t
y

p
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s.

 

 

  
  

5
.7

 I
s 

yo
u

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 is

su
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

im
p

a
ct

 

o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 le

ss
 r

e
st

ri
ct

iv
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

A
S

C
 i

s 
a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 S
a

fe
r 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 a

d
v

o
ca

te
s 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s.
  

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 d

e
si

re
 a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
e

 p
la

n
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

ca
re

 m
o

d
e

ls
 a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 l

iv
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

m
o

te
s 

ch
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

lie
s 

le
ss

 o
n

 

re
st

ri
ct

iv
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
ca

re
. 

  

 

  
  

5
.8

 H
a

s 
yo

u
r 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 g

o
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 l

in
k

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
  C

Q
C

, 
co

n
tr

a
ct

s 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

/c
a

se
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

le
rt

n
e

ss
 t

o
 

co
n

ce
rn

s.
 

 

P
C

C
, 

a
s 

th
e

 l
e

a
d

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 a

g
e

n
cy

, 
h

a
s 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
re

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 (

C
Q

C
) 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 C
C

G
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 l
e

a
d

s 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
n

d
 s

h
a

re
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
. 

 T
h

e
se

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 P

C
C

, 

C
P

F
T

 a
n

d
 C

C
G

 h
a

ve
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 P
S

A
B

. 

  
  

6
. 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
  

  
  

6
.1

 A
re

 y
o

u
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 a

n
 in

it
ia

l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

p
e

o
p

le
s’

 m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t/
in

-p
a

ti
e

n
t 

se
tt

in
g

s.
 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
is

 i
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 I
S

T
. 

 D
e

ta
ile

d
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

is
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 p
e

n
 p

ic
tu

re
s 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

u
se

rs
. 

 

  
  

6
.2

 A
re

 t
h

e
se

 b
e

in
g

 j
o

in
tl

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

, 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

. 
Y

e
s.

  T
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y 
o

u
t 

to
 i

n
v

it
e

 s
k

il
le

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

, 
w

o
rk

 i
s 

in
 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 f

o
r 

a
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 p

ip
e

li
n

e
 s

o
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

ty
p

e
 o

f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 b

u
il

t 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

in
te

ll
ig

e
n

ce
. 

  
  

120



 

9
 

 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

 L
o

ca
l S

to
ck

ta
ke

  

 

6
.3

 I
s 

th
e

re
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
h

o
w

 m
a

n
y

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 p

la
ce

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

a
re

a
 a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 t

o
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
u

ll
y 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 C
H

C
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
se

 

jo
in

tl
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 

 Y
e

s.
  T

h
is

 l
e

v
e

l o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 s
in

ce
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 i
s 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 k
e

p
t 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

s 

p
e

o
p

le
's

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
ch

a
n

g
e

. 
 W

e
 a

ls
o

 h
a

ve
 a

 f
u

ll
 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
. 

 

  
  

6
.4

 D
o

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s 

re
fl

e
ct

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 r

e
-p

ro
v

is
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

fo
r 

e
xi

st
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

b
st

a
n

ti
a

lly
 r

e
d

u
ce

 f
u

tu
re

 h
o

sp
it

a
l 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

 Y
e

s.
  C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 I
S

T
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 l
o

ca
l c

a
p

a
ci

ty
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
. 

 O
n

 a
 m

ic
ro

 l
e

v
e

l,
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
cu

se
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s 

w
it

h
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 

o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 I

ST
 i

s 
cr

u
ci

a
l 

to
 e

n
su

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 

  
  

6
.5

 H
a

v
e

 j
o

in
t 

re
v

ie
w

in
g

 a
n

d
 (

d
e

)c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 t
e

a
m

s.
 

 Y
e

s.
  I

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

la
n

s 
a

re
 w

e
ll

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

re
g

u
la

r 
d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

ci
a

li
st

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

te
a

m
. 

 

  
  

6
.6

 H
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 s
o

u
rc

e
(s

) 
o

f 
fu

n
d

s 
o

f 
fu

tu
re

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

e
n

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l c
o

st
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
tr

ia
te

 a
ll

 s
e

v
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 

w
il

l 
b

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
 o

f 
£

1
m

. 
 T

h
is

 w
il

l b
e

 s
o

u
rc

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 l

o
ca

l 
A

S
C

 a
n

d
 C

C
G

 (
la

tt
e

r 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t)

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

. 
 T

h
e

re
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

n
y

 n
e

w
 

fu
n

d
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 s

tr
e

a
m

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

co
st

 p
re

ss
u

re
 t

o
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

fo
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
. 

  
  

6
.7

 A
re

 l
o

ca
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 o

f 
a

d
v

o
ca

cy
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

 if
 n

o
t,

 

a
re

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

. 

Y
e

s.
  L

o
ca

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 a

 r
e

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 

a
d

v
o

ca
cy

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 g

o
in

g
 o

u
t 

to
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 

in
 t

h
e

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

3
. 

 T
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o

n
/c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 w

ill
 

in
cl

u
d

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

  
  

6
.8

 I
s 

yo
u

r 
lo

ca
l 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
, 

re
so

u
rc

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
Y

e
s.

  
A

 lo
ca

l p
la

n
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

p
a

tr
ia

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

. 
  

  
  

6
.9

 A
re

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 1
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
il

l b
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 (
th

e
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

is
 

fo
r 

a
ll

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 i
n

 in
-p

a
ti

e
n

t 
se

tt
in

g
s 

to
 b

e
 p

la
ce

d
 n

e
a

re
r 

h
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 i

n
 a

 le
ss

 

re
st

ri
ct

iv
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t)

. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
a

re
a

 r
e

tu
rn

e
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

s 
o

n
 t

ra
ck

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 1
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 t

a
rg

e
t.

  
T

h
e

 f
in

a
n

ce
s 

to
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 

th
e

 l
o

ca
l 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 

re
m

a
in

 a
n

 i
ss

u
e

 a
n

d
 w

il
l b

e
 a

 

ri
sk

 b
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
. 

  
  

121



 

1
0

 
 

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 L

o
ca

l S
to

ck
ta

ke
  

 

6
.1

0
 I

f 
n

o
, 

w
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 o

b
st

a
cl

e
s,

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 (

e
.g

. 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

a
l,

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l,
 l

e
g

a
l)

. 
 A

s 
6

.9
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
  

  

7
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 l
o

ca
l 

te
a

m
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
  

  
  

7
.1

 A
re

 y
o

u
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 a

n
 in

it
ia

l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

p
e

o
p

le
s’

 m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t/
in

-p
a

ti
e

n
t 

se
tt

in
g

s.
  

 Y
e

s.
  T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 i

s 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 I
S

T
. 

  
  

7
.2

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 w

a
y

s 
o

f 
k

n
o

w
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 
a

d
v

o
ca

cy
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
d

v
o

ca
cy

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 i
s 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 

re
v

ie
w

e
d

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 w
il

l h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 

sa
m

e
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

 T
h

e
 L

D
P

B
 a

ls
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
s 

re
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o

rt
s/

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
/c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 

a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
t 

ca
re

rs
 o

n
 i

ss
u

e
s,

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
 n

e
w

s 

st
o

ri
e

s.
  

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 a
d

vo
ca

cy
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 w

il
l h

a
v

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
/a

d
v

o
ca

te
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

co
m

p
le

x 
a

n
d

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 n

e
e

d
s.

 

 

  
  

7
.3

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

B
e

st
 I

n
te

re
st

s 

a
ss

e
ss

o
rs

 a
re

 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

Y
e

s.
  W

e
 h

a
v

e
 r

e
ce

n
tl

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

o
f 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

o
v

in
g

 i
t 

to
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

A
d

u
lt

s 
se

rv
ic

e
  a

n
d

 h
a

ve
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

re
so

u
rc

e
s.

  

 

  
  

8
. 

P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

ri
si

s 
re

sp
o

n
se

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 -
 L

o
ca

l/
sh

a
re

d
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

ci
e

s 

  
  

  

8
.1

 D
o

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 a

n
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

cr
is

is
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
lo

ca
ll

y
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 t

h
e

 I
S

T
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y.
  

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 c

ri
si

s 
re

sp
o

n
se

 

b
y

 t
h

e
 I

ST
/C

P
F

T
 a

n
d

 C
C

G
. 

 

  
  

8
.2

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 /

 a
re

 y
o

u
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
s 

th
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 a

v
o

id
 

h
o

sp
it

a
l 

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 u
n

d
e

r 
se

ct
io

n
 o

f 
M

H
A

.)
  

 S
e

e
 8

.1
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

s 
g

iv
e

n
. 

  
  

8
.3

 D
o

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 s

k
il

ls
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 c

o
v

e
rs

 t
h

is
 

a
n

g
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

o
 r

e
fl

e
ct

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

th
is

 c
li

e
n

t 

g
ro

u
p

. 
 A

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

co
n

tr
a

ct
 t

e
n

d
e

r,
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
s 

te
a

m
 w

il
l 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 

ri
g

h
t 

sk
il

l 
se

t 
o

f 
p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 i

s 
in

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 

  
  

122



 

1
1

 
 

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 L

o
ca

l S
to

ck
ta

ke
  

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
. 

 W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
a

p
s,

 t
h

e
 I

S
T

 w
il

l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

o
se

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
e

a
m

s.
  T

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 

se
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n

ce
 t

h
e

ir
 

co
m

p
li

a
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

M
in

im
u

m
 D

a
ta

se
t 

(M
N

D
S

) 
re

tu
rn

s,
 b

o
th

 a
s 

a
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

d
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

a
k

e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
ca

l w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

, 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 a

s 
a

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

th
e

m
se

lv
e

s 
to

 d
ra

w
 d

o
w

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

vo
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

9
. 
 U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
/r

e
ce

iv
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

  
  

  

9
.1

 D
o

 y
o

u
r 

lo
ca

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

n
e

e
d

s,
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

th
a

t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s.

 

 Y
e

s.
  H

o
w

e
v

e
r,

 m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 is
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y 

w
it

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

a
n

d
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

  
  

9
.2

 F
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
, 

a
re

 y
o

u
 t

a
k

in
g

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

e
th

n
ic

it
y

, 
a

g
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
is

su
e

s 
in

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

u
tu

re
 c

a
re

 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
 

Y
e

s.
  

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 

th
e

 I
S

T
 t

a
k

e
 f

u
ll

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

e
th

n
ic

it
y

, 
a

g
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
n

d
 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

is
su

e
s.

  T
h

is
 i

s 
fe

d
 in

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

  
  

123



 

1
2

 
 

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 L

o
ca

l S
to

ck
ta

ke
  

 

1
0

.  
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

u
lt

s 
–

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

  
  

  

1
0

.1
D

o
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

a
ke

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s.

 

 1
0

.2
 H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 w

a
y

s 
o

f 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

u
tu

re
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 l
ik

e
ly

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 

Y
e

s.
  T

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

 T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

T
e

a
m

 w
it

h
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 I
S

T
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 t
e

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
se

ly
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 c
h

il
d

re
n

/y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 i
n

 a
re

a
, 

o
r 

p
la

ce
d

 o
u

t 
o

f 
a

re
a

, 
a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  

 P
ro

fi
li

n
g

 o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

's
 n

e
e

d
s 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

 t
y

p
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 

w
it

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e

 p
a

rt
 o

f 

th
e

 p
ip

e
li

n
e

 p
ro

je
ct

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 3
-5

 y
e

a
rs

. 

  
  

1
1

.  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 m
a

rk
e

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 

  
  

  

1
1

.1
 I

s 
a

n
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 

m
a

rk
e

t 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
re

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 

in
cr

e
a

se
 lo

ca
l c

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
o

ca
cy

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y

 f
a

ll
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

fi
le

s 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
, 

h
is

to
ri

ca
ll

y,
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 

p
la

ce
d

 i
n

 s
e

cu
re

 t
y

p
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s.

 

 

  
  

1
1

.2
 D

o
e

s 
th

is
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 g

a
p

 a
n

a
ly

si
s.

 
T

h
e

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 g

a
p

s 
in

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s 

li
m

it
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 m
a

y
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 p

la
ce

d
 i

n
 s

e
cu

re
-t

y
p

e
 

se
tt

in
g

s.
  

A
d

v
o

ca
cy

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
a

n
d

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 n

e
e

d
s.

  

T
h

is
 h

a
s 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 t
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
re

 o
u

t 

to
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 b
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
se

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

th
e

 t
y

p
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
si

g
n

 o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 

n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

fa
ll

 i
n

to
 t

h
is

 p
ro

fi
le

. 
 W

o
rk

 w
il

l 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 w
e

e
k

s 
to

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 w

it
h

 R
SL

s 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
in

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 

  
  

1
1

.3
 A

re
 t

h
e

re
 l

o
ca

l 
e

xa
m

p
le

s 
o

f 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 t
h

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

, 
e

.g
. 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
fo

ra
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
/l

e
a

rn
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
. 

G
o

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 e

xa
m

p
le

s 
fr

o
m

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 

sh
a

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 E
a

st
 o

f 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 L

A
s/

C
C

G
s 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 

re
g

io
n

a
l 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
. 

  
  

124



 

1
3

 
 

W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
 L

o
ca

l S
to

ck
ta

ke
  

 

P
le

a
se

 s
e

n
d

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s,
 q

u
e

ri
e

s 
o

r 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 s

to
ck

ta
k

e
 t

o
 S

a
ra

h
.b

ro
w

n
@

lo
ca

l.
g

o
v

.u
k

 b
y

 5
th

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 (

E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 S

a
ra

h
 B

ro
w

n
 t

il
l 

th
e

 1
2

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

) 
 

 T
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y

 

 

N
a

m
e

   
   

   
  

   
 M

u
b

a
ra

k
 D

a
rb

a
r 

  
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

  
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
   

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

(A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l C
a

re
) 

C
o

n
ta

ct
  

   
   

   
 0

1
7

3
3

 4
5

2
4

0
9

  m
u

b
a

ra
k

.d
a

rb
a

r@
p

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

S
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
: 

C
h

a
ir

 H
W

B
  

 

 LA
 C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 …
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

..
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 S
o

h
ra

b
 P

a
n

d
a

y
 

C
C

G
 r

e
p

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
. 

 

125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 8(b) 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Dr Caroline Lea-Cox 

Claire Hodgson 

Tel.  

01223 725329 

 
HOW WELL DID CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH PROVIDE SERVICES FOR 

ADULTS WITH LEARNING DISABILITY 2012-2013?  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Dr Caroline Lea-Cox, GP Mental Health Clinical 
Lead, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 
 
John Ellis & Dawn Jones, Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough CCG 
 
Tracey Gurney, Head of Operations, Cambridgeshire 
Learning Disability Partnership 
 
Deborah Gallagher, Project Support Manager for  Learning 
Disability, Peterborough City Council 

Deadline date : 01.10.13 to expedite 
named board member 
 
Other recommendations are ongoing. 

The HWBs of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough are asked to: 

1. Have a named Board level Executive Lead with responsibility for learning disabilities 

2. Support the CCG in signing up to Mencap’s “Getting it right charter” which sets out the key 

principles of care for people with learning disabilities. http://www.mencap.org.uk/CCGcharter 

3. Ensure the local JSNA includes a needs assessment and corresponding plans are in place, 

which reflect policy and best practice guidelines. 

4. Ensure there are well functioning partnership agreements between health and social care 

organisations. 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

 This report is submitted to Board following a request from GP Member Mike Caskey.   
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The purpose of this report is for the committee to reflect on how well as a region we have 
been delivering services for adults with learning disabilities, in order to further our 
commissioning processes to improve these services, and for consideration of the proposed 
recommendations.   

 
2.2 This report is for Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No.  2.1, To bring 

together the leaders of health and social care commissioners to develop common and 
shared approaches to improving the health and well being of the community. 

  

3. MAIN BODY OF REPORT  
 
A report is attached that includes the following headers: 

 
1.1 Context 

127



1.2 The HWB of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough are asked to: 
1.3 Review the summary of how services for people with learning disability were delivered 

in 2012-13 across: 
1.3 1. Primary Care  
1.3 2. Acute Providers 
   i Areas of good practice across the Trust 
1.3 3. Local Disability Partnerships 

    i Areas identified for improvement  
 
  
4. CONSULTATION 
 

 Adults with learning disabilities are consulted with during the annual LD self-assessment to 
ensure that our RAG ratings are an accurate reflection of service experience.   

 
5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 

 To improve our commissioning of and service delivery for adults with learning disabilities. 
 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 It is a statutory requirement to ensure that we meet the needs of our population and make 
reasonable adjustments for individuals with learning disabilities to ensure equitable 
provision.  Individuals with learning disabilities often have poorer health than the general 
population, (Confidential Inquiry into premature deaths of people with learning disabilities 
CIPOLD 2013), experience health inequalities due to the barriers people with learning 
disabilities face in accessing health care and health screening and are 25% more likely to 
be admitted to hospital as an emergency compared to other people (Admissions for 
Ambulatory Care Sensitive Conditions (ACSCs) for people with learning disability in the UK 
2013).  

 

7.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

Status quo is an alternative option to the recommendations; however we feel that this will 
not progress the need to continually improve our commissioning of learning disabilities and 
ensure that adequate attention is given to this important area in line with the Winterbourne 
Review Report 2012. 

 
8.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no financial or legal implications expected as a result of the proposed 
recommendations.  

 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
  

• Getting it Right for People with a Learning Disability, a Charter for Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, Mencap, March 2013 (attached). 

• Peterborough 2012 LD Self-Assessment  

• Cambridgeshire 2012 LD Self-Assessment 

128



 1 

 

 

How well did Cambridgeshire and Peterborough provide services for 

adults with learning disability 2012-2013? Report to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board Cambridgeshire and Health and Wellbeing Board Peterborough  

 

Dr Caroline Lea-Cox Clinical Lead for Mental Health and Learning Disability 

John Ellis, Dawn Jones, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 

Tracy Gurney 

Deborah Gallacher  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



 2 

1.1 Context 

 

With the formation of the new Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG and the Health and Wellbeing Boards 

for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, it is opportune to reflect on how well as a region we are delivering 

services for adults with learning disability. 

 

Total number of adults on the learning 

disability register 2012-13 

Cambridgeshire Peterborough 

Age 18+ 1478 701 

Fens 25 

South 31 

Hunts 15 

City 21 

East 19 

Age 65+ 

Total 111 (7.5 

%) 

44(5.9%) 

Total 1589 745 

 

Services are jointly commissioned through health and social care, with the local authority taking 

responsibility as lead commissioner. Well established Learning Disability Partnership Boards in both 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough oversee the delivery of services for people with learning disability. 

However, it is the responsibility of all of us in the region to make sure that we are aware of the care of 

people with learning disability and know how to alert if concerns are raised. ‘If we get it right for learning 

disability, then we get it right for everybody’. Indeed, the ethos of care for learning disability applies to any 

vulnerable group of people within our society. 

 

People with learning disabilities have often been invisible to mainstream health services and health 

professionals. 

  

We need to give particular consideration to commissioning services for people with learning disabilities 

because they experience poorer health than the general population (Confidential Inquiry into premature 

deaths of people with learning disabilities CIPOLD 2013), differences which are to a large extent avoidable, 

and thus represent health inequalities. 

  

Some health inequalities relate to the barriers people with learning disabilities face in accessing health care 

and health screening. These barriers are well documented in numerous reports including Death by 

Indifference Mencap 2007, which detailed the deaths of six people with learning disabilities while in the care 

of the NHS and the Disability Rights Commission’s report Equal Treatment. 

 

The recent report on Hospital admissions that should not happen (Admissions for Ambulatory Care Sensitive 

Conditions (ACSCs) for people with learning disability in the UK 2013) found that people with learning 

disability were 25% more likely to be admitted to hospital as an emergency compared to other people, and 

were 70% more likely to be admitted for an ASCSs. The ASCSs include 

• Epilepsy and convulsions 

• Constipation 

• Complications of diabetes 

• Influenza and pneumonia 

Recent events at Winterbourne View (Winterbourne Review Report 2012) have also highlighted the 

importance of good quality commissioning for people who challenge services, and those with complex 

needs. We will need to work jointly with providers and others to ensure that good local services are 

available to support people who challenge services and those with complex needs to prevent the need for 

expensive and potentially risky out of area placements.  

 

A review of how well we are delivering services cuts across public health, primary care, acute providers, 

learning disability partnerships, specialist learning disability teams, patient transport and ambulance 

system  the criminal justice system and the third sector. 

 

The health self-assessment framework (SAF) for learning disability services is a helpful tool as it involves 

specialist healthcare professionals as well as people with learning disabilities and family carers in assessing 

local services, and therefore provides good evidence of local involvement. It is used by most health 

communities on an annual basis and thus enables comparison on a year by year basis, and with other areas. 

The SAF brings together many standards for learning disability services that are in other documents, and 

130



 3 

are included in this guidance under the appropriate section. Details of the SAF and assessment results can 

be found at: www.ihal.org.uk/self_assessment/ 

 
 

1.2   The HWBs of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough are asked to 

 

1. Have a named Board level Executive Lead with responsibility for learning disabilities 

2.    Support the CCG in signing up to Mencap’s “Getting it right charter” which sets out the key 

principles of care for people with learning disabilities. http://www.mencap.org.uk/CCGcharter 

3.   Ensure the local JSNA includes a needs assessment and corresponding plans are in place, which 

reflect policy and best practice guidelines. 

4.   Ensure there are well functioning partnership agreements between health and social care 

organisations. 

 

1.3   Summary of how services for people with learning disability were delivered in 2012-13 

 
Area 

 How well has primary care delivered health checks for people with learning disability? 

Since 2009 directions were published by the Department of Health that required that Primary Care Trusts to offer 

GPs in their area the opportunity to offer learning disability health checks as part of a Direct Enhanced Service 

scheme.  Since the restructuring of the NHS, NHS England through the Local Area Teams is responsible for 

commissioning services from General Practice 

How well do the acute providers provide services for people with learning disability? 

In the East of England the acute hospital trusts have been working with their commissioners and Learning 

Disability Partnerships to carry out self assessments of their services for these patients and to agree plans for 

2012-14 to improve these services 

How well did the Learning Disability Partnerships meet their quality standards? 

Learning Disability Partnerships include representation from both social care services, health professionals, 

voluntary   organisations, people with learning disability and their family carers or support workers. The Learning 

Disability Partnership Board covers employment, education, leisure, person centred planning, health, housing and 

other issues.  

 

1.3 1. Primary Care – Health checks for adults with learning disability who are eligible (moderate to 

severe learning disability)  

 

We are currently doing fairly well across the CCG as benchmarked nationally, but we are doing less well 

than last year (78.5% of health checks completed) and there is wide discrepancy between practices/LCGs. 

However, if we include the number of patients who declined health checks then we have a 79.1% response 

rate. We have not reached the target of 90% except for the South Villages locality of Catch. We still have 6 

practices not signed up to deliver health checks for 2013/14  

 

LCG Number of practices signed up 

for health checks 

Number of 

patients with 

learning 

disability  

Number of 

health 

checks  

Performed 

Number 

of 

checks 

declined 

% of patients who had a 

health check-Target 

90%( including patients 

who declined a health 

check) 

Peterborough 18/20 practices 192 169 12 88.0%(94.2) 

Borderline 6/8 practices 

2 Northants practices excluded 

192 167 3 86.9(88.5) 

Cam Health 9/9 practices 229 143 18 62.4 (70) 

CATCH 24/25 

3 Royston practices excluded 

419 309 26 73.7 (80) 

Hunts Health 10/10 practices 250 205 19 82.0 (89.6) 

Hunts Care Partners 15/16 practices 350 241 33 68.8 (78.2) 

Isle of Ely 10/10 practices 279 152 8 54.4(57.3) 

Wisbech 3/4practices 122 101 4 82.8 (86) 

Total 94% practices signed up 

(excluding 5 out of county 

practices) 

2033 1487 122 73.1 (79.1) 

 

131



 4 

1.3 2. Acute Providers-  The Self Assessment RAG ratings for all objectives 2012 

 
Leadership management 

and strategy 

CUHFT 

Addenbrookes 

HHT 

Hinchingbrooke 

PSHFT 

Peterborough and 

Stamford 

There is a clearly 

identifiable Board and 

senior management 

engagement in 

embedding a strategy 

for adults with a 

learning disability or 

autism 

     

The Trust has policies in 

place that meet the 

specific needs of adults 

with learning disabilities 

or autism 

   

Partnership working 

takes place at all levels 

within the organisation 

    

Care Standards, 

Reasonable adjustments 

and service delivery 

CUHFT HHT PHSHFT 

The Trust employs a 

registered healthcare 

practitioner for adults 

with learning disability 

or autism (Acute liaison 

Nurse) and identifies 

practitioners with extra 

skills and 

responsibilities  

    

The Trusts’ plan to 

deliver the Public Sector 

Equality Duty and the 

NHS Equality Delivery 

System reflects the 

reasonable adjustments 

required for adults with 

learning disability or 

autism 

    

Adults with learning 

disability or autism 

receive high standards 

of fundamental care 

 

 

    

Patient safety issues are 

identified proactively. 

Risk assessment is 

comprehensive , taking 

into account individual 

support needs 

   

Adults with learning 

disabilities or autism 

receive appropriate 

nutrition and hydration 

    

Adults with learning 

disabilities or autism are 

identified prior to 

admission for elective 

cases or on admission 

through Emergency 

Departments 

      

132



 5 

Training and education 

on understanding the 

specific needs of people 

with learning disability 

and autism is provided 

to all hospital staff 

      

Pathways CUHFT HHT PSHFT 

Adults with learning 

disability or autism 

attend outpatients and 

investigations 

appropriately 

    

Adults with learning 

disabilities or autism 

attend A&E 

appropriately 

    

Adults with learning 

disabilities and autism 

are discharged home in 

a safe and timely way 

   

Women and partners 

with learning disability 

or autism have a clear 

pathway for use of 

maternity services 

    

Involvement and 

representation of people 

with learning disability 

and their carers 

CUHFT HHT PSHFT 

Adults with learning 

disability or autism and 

their family carers are 

fully involved in the 

planning of the Trusts 

learning disability 

strategy and in service 

evaluation 

      

Adults with  learning 

disabilities or autism 

and their family carers 

are fully involved in pre 

admission planning, care 

planning and care 

delivery 

     

People with learning 

disability or autism are 

represented in the 

workforce 

     

Information for people 

with learning disability 

and their carers 

CUHFT HHT PSHFT 

People with learning 

disability, autism and 

their family carers 

receive appropriate 

information prior to 

planned, emergency or 

outpatient admissions 

     

All departments have 

access to a range of 

resources to help in the 

production of easy read 

information. These are 

available to people with 

a learning disability or 

   

133



 6 

autism and family carers 

People with learning 

disabilities or autism 

and family carers, have 

appropriate information 

to help them make 

complaints, discuss 

concerns and give 

feedback 

     

Keeping people safe CUHFT HHT PSHFT 

The Trust demonstrates 

learning from serious 

incidents, deaths of 

people with learning 

disability or autism 

    

The Trust demonstrates 

learning from other 

incidents involving 

people with learning 

disability or autism 

     

The organisation has 

ways of listening to 

adults with learning 

disability or autism and 

their family carers and 

learns from this 

    

 
 

 

 

Areas of good practice across the acute trusts 
1. CUHFT have non executive Directors on the Trust board responsible for learning disability or 

Vulnerable Adults 

2. CUHFT has agreed an Adolescent transition in Care Guideline 

3. CUHFT have developed and audit tool which includes reasonable adjustments, fundamental care 

and the use of hospital passports 

4. PSHFT have an electronic flagging system in place 

5. CUHFT Maternity services use a learning difficulties screening tool, and there is a Maternity 

Services Learning Disability flowchart 

6. PSHFT have a specialist midwife and a learning disability maternity pathway 

7. CUHFT provide work placements for people with learning disabilities, some of whom have gone 

onto be employed in substantive posts.  

8. PSHFT have volunteers with learning disabilities who act as hospital guides 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

134



 7 

1.3 3. Local Disability Partnerships 

 
Quality Standard Cambridgeshire LDP Peterborough LDP 

% of adults with learning disability living in 

appropriate accommodation i.e settled 

family accommodation or own/tenancy 

ownership reflecting personal choice 

1199 of 1589 = 75.5% 

(Target 75%) 

77% (Target 74%) 

% of adults with learning disability 

receiving self directed support 

1361 of 1589 = 88.6% 

(Target 80%) 

271/745 = 36.4% (Target 60%) 

% of adults with learning disability with 

paid employment 

81 of 1589 = 5.1% 

(Target 7.5%) 

49/745 = 6.6% (Target 6.0%) 

% of adults with learning disability with 

something meaningful to do 

85 of 1589 = 5.3% (unpaid 

voluntary work.) 

73/745 = 9.9% (Voluntary work) 

Timeliness of social care assessments 

within 28 days  (Target 86%) 

78 of 83 = 94% Av 14 days  

(reported differently) 

Timeliness of social care packages in place 

within 28days of assessment 

(Target 93%) 

48 of 69 = 69.6% 

This is currently being closely 

looked at and a remedial plan in 

place 

Av 26 days  

Number of safe guarding issues/alerts Total in the year of 266 alerts 

broken down as: 

33 – not determined / 

inconclusive 

61 – not substantiated 

42 – partially substantiated 

130 - substantiated 

10 cases 

Number of adults with learning disability 

who live out of area 

Across health and social care 

provision the total is currently 

139 of which 9  are in hospital 

placements ( 5 in secure units). 

There is active work with 23 

people currently taking place 

around move on plans. 

Work in progress 

% of service users who live out of area who 

have had annual review by local team 

100% Data not available 

% of Care Homes quality review Data not available Data not available 

% of service user annual reviews  1168 of 1587 = 73.6% 

(Target 80%) 

393/745 = 52.7% (target 100%) 

% of carer reviews 

 

327 of 1300 = 25.2% 

(Target 27%) 

147/745 = 19.7% (Target 21%) 

Number of people with transitions Plans Data not available Data not available 

 

 

 

 Areas identified for improvement  

 
Area for improvement How we move forward 

Different targets for Learning Disability Partnerships in 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

This may wish to be discussed by the 

relevant HWB 

Information sharing agreements between providers to 

improve quality of care 

Collaboration between providers to ensure 

IT systems can communicate, but with 

firewalls to ensure confidentiality of data 

Primary care contracting teams to gather data and 

compare with public health prevalence information. 

Collaboration with public health 

Maintain monitoring of improvements in services where 

user feedback is poor. 

Look at the work by the EoE Managed 

Clinical Network to look at local family carer 

and user groups to form effective networks 

to feedback about services 

Strengthen transitions work to prevent avoidable out-of-

area placements of young adults. 

 

 

EoE Managed Clinical Network led by Dr 

Lea-Cox is drafting standards for transition 

work 

 

Implement Autism Action Plan, especially post-diagnosis 

support and for people not eligible for social care. 

EoE Managed Clinical Network are 

developing guideline standards 

135



 8 

Strengthen working relationships that have now been 

developed with local criminal justice agencies. 

Build on prison work to date and ensure continuity 

through transfer to NCB responsibility. 

HWB 

Regularly monitor individual provider plans to ensure LD-

related issues are systematically reviewed. 

Contracting. 

 

Specialist care of epilepsy – whose responsibility? 

Quality of epilepsy reviews? 

EoE Managed Clinical network 

Collaboration required between providers   

LDT and neurologists and primary care 

We do not have data on the number of people with 

learning disability who have specific problems such as 

challenging behaviour, epilepsy, and dementia 

 

LDP/CCG 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

136



All people with a learning disability have an equal right to healthcare.  

All healthcare services should be accessible to people with a learning disability, with reasonable 

adjustments being made where necessary to support them when they are unwell.

All NHS services should value the lives of people with a learning disability, and provide a high standard 

of care and treatment.

By signing this charter, we pledge to:

Getting it right
for people with a learning disability 

A charter for Clinical Commissioning Groups

  have a learning disability commissioning lead on our executive committee to monitor and 

coordinate service improvement

   provide an ongoing programme of learning disability awareness and mental capacity training  

to NHS staff

  meaningfully involve people with a learning disability and their families and carers in the  

planning and review of health services, and provide evidence thereof

  commission all NHS providers to implement reasonable adjustments, and use contracting 

mechanisms to check these are in place

  encourage and support all GP surgeries to offer annual health checks to people with a  

learning disability in line with the RCGP recommendations regarding process and content

  ensure that all acute healthcare trusts are signed up to the Getting it right charter

  participate in the National Joint Health and Social Care Self-Assessment Framework   

(Learning Disabilities) and work closely with social care colleagues to ensure implementation

  work closely with local authorities to ensure that public health, social services, housing  

services, education, employment and NHS commissioning are well-coordinated and, where 

responsibilities overlap, aim to jointly deliver services

  identify people with a learning disability using NHS services, closely monitor equality  

outcomes for people with a learning disability and act to improve them when inequalities  

of outcome are identified

  strategically plan and commission specialist learning disability services based on sound  

evidence and best practice

  commission local services for children and adults with a learning disability and behaviour 

that challenges, and robustly monitor their quality

  ensure that the recommendations set out in the Department of Health’s final report of the 

Winterbourne review and the accompanying Concordat are implemented locally in a timely manner

  ensure that the recommendations set out in the Confidential Inquiry into premature deaths  

of people with a learning disability are implemented locally in a timely manner

137



For guidance on implementing this pledge, please visit 
www.mencap.org.uk/CCGcharter

Registered charity number 222377 (England, Northern Ireland and Wales); SCO41079 (Scotland)      2012.339 _03.13

Developed with the Royal College of GPs, IHaL, Royal College of Nursing, College of 

Occupational Therapists and the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health

“Recent reports and events have clearly shown that we need  

to have a complete change in culture about the way that people 

with learning disabilities are treated by our health and social 

care system.

Mencap’s charter presents a real challenge to Clinical 

Commissioning Groups to help bring about these changes and  

I hope that all groups will consider signing up to its charter.” 

Norman Lamb MP, Minister of State for Care and Support

138



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 9(a) 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Tel.  

 

PEER CHALLENGE 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Assistant Director 
Strategy, Commissioning & Prevention Children’s 
Services 

Deadline date N/A 

 
The Board is asked to note the Health and Wellbeing system improvement peer challenge 
methodology and guidance document and consider process for developing the Board to deliver on 
the required outcomes Boards are expected to achieve.  
 

  
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This document is submitted to Board following our initial interest in undergoing a peer 
challenge.   

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this document is to highlight to the Board what a Peer Challenge will focus 
on. 

 
2.2      The Board need to consider what actions we need to take to develop the Board to deliver 

on the required outcomes.   
 

 
  

139



140

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
Health and wellbeing 
system improvement  
 

 
Health and wellbeing peer 
challenge 
 
Methodology and guidance 
 
14th June 2013 

141



2 
 

1. Supporting the new health and wellbeing system   
 
From 1 April 2013, responsibility for public health and other health services was 
given to local agencies, including councils, clinical commissioning groups and the 
new health and wellbeing boards.  The Local Government Association (LGA) has 
been convening national partners, including the Department of Health, NHS England, 
the NHS Confederation, Public Health England, Healthwatch England and the 
Association of Directors of Public Health, to provide a ‘Health and Wellbeing System 
Improvement Programme’ for health and wellbeing boards, local authorities, clinical 
commissioning groups and local Healthwatch organisations.  This £1.8million 
programme includes support for local leadership on health through a health and 
wellbeing peer challenge, regional support to address collective issues, bringing 
together information on public health via the LGA’s LG Inform tool, a self-assessment 
tool, support to council commissioners through the regionally based Healthwatch 
Implementation Team, online networking via the LGA’s current Knowledge Hub tool 
and national learning events. 
 
The core national elements of the LGA’s offer are: 
 
Peer challenge – this tried and tested LGA sector-led improvement tool is being 
developed collaboratively for health and wellbeing. Councils can commission the 
challenge to focus on local public health, health and wellbeing board and local 
Healthwatch priorities.  
 
LG Inform – this LGA on-line data and benchmarking tool, part of the LGA’s core 
offer, is developing a specific package to consolidate key benchmarking information 
on public health that health and wellbeing boards, councils, local people and 
voluntary organisations can use to facilitate monitoring trends and for benchmarking. 
Data and information is also being produced to inform the peer challenges. 
 
Knowledge Hub - supports on-line networking and the LGA continues to support the 
existing National Learning Network for health and wellbeing boards.  
 
Healthwatch Implementation Team - this small, expert team deployed in each 
region will continue, in the immediate term, to provide ‘trouble shooting’ capacity and 
to  provide tailored support to local authority commissioners.  
 
The LGA and Healthwatch England are currently co-producing a joint work 
programme, which will be framed around joint events, publications for local 
healthwatch and local authority commissioners, troubleshooting capacity and tailored 
support in response to Francis Review recommendations.  
 
National Sharing learning events – two national events have been planned for 
June 2013 in London and Leeds for health and wellbeing boards and partners in 
public health to share experiences and learning.  
 
Regional approach driven by local choices - this has focussed on identifying as 
much funding as possible to devolve to the regions throughout the year so the offer 
is responsive to local need and builds on local networks and capacity. Regional 

142



3 
 

funding will be made available as part of a grant agreement with clearly defined 
criteria to demonstrate value, share learning and regularly communicates.  
 
For more information on the offer go to:  
 
http://www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/health/-
/journal_content/56/10171/3932121/ARTICLE-TEMPLATE  
 
2. Purpose and scope of the health and wellbeing peer challenge 
 
A peer challenge is a voluntary and flexible process commissioned by a council to 
aid their improvement and learning.  It involves a team of between 4 - 6 peers from 
local government, health or the voluntary sector who spend time on-site at a council 
to reflect back and challenge its practice, in order to help it to reflect on and improve 
the way it works. The process involves a wide range of people working with the 
council in both statutory and partnership roles and the findings are delivered 
immediately. 
 
Peers are working as ‘critical friends’ or ‘trusted advisors’, not professional 
consultants or experts. Peer challenge is not inspection. The process is based on a 
view that organisations learn better from peers and are open to challenge. Likewise it 
believes that peers, in their professional capacity, challenge robustly and effectively. 
While the process is voluntary it is not a ‘soft option’. 
 
The purpose of the health and wellbeing peer challenge is to support councils, their 
health and wellbeing boards and health partners in implementing their new statutory 
responsibilities in health from 1 April 2013, by way of a systematic challenge through 
sector peers in order to improve local practice. In this context, the peer challenge 
focuses on three elements in particular while at the same time exploring their 
interconnectivity – the: 
 

· establishment of effective health and wellbeing boards 

· operation of the public health function to councils 

· establishment of an effective local Healthwatch organisation. 
 
We appreciate that the new health and wellbeing system includes many 
organisations, representatives and stakeholders, who are engaged in the challenge 
process. However, for the purpose of this peer challenge the client is the local 
council. 
 
3. Headline questions for the peer challenge 
 
The peer challenge focuses on a set of headline questions and more detailed 
prompts, from which to frame the preliminary review of materials, the interviews, and 
the workshops that make up a peer challenge.  They are discussed and tailored in 
the context of each council. 
 
A list of headline questions and prompts are at Appendix 2 but the main four 
questions are: 
 

143



4 
 

1. How well are the health and wellbeing challenges understood and how are they 
reflected in Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHWSs) and in 
commissioning? 

2. How strong are governance, leadership, partnerships, voices, and relationships? 
3. How well are mandated and discretionary public health functions delivered? 
4. How well are the Director of Public Health (DPH) and team being used, and how 

strong is the mutual engagement between them and other council teams? 
 

4. The peer challenge process 
 
4.1 Preparation 
 
The purpose of pre-site work is to prepare for an effective and high impact peer 
challenge. We are keen to avoid unnecessary burdens on councils and try to keep 
information requests to a minimum. However, our experience with peer challenges 
shows that a degree of pre-site analysis is required for the peer challenge team to be 
fully operational on day 1. Similarly, feedback from councils shows that encouraging 
them to reflect on the effectiveness of their practice before the peer challenge helps 
them to define a clear focus for the on-site work and ultimately provides them with a 
more tangible outcome of our work. 
 
Preparatory work involves the following: 
 
i. Position statement 
 
We encourage councils to prepare a short position statement outlining how they are 
performing against the main themes of the peer challenge (see above) and the 
specific focus. We do not prescribe the format or style of position statements but we 
can provide examples of what these can look like.  
 
ii. Pre-site reading 
 
We ask the council to provide us with a number of documents, many of which are 
likely to be in the public domain already. Key documents are likely to be: 
 

· a local stakeholder map of ‘who is who and who does what’ in the health and 
wellbeing system 

· the council business plan 

· a selection of service plans to ascertain how health and wellbeing permeates 
into services such as housing, licensing, planning 

· Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs)  

· JHWSs 

· background information about the health and wellbeing board (HWB), eg 
agendas, minutes and papers for past meetings, and terms of reference 

· information about plans for joint commissioning and service transformation, eg 
a joint commissioning strategy, data on pooled budgets/resources 

· the clinical commissioning group’s (CCG’s) commissioning plan 

· NHS England Local Area Team plan or equivalent, outlining what they are 
commissioning to meet local need 

144



5 
 

· memorandum of understanding with CCG regarding public health advice 

· latest NHS patient satisfaction surveys for the area 

· information on arrangements for the local Healthwatch organisation 

· information about arrangements for health scrutiny, including the forward plan 

· summary description of arrangements for delivering statutory local PH 
functions 

· Health Protection Plans. 
 
iii. Pre-site analysis 
 
Pre-site analysis is undertaken by the LGA and includes a high level analysis 
presentation and a number of datasets including: 
 

· NHS outcomes benchmarking support pack 

· Public Health England Health Profile 

· Public Health England Local Health Profile 

· Child Health Profile 

· Community Mental Health Profile 

· census data 

· service data through LG Inform. 
 
iv. Pre-site survey with members of the HWB 
 
We conduct a short on-line survey with members of the HWB to obtain some 
baseline data on the effectiveness of working arrangements as well as the leadership 
and relationships of members. We have developed a standard survey which we 
discuss with you and adapt to include any specific questions of value for your local 
HWB. The survey is administered by the LGA. 
 
v. Timetable of activities for the peer team 
 
The team is on site at a council for a period of 4 days.  
 
The council needs to arrange a timetable of activity organised in advance of the visit 
by the peer team. The timetable should enable meetings and discussion sessions 
(during the remainder of day 1, day 2 and day 3) with a range of officers, members 
and other stakeholders  enabling the peer team to explore the issues relevant to the 
purpose, scope and suggested terms of reference for the peer challenge.  
 
The peer team works in teams of two with three parallel interview streams each day. 
This allows for 40 - 50 activities. 
 
Suggestions (neither a prescriptive or exhaustive list) of whom the peer team need to 
meet with whilst on-site are: 
 
1:1 discussions 
 

· Leader or Elected Mayor 

· Portfolio Holder for health and wellbeing and/or Adult or Children’s Services 

145



6 
 

· Chief Executive (CE) 

· Director of Public Health 

· Council Directors (either individually or as a focus group) 

· Chair of the HWB (if different from above) 

· Chair and Vice Chair of Health Scrutiny 

· Leader(s) of the Opposition 

· Accountable Officer and Chair of the local CCG(s) 

· Director/senior manager of the local PHE centres 

· Director/senior manager of the local NHS England Action/Area Teams 

· CE or senior managers of other key health stakeholders, eg acute trusts, 
community trusts, mental health trusts, primary care and other local providers, 
including community pharmacy and other providers 

· Research/intelligence officer (JSNAs) 

· Head of Human Resources/Organisational Development within the council 

· Operational lead for the HWB 

· Public health professionals, including consultants 

· CE of the local Healthwatch organisation 

· Chair of the neighbouring HWB where the health economy has a significant 
sub-regional configuration 

· District council representation where appropriate. 
 

 Focus Groups: 
 

· external stakeholders (eg housing, economy, police, VCS, education, 
universities) 

· remainder of Cabinet (as one focus group) 

· Heads of Service, including planning, housing, leisure, highways 

· CE/lead members for health of District Councils (where appropriate) 

· front line public health staff who have been transferred to the council 

· voluntary and community sector providers 
 
4.2 On-site work 
 
The on-site challenge takes place over four consecutive days when the peer team is 
at the council and undertakes a range of activities, including focus groups, 
observations, site visits and discussions with officers, elected members, partners and 
stakeholders.  
 
The timetable can include workshops on a specific area of focus the council wishes 
the peer challenge to explore.  
 
The timetable is designed on the focus of the peer challenge and local 
arrangements. However, there are two sessions which are common to all peer 
challenges: 
 

· a ‘setting the scene’ meeting in the morning of the first day of the peer 
challenge. This provides an opportunity for the peer challenge team to meet with 
key officers and elected members and to receive an introductory presentation 
about the council and how it embraces its new responsibilities in health, together 

146



7 
 

with key opportunities and challenges as well as successes. The team uses this 
session to re-state the focus for the peer challenge and to establish common 
ground in what a good outcome of the process will be. It is also an important part 
in ‘starting the process together’ and to build relationships and trust between the 
council and the peer challenge team 

 

· the feedback session on the last day of the peer challenge. In addition to 
informal feedback at the end of each day, the peer challenge team provides two 
types of feedback on the last day: 

 
o an informal ‘dry run’ of the formal feedback to a small group of officers and 

elected members (normally including the Chief Executive and Leader or 
elected Mayor or lead Cabinet member). This allows a check on any 
sensitive issues 
 

o a formal roundtable feedback discussion on the final day on site at the 
council involving an audience of the council’s choosing. The team shares 
its views and offers advice on the main focus of the challenge and key 
strategic and leadership issues. 

 
4.3 Written feedback  
 
The council receives written feedback within 2-3 weeks after the departure of the 
peer challenge team. Written feedback is normally in form of a letter addressed to 
the Chief Executive. It elaborates on the points made in the feedback presentation, 
outlining the main findings and conclusions and provides recommendations for 
improvement and innovation. 
 
The council has an opportunity to comment on the draft letter before it is finalised by 
the review manager.  
 
The feedback letter and presentation are the property of the council. They are not 
published on the LGA website. However, in the interest of openness and 
accountability we recommend making the feedback publicly available.  
 
4.4 Follow-up work 
 
The peer challenge includes an offer of follow-up support. This can involve all or part 
of the team engaging in an activity such as: 
 

· holding an action planning workshop with the council  

· organising a workshop on a specific theme or area, involving experts or other 
peers as appropriate 

· arranging for a  follow-up visit at a later time to challenge progress. 
 

The review manager liaises with the council to scope and manage any follow-up 
activity. 
 
The peer team provides continuous feedback throughout the peer challenge 
process. The intelligence gained is fed back into the LGA to inform the planning of 

147



8 
 

future support. It also contributes to our sector knowledge base, which we need to 
prove sector led improvement works for local government. 

 
5.  The Peer Team  
 
Composition  
 
Peer challenges are managed and delivered by the sector for the sector. Peers are 
at the heart of the peer challenge process. They provide a 'practitioner perspective' 
and 'critical friend' challenge. Peers help build capacity, confidence and sustainability 
by challenging practice and sharing knowledge and experience. 
 
The peer team includes 6 - 7 peers, including the challenge manager, and reflects 
the focus of the peer challenge. The review manager discusses the composition of 
the challenge team with the council. All peers are approved by the council.  
 
The core team normally consists of: 
 

· a Council Chief Executive or Strategic Director 

· an elected member, normally the Chair of the HWB in their area 

· a Director of Public Health 

· an NHS peer, for example an officer or member of a CCG or a national peer 

· an LGA challenge manager. 
 

In addition, the team includes one or two peers with a particular specialism or 
expertise such as a: 
 

· specialist health peer  

· peer with national perspective, eg Healthwatch England, NHS England, Public 
Health England  

· representative from a local Healthwatch organisation 

· representative from the voluntary and community sector  

· district council peer (in two tier areas) 

· a local authority officer peer.  
 
Within each team, one officer is designated the lead peer, normally the Council Chief 
Executive or Strategic Director.  
 
Roles and responsibilities  
 
The role of peers is to: 
 

· undertake pre-reading in advance of the peer challenge 

· attend and participate in an initial peer team meeting 

· facilitate interviews and discussion whilst on-site at the council and to  gather 
information via these, record and share key findings with the peer team 

· draw on their relevant skills, knowledge and experience 

· analyse key messages throughout the process 

148



9 
 

· work with others in the peer team to develop and deliver a feedback 
presentation 

· contribute to the draft feedback letter within agreed timescales 

· participate in the evaluation of the peer challenge 

· undertake additional or specialist roles on the peer team. 
 
The role of the challenge manager is to: 
 

· manage the overall peer challenge process and act as the first point of 
contact for the client 

· work with the client to identify peers and compose the peer challenge team 

· work with the client to scope and design the peer challenge process including 
a set up meeting and advice/guidance on developing the timetable and 
position statement  

· during the on-site process, be a full part of the team and also act as facilitator 
and adviser to guide the rest of the team through the on-site process 

· facilitate and support the preparation of the feedback presentation, including 
working with the team to determine points of judgement in the process 

· write the written feedback and liaise with the team and the client to finalise it  

· liaise with the client to agree follow-up support. 
 
6. Peer team requirements during the on-site period 
 
We ask the council to provide for the peer team requirements during the on-site 
period. These include: 
 

· the provision of a room at the council to use as a base for the time the peer team 
are on site. This would ideally be located in the main headquarters of the council.  
The room is for the sole use of the team members, with all interviews and focus 
groups being held elsewhere  

· equipment for the base room, including a whiteboard or PowerPoint projector, 
one computer with access to the intranet and internet, and a supply of basic 
stationery 

· catering for the team, including a lunch to be held in the base room each day. 
 
The review manager discusses these arrangements in detail with the council. 
 
The LGA manages and covers all expenses related to accommodation and travel for 
the team. 

149



10 
 

Appendix 1: Sample timetable  
 
Day 1 
 

Time Day, Date, Month

Workstream 1 Workstream 2 Workstream 3

09:00 - 09:45

09:45 - 10:00

10:00 - 10:45

Margaret Smith, Chair of Health and 

Adults Select Committee, Room 127, 

Civic Hall 

Bill/Anne

Judith McDuffy

Director of Public Health, Borchester 

Council  

Room 130, Civic Hall

Abdul/Sam

Kieran Williams, Chief Executive, Borchester 

Council 

Chief Executive's Office, Civic Hall

Tim//Martha

10:45 - 11:00

11:00 - 11:45

Sue McNally, Director Community 

Commissioning Borchester Council            

         Room 127, Civic Hall

Bill/Martha

Mike Thompson

Director of Health and Social Care 

Commissioning, Borchester Council

Room  130, Civic Hall

Anne/Abdul

Brenda Tarbuck, Leader of Labour Group, 

Borchester Council, Room 104a, Civic Hall

Tim/Sam

11:45 - 12:00

13.30 - 14.00

14:00 - 14.45

Jeannie Chesterman, Clinical Director 

Woman & Children, Borchester Health 

Trust, Room 127

Tim/Sam

Claire Gregory, Head of Integrated Adult 

Care Commissioning, Borchester Council 

and Member of Health and Wellbeing 

Board                                                                                           

Room 130, Civic Hall

Abdul/Martha

Frances Abraham, Non Executive Director 

Health Watch Borchester (Chair) and Health 

& Wellbeing Board Member with David 

O'Donnelly, Regional Manager HealthWatch, 

Room 104a, Civic Hall

Bill/Anne
14:45 - 15:00

15:00-16:00

Samantha Merton       

  Head of Policy and Communications 

Borchester Council, Room 127, Civic Hall

Abdul/Bill

Public Health Consultants Focus Group, 

Loxley Room, Edes Mansion 

Martha/Sam

Borchester All Party Elected Members Focus 

Group

Gables Room, Edes Mansion

Anne/Tim

16:00-16:30

16:30-17:30

Council Name 

Break 

Team working and feedback preparation 

Break

Admin / Passes / set up in Team Room

Local Healthwatch Focus Group                                             

Felpersham Room 

Edes Mansion

Abdul/Martha

Setting the Scene -   Committee Room 1

Break

08:30 - 09:00

Break

Daily Feedback 

Senior Management Team Focus Group                                 

Committee Room 1, Civic Hall

Tim/Bill

Heads of Service Focus Group - Youth 

Services, Road Safety, Learning and 

Education, and Economic Development)  

Halnaker Room, The Grange

Sam/Anne

12:00 - 1.30

150



11 
 

Day 2 
 

Time Day, Date, Month

Workstream 1 Workstream 2 Workstream 3

08:30 - 09:00

09:00 - 9.45

Dr Katie Bilbau,  Accountable Officer, 

Brookfield Clinical Commissioning Group                              

Telephone interview  

Peer to ring 02746 349672

Peter Samston,                                                              

Cabinet Member for Children, Borchester Council     

Room 130, Civic Hall

Sean Matthews, Chief Fire Officer, Borchester 

Council                                  Peer to call Sean on 

07129 683641 

09.45 - 10.00

10:00 - 10:45
Matthew Kershaw, Head of Legal Services, 

Borchester Council, Room 127 Civic Hall

Stuart Dawson, Director of Children's 

Services, Borchester Council, Room 130, 

Civic Hall

Christopher Macclesfield, Cabinet Member for 

Health and Community, Borchester Council, 

Member of Health and Wellbeing Board, Room 140

10:45 - 11:00

11:00 - 12:30
Dr James Partridge - Leader of 

Conservative Party, Borchester Council

 Room 127, Civic Hall 

Christine Barnaby, East Gables Community and 

Voluntary Services (Voluntary Services 

Representative on Health and Wellbeing Board) 

and Martin Shoesmith, Room 130, Civic Hall

Service Leads Focus Group   Martello Room, Edes 

Mansion

12:30 - 13:30

13:30 - 14:45

Patrick Orson, Head of Business 

Improvement, Martin Hammerstein, 

Business Change Programme Manager, 

Borchester Council, Room 127, Civic Hall

Jennifer Tatley, Head of Health and Social 

Care Practice, Borchester Council, Room 

130, Civic Hall

 Alan Jefferies, Head of Emergency Management, 

Borchester Council, Room 104a, Civic Hall

14:45 - 15:00

15:00 - 16:00
Hardeep Shah, Leader Borchester Council, 

Room 127, Civic Hall

Sarah Southill                                                                                                                 

Director of Commissioning

Borchester and Loxley Area Team (NHS 

England) Telephone interview.  Peer (Room 

130) to ring 07599 338561

Dr Parson Bilton                                                                                     

Director of Local PHE Centre                                                                   

Peer to call  07227 485459

16:00 - 17:00

17:00 - 17:30
Daily Feedback

Team working and feedback preparation  

Council Name

Team Time

Team Lunch 

Break

Break

Break

 
 

151



12 
 

Day 3 
 

Time Day, Date, Month

Workstream 1 Workstream 2 Workstream 3
08:30 - 09:00 TEAM TRAVELLING

09:00 - 9.45

Catherine Tilton & Tia Mistry, Borchester 

Council

JSNA Lead

Room 127, Civic Hall

Jamie Huntley, HR Business Partner & 

Jo Churchfield, Business Change 

Manager, Borchester Council, Room 

130, Civic Hall

Travelling to Loxley (Abdul and Sam in 

Abdul's car)

9.45 - 10.00

10:00 - 10:45 Travelling to Gables

10:45 - 11:00 Travelling to Gables

11:00 - 12.30

Public Health Focus Group 

Commissioning

Bridge Room, Edes Mansion

Voluntary Sector Focus Group, Chief 

Executive's Board Room, Civic Hall

11.00 - 12.00 Dr Vishal Dhaliwal Clinical 

Chief Officer NHS Gables Clinical 

Commissioning Group, Vishal's Office, 

Gables Hospital

then travel to Wellbeing Hub 12.00-12.30

 - hub visit 12.30

13.00 - 14.00
Gables Wellbeing hub visit - 12.30-13.30

Travel back to Gables hospital 13.30-14.00

14.00 - 14.45

Justine Mitchell, Director of Nursing and 

Quality NHS England Borchester and 

Loxley Area Team),                                    

Member of Health and Wellbeing Board, 

Telephone Interview, Peer to call 07339 

037362, Room 127, Civic Hall

Katie Butley,                                         

Commissioning Manager, Learning 

Disabilities, Borchester Council 

Phone interview, peer to call Katie on 

07226 944626

Dr Agnieszka Laskowsa, Clinical Chairman 

Loxley CCG, Vice Chair of Health and 

Wellbeing Board

 Agnieszka's office, Gables Hospital                                                             

14:45 - 15:00

15:00 - 16:00

Detective Chief Inspector Pierre 

Lautrec,                                         

Borchester Police, telephone interview, 

peer to call 07394 339575

Public Health Staff (Other public health 

activities) Focus Group

Leoni Room, Civic Hall

Travel back to Borchester for team working 

and feedback

16:00 - 17:30

No feedback session today

Team working and feedback preparation  

Break

Council Name

Team Time

Break

Loxley hub visit 

 
 

Day 4 
 

Time Day, Date, Month

Workstream 1 Workstream 2 Workstream 3

09:00 - 12:30

12.30-13.30

Dry run with Chief Executive, Leader and 

Director of Public Health, Committee 

Room 2, Civic Hall

13.30-14.30

14.30 - 15.30 Feedback Committee Room 2, Civic Hall

15.30 - 16.00

Council Name

Team debrief and departure

Lunch

Team prepares feedback

 

152



13 
 

Appendix 2: Headline questions for the peer challenge 
 
The peer challenge focuses on a set of headline questions, and more detailed 
prompts, from which to frame the preliminary review of materials, the 
interviews, and the workshops that make up a peer challenge.  They are 
discussed and tailored in the context of each council. 
 
1. How well are the health and wellbeing challenges understood and 

how are they reflected in JHWSs and in commissioning? 
 

· Is there a vision for the health and wellbeing of the local population? Is 
it shared between key partners in the local system? 

· How strong are the analyses on which JSNAs are based? Do they 
reflect the population needs across health and care? 

· Do JSNAs cover the wider-determinants of health? 

· How well articulated and presented is the analysis? 

· How clear are the priorities and timelines in JHWSs?  Is there an 
appropriate balance between preventative and responsive 
interventions? Is there clarity over any areas of disinvestment from 
historic provision? 

· How clearly are health inequalities, and their relationships with other 
inequalities, understood? Do JHWSs contain convincing strategies for 
closing gaps? 

· How clearly are the delivery programmes related to available 
resources? How well are resources combined and pooled?  

· Is there evidence of HWB members together finding the best uses of 
their collective spend across the system? 

· How well are the potential contributions of the third sector and 
community structures reflected in strategies? 

· How have local priorities been related to the national outcomes 
frameworks and strategies for public health, adult social care, children, 
and the NHS? 

· How clear is the linkage through JSNAs, to JHWSs, and then to 
commissioning? 

· How well combined are the analyses available from locality-based 
sources with those of the commissioning support unit? 

· How clear is the relationship between JHWS and CCG commissioning 
plans and strategies? 

· How well-used are national learning, benchmarking information, 
summaries of effective practice and value for money approaches, and 
the experiences of others responding to similar challenges? 

· How clearly are health and wellbeing priorities reflected in broader 
community strategies and in the delivery strategies of individual 
agencies, including district council strategies in two-tier areas? 

· How ambitious are the strategies and are they deliverable? To what 
extent is the balance of local service delivery being challenged? 

· How well are actions, impacts and cost-effectiveness reviewed? To 
what effect? Is the local health system a learning system? 
 

153



14 
 

2. How strong are governance, leadership, partnerships, voices, and 
relationships? 
 

· How well does the membership of the HWB reflect the need to align 
power and influence around the JHWS? 

· How effective is the grip of the board on its programme and agenda? 
How well informed are its members? How effective are discussion, 
challenge, commitment and review? How is conflict managed? 

· How strongly do members commit to the board and its actions? How 
well-shared is the core analysis to challenges and the commitment to 
priorities and actions? 

· How well developed are relationships in the board? How effective has 
the development of the board been and a mutual understanding of how 
it can be most effective in achieving key impacts? 

· What is the quality of the relationship between the HWB and the 
CCG(s)?   

· What is the quality of the relationship between the local public health 
team and CCGs? Is it able to meet its statutory function in giving the 
CCG public health advice? 

· How effective are relationships with Health Providers? The local 
schools system? Local housing agencies? Other public sector 
providers?  

· How well is the council considering the impact of its services, plans and 
strategies on health and wellbeing (eg considering the impact of 
planning decisions on health and wellbeing)? 

· How well engaged are local politicians, beyond those directly involved 
in the HWB?  How strongly do health and wellbeing challenges 
influence political ambitions and vice versa? How strong is the 
commitment to JHWSs across the local political landscape? 

· How effectively are local voluntary and community organisations 
engaged in advocacy, strategic direction, and delivery? 

· How effective are the local Healthwatch arrangements? 

· How well are the experiences of service users, patients and members 
of the public heard and reflected on, both through the local 
Healthwatch organisation and wider?   

· How effective is the local Overview and Scrutiny function? 

· How effective is collaboration with the Public Health England and NHS 
England regional and local teams? 

· In two tier areas, how well are district authorities engaged in analysis 
and setting priorities? Do strategies make best use of the functions of 
both tiers? 

· Are there shared arrangements for any element of the public health 
functions? How well do they work? 
 

3. How well are mandated and discretionary public health functions 
delivered? 
 

· How well are sexual health services commissioned and delivered? 

· How effective are local arrangements for screening and immunisation? 

154



15 
 

· How well is the population healthcare advice service delivered locally? 
What is the quality of the relationship between the local public health 
team and the CCG(s)? 

· How well is the local Health Check programme being commissioned 
and delivered? 

· Is there a clear and appropriate Health Protection arrangements? Is 
there clarity over relative roles, responsibilities, and leadership 
arrangements in the context of an incident or outbreak? 

· How effective are Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
relationships? How well are key roles understood? How strong are the 
connections to wider emergency planning and resilience 
arrangements? 

· What discretionary functions, including drugs and alcohol interventions, 
are provided in the locality? On what rationale? 

· How effectively has the Board encouraged integrated working between 
commissioners of health and social care services? 

 
4. How well are the DPH and team being used, and how strong is the 

mutual engagement between them and other council teams? 
 

· How has the organisational design of the council been adapted to 
make best use of the public health team? 

· Do the local arrangements ensure that the DPH is able to fulfil the 
statutory functions of the role effectively? 

· How well is the DPH able to contribute to the wider leadership of the 
place and council? 

· How well are JHWS priorities reflected in service plans and change 
programmes across the council?   

· How well are the strengths of the professional public health team used 
across the council and its partnerships?   

· How is the public health team's use of evidence and analysis being 
incorporated with the place-based sensitivity of the councillors?  

· How aware are key staff across the council of the contributions that the 
public health team can make? 

· How aware is the public health team of the full range of the functions of 
the council, their spheres of influence, and their particular areas of 
expertise? 

· How strong are the arrangements for the development of the public 
health profession, including continuous professional development and 
accreditation? 

· How influential is the public health team across the wider local health 
system? 

 

 
 

155



156

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 9(b) 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Tel.  

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY - DELIVERY PLAN 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Assistant Director 
Strategy, Commissioning & Prevention Children’s 
Services 

Deadline date N/A 

 
The Board is asked to note the first draft of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan and 
consider the wider determinants of health that the Board may want to focus on to deliver on the 
priorities in the strategy, for example housing. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following the development of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 
2.2       Present the Delivery Plan that supports the Health and Wellbeing Strategy  
 
2.3 Consider the wider determinants of health that the Board may want to focus on to support        

delivery of the priorities in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY  
 

Following the development of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy we have developed a 
delivery plan that details work across adult, children and health services that will support 
delivery of the priorities in the Strategy.  The Board is required to consider the wider 
determinants of health, how these impact on the priorities and what the Board want to do to 
address these.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 In the consultation events that supported the development of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy housing was an area that many participants considered to be a wider determinant 
of health outcomes. List here any consultations already undertaken and completed, with 
dates and outcomes and including consultation where relevant, to avoid the Board 
duplicating work already completed. 

 
5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

The Board may want to consider the development of a task and finish group to consider the  
wider determinants of health and how the Board can support work to address these 
determinants or the board may want to identify specific wider determinants for the task and 
finish group to focus on.   
 

157



 
 

 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The guidance about health and wellbeing system improvement identifies the need for 
Health and Wellbeing Boards to focus on the wider determinants of health and not just the 
more obvious determinants and actions of agencies such as the Local Authority and 
Health.  

 
7.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
7.1    Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan and the Health and Wellbeing System Improvement   

document. 
 
   

158



 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
3

/1
4

 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
2

0
1

3
 

 
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 O
n
e
: 
S
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 /
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
/ 
M
a
g
g
ie
 M
c
C
u
tc
h
e
o
n
/M
a
lc
o
lm
 B
is
h
o
p
 

A
im
s
: 

 1
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 w
it
h

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 l
if
e

 t
o

 e
n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 
m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
ir

 l
if
e

 c
h

a
n
c
e

s
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

1
.1

.1
 

P
re

g
n

a
n
t 

m
o

th
e

rs
 w

h
o

 s
m

o
k
e

 
a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o
 

s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
. 

 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

ra
te

s
 i
n

 p
re

g
n
a

n
c
y
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

o
rn

 w
it
h

 l
o

w
 

b
ir

th
 r

a
te

s
 

C
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 
F

iv
e

 P
a

th
w

a
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 w
o

rk
) 

–
 

J
a

n
e
t 

D
u

lla
g
h

a
n

 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 F
a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

F
N

P
) 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 7
0
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 i
n

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

id
w

iv
e

s
 

s
in

c
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 C

O
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 3

4
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
q
u

it
s
 8

9
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 a
 6

5
%

 q
u

it
 r

a
te

. 
 W

it
h

in
 m

id
w

if
e

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
h

e
 a

n
te

n
a

ta
l 

p
a

th
w

a
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e
ts

 p
re

g
n

a
n
t 

w
o

m
e

n
 

a
n

d
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
B

a
s
e

lin
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 
  

 

1
.1

.2
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 b
re

a
s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

 
•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
a

te
s
 o

f 
b

re
a

s
tf

e
e
d

in
g
 

in
it
ia

ti
o

n
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 b
re

a
s
t 

fe
e

d
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o
n

 
ra

te
s
 

C
C

G
 –

 M
a

g
g

ie
 

M
c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 
N

H
S

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 
–

 T
ra

c
e

y
 

C
o

g
a

n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

d
a

ta
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

C
G

 w
h

ils
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 V
is

it
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 N

H
S

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
Is

s
u

e
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 n
e

w
 m

o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 b

re
a
s
tf
e

e
d

in
g

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 C
P

F
T

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 .
 A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

lic
e

n
s
e

d
 B

a
b

y
 C

a
fe

s
 (

o
ff
e

ri
n
g

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a
s
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

re
a

s
tf

e
e

d
in

g
 

m
o

th
e

rs
) 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

a
u

tu
m

n
. 

B
re

a
s
tf
e

e
d
in

g
 p

e
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
rs

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 n
e

w
 b

re
a

s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

 m
o

th
e

rs
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 u

n
it
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

159



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

1
.1

.3
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 C

h
ild

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
•
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
h

ild
h
o

o
d

 
im

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 a

t 
a

g
e

 4
-5

 y
e

a
rs

. 

C
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 
F

iv
e

 P
a

th
w

a
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 w
o

rk
) 

–
 

J
a

n
e
t 

D
u

lla
g
h

a
n

 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
b

y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 V
is

it
o

rs
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 e
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

m
id

w
if
e

ry
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 v
is

it
o

rs
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

re
-

b
ir

th
 t
o

 5
 p

a
th

w
a

y
, 

th
is

 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
e
a

rl
y
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

a
rl

y
 

h
e

lp
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
a

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 B
a

s
e

lin
e

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 :
 

 •
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
h

ild
h
o

o
d

 i
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
h
o

o
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

t 
a

g
e

 4
-5

 y
e

a
rs

. 

 

1
.1

.4
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 –
 

S
u

e
 M

it
c
h

e
ll 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 
d

a
ta

 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 

d
ro

p
p

e
d

 i
n

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

lt
h
o
u

g
h

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
. 

A
t 

D
e

c
 2

0
1

1
 r

a
te

s
 s

ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 s
ta

b
le

 a
t 
a

 l
o

w
 r

a
te

 o
f 

3
4

.9
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 5

0
.9

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
w

it
h

 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

t 
3

0
.9

. 
 T

h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
 i
s
 3

6
.0

, 
th

e
 S

N
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 i
s
 4

0
.3

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 3
0
.9

. 
P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
 i
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
s
e

 2
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 W

o
rk

in
g

 
g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 W

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p

 e
n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 F
a

m
ily

 N
u

rs
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 o

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
e
e

n
a

g
e

 
p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 r

a
te

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
. 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
e

p
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
-p

ro
c
u

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 h
a
lf
 o

f 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

 

 

1
.1

.5
 

E
n

s
u

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h
ild

c
a

re
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
s
 o

f 
a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
. 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 
c
h

ild
 c

a
re

 p
la

c
e

s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

P
a

m
 S

e
tt
e

rf
ie

ld
 

K
a

re
n

 
H

in
g

s
to

n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
A

n
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 S

u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
e
a

rl
y
 

c
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

 

160



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 c

h
ild

 c
a

re
 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 

•
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 

c
a

re
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 

O
F

S
T

E
D

. 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u
g

h
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

n
e

w
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
la

c
e

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 c

h
ild

 m
in

d
e

rs
, 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t
o

 f
o
c
u

s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
O

fs
te

d
’s

 
c
ri

te
ri
a

 f
o

r 
G

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 A
b

o
v
e

 c
u
rr

e
n

t 
ra

ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
g

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 7
4

%
. 

 In
 J

u
ly

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 1

5
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
; 

 
(4

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

) 
 S
e
tt
in
g
s
 ;
  
  
  
  
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

  
 3

 
G

o
o

d
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

3
 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
  

  
4

 
In

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
  

  
0

 
 C
h
il
d
m
in
d
e
rs
; 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

  
  

1
 

G
o

o
d

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 3
 (

 t
w

o
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 f
ir

s
t 

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
) 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
  

  
 1

 
In

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
  

  
  
0

 
 

1
.1

.6
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
m

ily
 

N
u

rs
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 F

N
P

 

•
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 F

N
P

 a
n

d
 

w
h

o
 g

o
 o

n
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
. 

K
ir

s
ty

 L
y
n

n
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g

 
T

h
e

 F
N

P
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 p
o

s
t 

fo
r 

ju
s
t 

o
v
e

r 
a

 y
e

a
r 

a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 F
N

P
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
F

N
P

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

. 
A

s
 t

h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
’s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e

ir
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 p

a
ra

lle
l 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
a

llo
w

in
g

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
, 

F
a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 i
n
 a

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 H
e
a
lt
h

 V
is

it
o

r 
s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 a

llo
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

ll 
v
e

n
e

ra
b

le
 

 

161



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
, 

u
s
in

g
 m

o
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
in

te
rv

ie
w

in
g

 a
n

d
 

m
ir

ro
ri
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 F

N
P

 N
u

rs
e

s
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

v
e

n
e

ra
b

le
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
. 

F
N

P
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h
e

 n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
%

 
re

c
ru

it
e

d
 U

n
d

e
r 

1
6

 w
e

e
k
s
. 

S
lig

h
tl
y
 u

n
d
e

r 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

(3
%

) 
fo

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e
lig

ib
le

 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

. 
 

1
.1

.7
 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
C

o
n

n
e

c
ti
n
g

 M
u

m
s
 (

p
e

ri
-n

a
ta

l)
 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

ro
ll 

o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

o
lih

u
ll 

p
a

re
n

ti
n
g

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 
e

n
g

a
g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
; 

•
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 
e

n
g

a
g
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

h
o

 
re

p
o

rt
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 c
h

ild
. 

P
a

m
 S

e
tt
e

rf
ie

ld
 

F
io

n
a
 B

a
u
k
e

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

B
a

rn
a

rd
o
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

M
id

w
if
e

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 S

o
lih

u
ll 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
s
 a

 p
ilo

t,
 i
f 

th
is

 i
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
it
 w

ill
 

ro
ll 

o
u

t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 f
o

c
u

s
e
s
 o

n
 p

re
-b

ir
th

 t
o

 t
w

o
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
a

tt
a

c
h
m

e
n

t.
 A

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 

th
is

 F
e

n
la

n
d
 M

in
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
e
c
u

re
d

 f
u

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 p
e

ri
-n

a
ta

lly
 w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 m

a
te

rn
a
l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 t

o
 5

 
p

a
th

w
a

y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
. 
S

o
lih

u
ll 

P
ilo

t 
w

ill
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e

 i
n

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3
. 

 

 

1
.1

.8
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

w
o

-y
e

a
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
h

o
s
e

 m
o
s
t 

in
 n

e
e

d
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

w
o

-y
e

a
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
; 

•
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

 p
la

c
e
 

w
h

o
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 o

ff
e

r;
 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g

a
p

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 m
o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
fo

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 s
ta

g
e

 

P
a

m
 S

e
tt
e

rf
ie

ld
 

K
a

re
n

 
H

in
g

s
to

n
 

S
e

p
t 

2
0
1

3
 

T
h

e
 t

ra
je

c
to

ry
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
3
 t

o
 2

0
1

4
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 
s
e

c
u

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 o

f 
c
h

ild
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

b
e

fo
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
in

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 
T

e
x
t 

b
a

c
k
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n

fo
rm

in
g

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 
e

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 
h

ig
h
ly

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.
  

 T
o

 h
e

lp
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
t 

fo
u

n
d
a

ti
o
n

 s
ta

g
e

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 e
a

rl
y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
: 

•
 

B
ir

th
 –

 3
 e

a
rl
y
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

to
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
. 

•
 

C
h

ild
h
o

o
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

fo
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
e

e
d
s
. 

 

•
 

S
e

n
c
o

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

 

162



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
c
h

ild
re

n
. 

1
.1

.9
 

E
n

s
u

re
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n

tr
e
s
 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 

•
 

E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 o
r 

C
h

ild
 i
n

 N
e

e
d

 P
la

n
; 

P
a

m
 S

e
tt
e

rf
ie

ld
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

 r
e

-v
is

io
n

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

a
n

d
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 i
s
 i
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
  

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
. 

 B
a

s
e

 l
in

e
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 

 

 

1
.1

.1
0

 
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 

a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

a
s
e

d
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 
in

fo
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

•
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 S

ta
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

; 

•
 

D
a

ta
 c

a
p

tu
re

d
 

d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 

in
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

K
a

re
n

 
H

in
g

s
to

n
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
ta

ff
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

S
ta

r 
a

n
d
 F

a
m

ily
 S

ta
r.

 T
h

is
 t
o

o
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 S

e
p

t 
2
0

1
3

. 
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
g

a
th

e
ri

n
g

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 O

fs
te

d
 

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

1
.1

.1
1

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
n

n
e

c
ti
n

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
 

3
5

0
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 ‘
tu

rn
e
d

 
a

ro
u

n
d
’ 
in

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 

y
e

a
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

W
e
n
d

i 
O

g
le

-
W

e
lb

o
u

rn
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k
. 

 

    W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

          

163



 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 T
w
o

: 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 t
re

a
ti
n
g

 a
v
o

id
a

b
le

 i
lln

e
s
s
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d

: 
S

u
e

 M
it
c
h
e

ll/
A

d
ri
a

n
 C

h
a

p
m

a
n

/ 
C

a
th

y
 M

it
c
h

e
ll 

A
im
s

: 

 1
. 

N
a

rr
o

w
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 w
o

rs
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
, 

w
h

ils
t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 o
f 

a
ll.

 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

2
.1

.1
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

S
m

o
k
e

fr
e

e
 P

la
n
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 

to
b

a
c
c
o

 c
o
n

tr
o

l 

•
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

•
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 a

m
o
n

g
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 a

m
o
n

g
 

a
d

u
lt
s
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 t

o
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

h
a

n
d

 s
m

o
k
e

  

•
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 

h
a

rm
 c

a
u
s
e

d
 b

y
 

to
b

a
c
c
o

 u
s
e

 

•
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

J
u

lia
n

 B
a
s
e

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

3
 

S
m

o
k
e

fr
e

e
 P

la
n
 p

re
p
a

re
d

, 
S

m
o

k
e

fr
e

e
 A

lli
a
n

c
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

, 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

 
 H

ig
h

e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 
s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
0

 a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0
1

2
/2

0
1

3
. 

 
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
y
e

a
r 

o
n

 c
o

u
rs

e
 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 
1

3
/1

4
 t
a

rg
e

t.
 P

la
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
‘s

to
p

to
b
e

r’
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
N

e
w

 Y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 N
o
 S

m
o

k
in

g
 d

a
y
 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
. 
N

e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 P
S

H
F

T
 

la
u

n
c
h

e
d

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ir
e

c
t 

w
e

b
-b

a
s
e
d

 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 

C
it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l.
  

 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
h
a

m
p

io
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

. 
  

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 d
u

ri
n
g

 t
h
e

 
la

s
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a

rs
 f
ro

m
 o

v
e

r 
2

7
%

 d
o

w
n

 t
o

 2
3

.7
%

 
(E

n
g

la
n
d

 r
a

te
 2

1
%

).
  

    

 

2
.1

.2
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 4
 L

if
e

 P
la

n
 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 w

e
ig

h
t 

J
u

lia
n

 B
a
s
e

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

3
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 4
 L

if
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

, 
C

h
a

n
g

e
 4

 L
if
e

 
A

lli
a
n

c
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

 
 N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

4
L
 r

o
a

d
-s

h
o

w
 v

is
it
e
d

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 A

u
g

u
s
t,

 l
o
c
a

l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

 

164



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 

•
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
a

ta
 

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 –
 C

a
rn

e
g

ie
 

W
e
ig

h
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
‘L

e
ts

 G
e

t 
M

o
v
in

g
’,
 ‘
L
e

ts
 K

e
e

p
 M

o
v
in

g
’ 
p

lu
s
 o

th
e

r 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 w

a
lk

in
g

 
fo

r 
h

e
a
lt
h

, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g

 u
s
e

 
o

f 
‘g

re
e

n
’ 
g

y
m

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 V
iv

a
c
it
y
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
. 

 
 P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
 s

h
o

rt
-l
is

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 F
o

o
d

 C
it
y
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

. 
  

 
 B

a
s
e

 l
in

e
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 

2
.1

.3
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

in
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 n
e

ig
h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 

R
S

P
H

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 R

S
P

H
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

re
g

is
te

re
d
 a

s
 h

e
a
lt
h

 
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e
s
 s

ig
n
in

g
 

R
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 D
e

a
l 

J
u

lia
n

 B
a
s
e

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

3
 

R
S

P
H

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

. 
 

 H
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

. 
 P

la
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
th

 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g

 t
h
e

 P
H

 L
o
c
a

l 
R

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
D

e
a

l 
to

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 d

u
ri

n
g

 a
u

tu
m

n
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 r
o

lli
n
g

 o
u

t 
to

 l
o

c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
. 

 

 

2
.1

.4
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
n
o

n
-

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
b

le
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 
N

H
S

 H
e

a
lt
h

 C
h
e

c
k
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

•
 

D
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 6
0
5

9
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 C
h
e

c
k
s
 b

y
 G

P
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 t
o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
p

a
ti
e
n

ts
 a

t 
h
ig

h
e

r 
ri
s
k
 

o
f 

c
a

rd
io

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
d

is
e
a

s
e
 a

n
d
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
, 

a
n

d
 o

ff
e

r 
lif

e
s
ty

le
 

m
o

d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
ri

s
k
 

•
 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 

C
h

a
s
 R

y
a

n
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
4

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 l
o
c
a

l 
G

P
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 h
e
a

lt
h
 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
 D

u
ri

n
g

 A
p

ri
l-
J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

3
, 

1
4

1
1

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 

w
e

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 

ta
rg

e
t.
  

  T
h

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
C

C
G

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

u
rd

e
n

 o
f 

c
o

ro
n
a

ry
 h

e
a

rt
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 s

tr
o

k
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
. 

 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

  
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

  

165



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

is
e
a

s
e

/a
t 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

; 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

n
w

a
rd

 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t/
 

p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

•
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

s
 G

P
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 b

u
rd

e
n
 o

f 
c
a

rd
io

v
a

s
c
u

la
r 

d
is

e
a

s
e

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 
  

2
.1

.5
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

s
 a

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a

 F
o

o
d

 f
o

r 
L

if
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 d
ie

t 
a

n
d

 n
u

tr
it
io

n
. 

 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h

y
 

a
n

d
 s

e
a
s
o

n
a
l 
fo

o
d

s
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
e

n
g

a
g
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
fo

o
d

 a
n

d
 f
o

o
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
  

J
u

lia
n

 B
a
s
e

 /
 

P
E

C
T

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 A

p
r 

2
0

1
4

  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

it
ie

s
 b

id
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

 

    W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

              

166



 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 T
h
re
e
: 

H
e

a
lt
h

ie
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
h

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

e
r 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d

: 
T

im
 B

is
h

o
p

/ 
E

w
a

n
 K

e
ls

a
ll 

A
im
s

: 

 1
. 

E
n

a
b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
e
s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

  N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

3
.1

.1
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 l
e
a

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

•
 

N
e

w
 f

ro
n

t 
d

o
o

r 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
o

ff
e

r 
in

 p
la

c
e

 

•
 

G
re

a
te

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

re
a

b
le

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

R
e

fo
c
u
s
e

d
 

p
e

rs
o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
e

r 
fo

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

T
in

a
 H

o
rn

s
b

y
, 

D
e

b
b

ie
 

M
c
Q

u
a

d
e

, 
T

im
 

B
is

h
o
p

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

 

3
.1

.2
 

D
e

liv
e

r 
a

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

T
h

e
 C

it
y
 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 
c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
c
a

re
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

N
ic

k
 B

la
k
e

 
0

1
.0

3
.1

3
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

 

3
.1

.3
 

A
g

re
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 j
o

in
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 c

a
re

rs
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 a

n
d

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 

•
 

%
 i
n

 c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
a

re
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

N
ic

k
 B

la
k
e

 
3

1
. 

0
3
.1

3
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ri
tt

e
n

. 
T

O
 b

e
 s

ig
n
e

d
 o

ff
 a

n
d

 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 b

y
 0

1
.0

9
.1

3
. 

 

3
.1

.4
 

N
e

w
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

fo
r 

A
S

C
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

•
 

M
o

re
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 

N
ic

k
 B

la
k
e

 
3

1
.0

3
.1

3
 

N
e

w
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
g

u
n

 w
it
h

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
s
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
a

rt
n

e
r.

 
 

 

167



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
u
s
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
u
s
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(l
e

s
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
) 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a
ti
o

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 

P
C

C
 

E
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

 P
C

C
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 t

e
a
m

. 

3
.1

.5
 

T
o

 r
e

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

•
 

N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

N
ic

k
 B

la
k
e

, 
T

e
rr

y
 P

ri
o

r,
 

M
u

b
a

ra
k
 

D
a

rb
a

r,
 S

e
rc

o
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 

 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.
 

 

3
.1

.6
 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 M

a
rk

e
t 

P
o

s
it
io

n
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

A
S

C
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

ri
tt

e
n
 a

n
d
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
A

S
C

 i
n

 
P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h

 

T
im

 B
is

h
o

p
 

3
1

.1
2

.1
3

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

. 
 

  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

            

168



 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 F
o
u
r:

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 g

o
o
d

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d

: 
T

im
 B

is
h

o
p

/ 
W

e
n
d

i 
O

g
le

 –
 W

e
lb

o
u

rn
/ 
J
o
n

 E
lli

s
/C

a
th

y
 M

it
c
h

e
ll/

M
a

g
g

ie
 M

c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 

A
im
s

: 

 1
. 

E
n

a
b
le

 g
o

o
d
 c

h
ild

 a
n

d
 a

d
u
lt
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

, 
a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
a
p

id
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p
o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 

s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 
ill

 h
e
a

lt
h

 o
r 

d
e

te
ri

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

4
.1

.1
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

R
C

 
s
in

g
le

 p
o

in
t-

o
f-

a
c
c
e

s
s
 

•
 

C
Q

U
IN

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
  

J
o

h
n
 E

lli
s
 

D
e

c
 2

0
1

3
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

u
p

d
a

te
s
 t

o
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
. 

 

4
.1

.2
 

R
e

-e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
u

ic
id

e
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 g
ro

u
p

 
•
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

c
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

w
h

e
re

 t
o

 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 
c
ri

s
is

 

D
r 

P
a

n
d

a
y
 

A
p

r 
2

0
1
4

 
R

e
g

u
la

r 
u

p
d
a

te
s
 t

o
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
. 

 

4
.1

.3
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e
ir

 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e

 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

S
H

U
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
P

e
te

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
 p

u
p
ils

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 

a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

 n
e
e

d
s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

M
a

g
g

ie
 

M
c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 a
n

d
 

J
a

n
e
t 

D
u

lla
g

h
a

n
 

 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
n

u
rs

e
s
 n

o
w

 
h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
n

u
rs

e
 i
n

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g

. 
 

 M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f

o
r 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

.g
. 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 C

A
M

H
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

 

4
.1

.4
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
o

r 
e

m
o

ti
o
n

a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

t 
ti
e

r 
2
, 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
n
g

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
T

ie
r 

3
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 T

ie
r 

2
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

c
it
y
 

•
 

W
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 f
ir
s
t 

b
e

in
g
 s

e
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

ie
r 

2
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 

•
 

W
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

to
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t;
 

•
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

J
a

n
e
t 

D
u

lla
g
h

a
n

/M
a

g
g

ie
 

M
c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 g
a
p

 i
n

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f
o

r 
ti
e

r 
2

. 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g
e

 a
n
d

 P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 F

o
u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

T
ru

s
t 

(C
P

F
T

) 
th

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 
c
h

ild
 a

n
d

 
a

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

C
A

M
H

) 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
ie

r 
1
 o

r 
ti
e

r 
2

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
ie

r 
2

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
 C

A
M

H
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

o
rk

. 
 S

c
h

o
o
l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
s
 c

a
n

 n
o

w
 r

e
fe

r 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

to
 3

T
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

c
o

u
n
s
e

lli
n
g

 t
h
e

ra
p

y
).

 

 

169



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 s

h
o

w
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
e

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

ie
r 

2
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 

•
 

R
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 t
ie

r 
3

 a
n
d

 
4

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. 

•
 

U
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
r 

a
s
 

th
e

s
e

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 b
u
ild

in
g

 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e

; 

•
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 

4
.1

.5
 

T
ie

r 
3

 C
A

M
H

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 s
u

c
h
 t

h
a

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h

 
m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 a

b
le

 
to

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
ie

r 
3

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
 a

 
ti
m

e
ly

 w
a

y
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 e
m

o
ti
o

n
a
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
re

fe
rr

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 t
ie

r 
3

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
; 

•
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 t
ie

r 
3

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 k
e
p

t;
 

•
 

W
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
 

•
 

W
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t;

 

•
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 s

h
o

w
 

d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
b

le
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

M
a

g
g

ie
 

M
c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n
s
iv

e
 C

A
M

H
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
 l
e

a
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
n

o
w

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 

 

170



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
; 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
d
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 
h

o
s
p
it
a

l 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

4
.1

.6
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

C
C

/L
C

G
 M

H
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

T
h

is
 

w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 m
a
k
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

: 
S

u
ic

id
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 M
H

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

P
o

lic
e

 M
H

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

M
H

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

J
o

in
t 

C
C

G
 M

H
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

•
 

T
o

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

T
. 

P
ri

o
r 

/ 
S

. 
P

a
n

d
a

y
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
F

ir
s
t 
d

ra
ft

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 t
h

e
m

e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

. 
 

 

4
.1

.7
 

R
e

v
is

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

•
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

a
re

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

C
C

G
 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 
C

P
F

T
/C

C
G

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

J
o

n
 C

h
a

p
m

a
n

 P
S

C
B

 a
n

d
 C

a
ro

l 
D

a
v
is

 C
P

F
T

 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

 C
C

G
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 C
P

F
T

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
. 

 

4
.1

.8
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
n

d
 

h
o

lis
ti
c
 r

e
a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e

 
w

it
h

in
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

th
a

t 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 B

M
E

 a
n

d
 h

a
rd

 
to

 r
e

a
c
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 m
o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri

v
e
d

 
p

o
lit

ic
a

l 
w

a
rd

s
 

•
 

N
o

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

•
 

N
o

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 b

y
 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
w

a
rd

 

C
P

F
T

 
M

o
n

th
ly

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 C
P

F
T

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 

th
e

 r
e

fo
c
u
s
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 

  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

 A
R

C
 R

e
v
ie

w
: 

T
h

e
 A

R
C

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 w

e
ll 

–
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 b
u
t 

a
ll 

in
v
o
lv

e
d

 r
e

c
o
g

n
is

e
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
o
n

e
 y

e
a

r 
o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 i
t 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
, 
h

o
w

 G
P

s
, 

c
a

re
rs

, 
lo

c
a

l 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
p

a
ti
e
n

ts
 m

ig
h

t 
m

o
re

 e
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 h

e
lp

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 u

rg
e
n

tl
y
. 

 S
u

ic
id

e
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o
n

: 
T

h
e

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 i
ts

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 b

u
t 
th

e
s
e

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
o

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
t 

p
e

o
p
le

 i
n

 n
e
e

d
 o

h
 h

e
lp

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

G
P

s
. 

 
 

171



 
        P
ri
o
ri
ty
 F
iv
e
: 

b
e

tt
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h

 l
if
e

-l
o
n

g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d

: 
T

im
 B

is
h

o
p

/ 
W

e
n
d

i 
O

g
le

 –
 W

e
lb

o
u

rn
 /
 J

o
n

 E
lli

s
/S

u
e

 J
e

s
ti
c
e

 

A
im

s
: 

 1
. 

M
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
liv

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
if
e

-l
o
n

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

b
u

s
t,

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

a
re

 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
, 

c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 e
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

to
 a

d
u
lt
h

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 o
ld

 a
g

e
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

5
.1

.1
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 N
H

S
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h
c
a

re
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 

o
f 

th
e

 J
o
in

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 T

o
o

l 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 
b

e
w

te
e

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h
  

S
u

e
 J

e
s
ti
c
e

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

3
 

1
5

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
ra

in
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 J
F

T
 a

n
d
 

C
H

C
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e

 1
5

%
 o

f 
p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 M
H

 a
n

d
 L

D
P

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 j
o

in
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
C

H
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 f
o

u
n

d
 e

lig
ib

le
 t
o

 
re

c
e

iv
e

 C
H

C
 1

0
0

%
 h

e
a
lt
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 

 

5
.1

.2
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
A

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
•
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
t 
1

6
 a

n
d

 
C

H
C

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 o

r 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 1
8

th
 

b
ir

th
d
a

y
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

 a
d

u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

S
u

e
 J

e
s
ti
c
e

 
O

n
 g

o
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 
ti
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 

 S
m

o
o

th
e

r 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 a

d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 

5
.1

.3
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 r
a
n

g
e

 
o

f 
s
h
o

rt
 b

re
a

k
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

re
d

u
c
e

 o
r 

d
e

la
y
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

n
e

e
d
s
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

s
h

o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
; 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

J
a

n
e
t 

D
u

lla
g

h
a

n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 
A

 f
le

x
ib

le
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
h

o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 j
u

s
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e
d

 w
it
h

 l
o
c
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
‘0

-1
9

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
’,
 ‘
8

-1
9

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
’.
 ‘
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 S

p
o

rt
s
’,
 

‘S
ib

lin
g
s
 (

e
m

o
ti
o

n
a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
)’
 

a
n

d
 ‘
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

.’
  

 

172



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

d
ir

e
c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
; 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 
d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 o
u
t 

o
f 
c
it
y
 

p
la

c
e

m
e
n

ts
 

•
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

T
h

e
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
‘w

ra
p

 
a

ro
u

n
d
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
‘o

n
e

 t
o
 o

n
e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
’ 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h

e
ir

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
 

v
ia

 D
ir

e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

ti
c
k
e

ts
 a

n
d
 p

a
s
s
e
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 l
o
c
a
l 

p
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r 

fo
ru

m
s
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d

 t
h

e
 

S
h

o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

 
T

h
e

 S
h

o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s
 ‘
c
a

p
it
a

l’ 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
b
id

s
. 

 
D

ir
e

c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

e
d
 a

t 
C

W
D

 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
n

e
l 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 1
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
ta

k
e

-u
p

. 
C

W
D

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n
d

 s
h

o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 o

ff
e

r 
o

u
t 

to
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

t/
c
a

re
r 

fo
ru

m
s
, 

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 “
H

e
a
lt
h

w
a

tc
h

” 
lo

c
a

lly
 w

h
o

 a
re

 d
o

in
g

 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 o

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
W

D
. 

2
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p
s
 h

e
ld

 l
o
c
a

lly
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
/c

a
re

rs
 

a
n

d
 C

W
D

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 t

h
o

u
g

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
h

o
rt

 
B

re
a

k
s
 o

ff
e

r.
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 L
in

k
 a

n
d

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

 c
a

re
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 
6

 
lin

k
 a

n
d
 2

 r
e
ta

in
e

d
 c

a
re

rs
. 

O
u

tr
e

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

ls
o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 
to

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 o

f 
C

W
D

. 
 

5
.1

.5
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 

c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
; 

•
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
t 
1

6
 

a
n

d
 C

H
C

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

r 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
1

8
th

 b
ir

th
d
a

y
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
to

 a
d

u
lt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

M
u

b
a

ra
k
 

D
a

rb
a

r,
 J

e
n

n
y
 

G
o

o
d

e
s
, 
J
a
n

e
t 

D
u

lla
g
h

a
n

 

S
e

p
t 

2
0
1

3
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

 s
e

t 
u

p
 a

s
 a

 w
o

rk
 

s
tr

e
a
m

 o
f 
th

e
 C

W
D

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u

p
. 

A
g

re
e

d
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 1

4
-2

5
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
s
 t
e

a
m

 w
it
h

 a
d

u
lt
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 t

e
a
m

. 
P

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
s
e
n

t 
to

 C
h
ild

re
n

 
a

n
d

 A
d
u

lt
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
s
 

fo
r 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 

5
.1

.6
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 j
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 

M
a

g
g

ie
 

M
c
C

u
tc

h
e

o
n

 
S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

. 
 

 

173



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 c

a
re

 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

5
.1

.7
 

E
lig

ib
le

 a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 a
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 
d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 N
H

S
 

fu
n

d
e
d

 D
ir

e
c
te

d
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

•
 

9
5

%
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
  

D
G

 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 
Q

1
 d

a
ta

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

s
 2

3
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h
e

c
k
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 
3

3
7

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

5
.1

.8
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
a
th

w
a

y
s
 i
n

to
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o
n

. 

•
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 b

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ip
e
lin

e
 r

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

n
e

e
d
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p
h

a
s
e

 

M
u

b
a

ra
k
 D

a
rb

a
r 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
1

 d
ra

ft
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 b

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 

5
.1

.9
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 o
f 

v
is

io
n

in
g

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 d
a

y
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
re

 p
e

rs
o

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

•
 

N
e

w
 m

o
d

e
l 
a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

b
y
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 b

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

p
h

a
s
e

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

M
u

b
ra

k
 D

a
rb

a
r 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 U
s
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
r 

e
n

g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

D
ia

lo
g
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

r 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e
s
. 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e
ls

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 

 

5
.1

.1
0

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 S

E
N

 a
n
d

 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 s

in
g
le

 p
la

n
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
o

ff
e

r.
 

    

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
S

in
g

le
 P

la
n

 a
n
d

 L
o
c
a

l 
O

ff
e

r 
 

     

J
a

n
e
t 

 
D

u
lla

g
h

a
n

/J
e

n
n

y
 

G
o

o
d

e
s
  

      

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
      

T
a

s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u

p
 s

e
t 

u
p

, 
g

o
v
e

rn
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 w
it
h

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
. 

 
      

 

  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
, 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 j
o
in

tl
y
. 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
. 

 
  

174



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

DATE: 12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Sue Mitchell, Interim Director of Public Health Tel. 01733 
207175 

 

Longer Lives Tool-kit: a Peterborough Perspective 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Sue Mitchell Deadline date :   

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the information provided in the summary 
attached. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

This report has been prepared following the publication of the Longer Lives Tool-kit by Public 
Health England (PHE). 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
The attached report at Appendix A was requested by members of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
following the publication of the Longer Lives Tool-kit.  It comes to the Board for 
information/discussion.  The report will also be taken to the Health Scrutiny Commission in 
September. We would be grateful for your views and to understand and respond to any further, 
more in-depth, analysis the Board required. 
 
3. MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
 

Public Health England (PHE) has launched a new website, Longer Lives, which illustrates how 
premature mortality (deaths under 75) varies between local authorities in England. Longer Lives 
displays premature mortality from all causes, and also from some of the most common causes: 
cancer, heart disease and stroke, lung disease and liver disease. The statistics show that 
Peterborough has higher rates of premature mortality than the average for England for all causes, 
and specifically for heart disease and stroke, lung disease (mainly chronic obstructive lung 
disease) and liver disease. These causes of death share many common risk factors, such as 
smoking, obesity, poor diet, and high alcohol consumption. The website also shows how local 
authorities rank with regard to levels of socio-economic deprivation.  Due to the high levels of 
publicity given to the launch of this website, and Peterborough’s position against other upper tier 
LAs a report was requested by both the HWB and Health Scrutiny Commission. 
 
The summary attached at Appendix A focuses on mortality and Life Expectancy (LE) data, and 
illustrates a snap shot of this data from 2000 through to 2010, and then trajectories up to 2016.  It 
should be noted that premature mortality is reducing for both males and females, and that LE is 
increasing. 

 
3. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

A further piece of in-depth analysis will be undertaken by Public Health Intelligence as part of the 
overall refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 
 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Appendix A includes all references used to produce this report. 

175



176

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
Longer Lives – An overview for Peterborough.                                  Appendix A 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This national tool-kit was published by Public Health England (PHE) on the 11th June 2013. Both 

the data and report are available here: http://longerlives.phe.org.uk/#are//par/E92000001. The 

report is presentation of mortality rates from the analysis of data on the four most common causes 

of premature deaths in England - heart disease and stroke, lung disease, liver disease, and 

cancer. Variation in the patterns of mortality across the 150 upper tier local authorities for 2009-

2011, is presented. The report also describes the variations in each of the four disease groups, 

and by socio-economic deprivation. 

  

This brief summary examines the pattern for Peterborough; in addition, reports (and data) on 

associated indicators are reviewed in order to present a comprehensive analysis of mortality for 

Peterborough.  

 

SUMMARY 

The key messages on mortality patterns in Peterborough are as follows: 

• Premature mortality from all causes in Peterborough was relatively higher than the national 

average; with Peterborough ranked 87th nationally. Death rates for both sexes in was 293.7 

per 100,000 compared to 267.7/100,000 in England.  At Cluster1  level, Peterborough is 

ranked 6th out of the 15 local authorities; the cluster average was 294.9/100,000. 

 

• The dataset below is a spine chart summary of the position of Peterborough compared to 

other areas at national, and cluster level (and level of significance compared to England). 

 

                                                
1
 Cluster comprises areas of similar socio-economic and deprivation profiles – Enfield, Camden, Sheffield, Torbay, 

Plymouth, Peterborough, Hammersmith and Fulham, Darlington, Brighton and Hove, Leeds, County Durham, Luton, 

Wakefield, Wirral and Wigan. 

177



 2 

Cluster average

England average

England 

Worst

England 

Best

25th                                      75th                                       

Percentile                             Percentile

The chart below shows how Peterborough compares with the rest of England. Peterborough's result for each indicator is shown as a circle. The average 

rate for England is shown by the black line at the centre of the chart. The range of results for all local areas in England is shown as a grey bar. A red circle 

means that Peterborough is significantly worse than England for that indicator; however, a green circle may still indicate an important public health 

PETERBOROUGH KEY DATASET - LONGER LIVES 2013

The 1 and 3 year trend columns show the change in Peterborough's position on the spine.

Significantly worse/higher need than England average

Significantly better/lower need than England average

Not significantly different from England average

No significance can be calculated

Domain Indicator P'Boro Cluster England England Range
1 Year 

Trend

3 Year 

Trend

Time 

Period
Outcome 

Frameworks

5 Early deaths from cancer 

considered preventable (rate per 

100,000 population aged under 75)

106.1 115.5 108.1 no data no data 2009-11 n/a

6 Early deaths from cardiovascular 

diseases considered preventable 

(rate per 100,000 population aged 

77.7 68.2 60.9 no data no data 2009-11 n/a

7 Early deaths from lung diseases 

considered preventable (rate per 

100,000 population aged under 75)

30.2 26.4 23.4 no data no data 2009-11 n/a

8 Early deaths from liver diseases 

considered preventable (rate per 

100,000 population aged under 75)

14.8 17.8 14.4 no data no data 2009-11 n/a

9 Early deaths from all diseases 

considered preventable (rate per 

100,000 population aged under 75)

294 295 268 no data no data 2009-11 n/a

All cause 

mortality

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e

 

• Of the top four conditions, cancer is the most common cause of death in Peterborough, and 

across the country. Comparative figures for all cancer death rates in Peterborough, (ranked 

65th nationally) is 106.1/100,000, which is slightly lower (but not statistically significant) than 

that for England, 108.1/100,000. Within its Cluster2, Peterborough is ranked the third lowest 

within its Cluster, which has an overall average rate of 115 /100,000.  

 

• The next most common cause of death is heart disease and stroke, with death rates for 

Peterborough at 77.7/100,000. Peterborough is however, ranked in the top 25% of 

relatively high death rates nationally (123 out of 150), and ranked the highest in the Cluster.  

 

• Lung disease death rates at 30.2/100,000 ranks Peterborough in the top 25% of highest 

rates nationally (113 out of 149), and 2nd highest in the Cluster.  

 

• Liver disease death rates for Peterborough are 14.8/100,000. At national level, the council 

is ranked 74th (out of 149), and ranked the highest within the Cluster. 

 

• Death rates from liver disease is around 15/100, 000, significantly higher than the national 

rate of 14.2/100,000 but lower than that for the Cluster, 17.8 per 100,000. 

 

 

CONCLUSION 

Peterborough is ranked as one of the more deprived local authorities across England, and the 

snapshot of premature mortality as presented in the Longer Lives report indicates the area has 

one of the poorer health outcomes from the top four causes of death. These messages, in 

                                                
2
 Cluster is areas of similar socio-economic and deprivation profiles – Enfield, Camden, Sheffield, Torbay, Plymouth, 

Peterborough, Hammersmith and Fulham, Darlington, Brighton and Hove, Leeds, County Durham, Luton, Wakefield, 

Wirral and Wigan. 

178



 3 

isolation, are insufficient evidence of the health of the local population, and it would be 

appropriate to review the evidence from the analysis of related data to enable a more complete 

reflection of the current health profile in Peterborough to be presented. Some of the findings 

are indicated as follows: 

 

• Analyses of data over a longer period indicate a declining trend in mortality in 

Peterborough, which is consistent with the pattern observed nationally (although at variable 

rates).  

 

• In the last decade up to 2010, premature mortality in men was down by almost 23% - death 

rates of 488 per 100,000 in 2000 to 376 per 100,000 in 2010. This rate of decline was 

observed to be relatively faster than that for England (21%) and the Cluster (19%) in the 

same period. However, the inequality in mortality (as indicated by the death rates) between 

Peterborough and England persist, with the rates per 100,000 projected to increase from 31 

male deaths in 2010  to 41 male deaths by 2016 suggesting a relatively faster declining 

mortality trend in England compared to Peterborough. This is in contrast to comparisons 

with the Cluster – the difference in mortality rates per 100,000 in 2010 (11 male deaths) is 

projected to get even wider, with 45 more male deaths per 100,000 at Cluster level 

compared to Peterborough by the year 2016. 

Fig 1: Male premature mortality trend in Peterborough, Cluster and England  

Directly standardised rates. 2000-2 to 2008-10. And projections up to 20015-17

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

200

0-2

200

1-3

200

2-4

200

3-5

200

4-6

200

5-7

200

6-8

200

7-9

200

8-10

200

9-11

201

0-12

201

1-13

201

2-14

201

3-15

201

4-16

201

5-17

d
e

a
th

 r
a
te

s 
p

e
r 

1
0

0
, 

0
0

0
 r

e
si

d
e

n
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
7

5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

Peterborough

England

Cluster

 

Source: https://indicators.ic.nhs.uk/webview/ 

 

179



 4 

• The decreasing trend (fig 2) is also mirrored for females; and projections indicate an 

even faster rate of decline nationally (10.5%) than for Peterborough (5%), which 

suggests a wider inequality in the mortality pattern between Peterborough and 

England by 2016.  

 

Fig 2: Female premature mortality trend in Peterborough, Cluster and England  

Directly standardised rates. 2000-2 to 2008-10. And projections up to 20015-17

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2000-

2

2001-

3

2002-

4

2003-

5

2004-

6

2005-

7

2006-

8

2007-

9

2008-

10

2009-

11

2010-

12

2011-

13

2012-

14

2013-

15

2014-

16

2015-

17

d
e

a
th

 r
a

te
s 

p
e

r 
1

0
0

, 
0

0
0

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

7
5

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

Peterborough (Female)

England

Cluster

 
Source: https://indicators.ic.nhs.uk/webview/ 

  

 

• Male life expectancy (LE): a male child born today in Peterborough (fig 3) is expected to 

live an estimated 77.7 years, a 3.5 percent increase from nearly a decade ago. It is 

projected that by the year 2016, these figures will increase by up to a further 3 percent to 

an estimated 79.9 years by 2016.  This will result in a reduced difference in LE between 

Peterborough and England from about 1.2 years now to around 1 year by 2016. 

Corresponding figures at Cluster level for males indicate higher LE rates than for 

Peterborough, at an estimated 78.2 years, with the gap between the Cluster and England 

expected to narrow by about 0.2 years by 2016. 

 

180



 5 

Fig 3    Male life expectancy at birth in Peterborough, Cluster and England. 

Trends and Projections. 2000-2 to 2009-11 (and 5-year projection)

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

200
0-

200
2

200
1-

200
3

200
2-

200
4

200
3-

200
5

200
4-

200
6

200
5-

200
7

200
6-

200
8

200
7-

200
9

200
8-

201
0

200
9-

201
1

201
0-

201
2

201
1-

201
3

201
2-

201
4

201
3-

201
5

201
4-

201
6

201
5-

201
7

li
fe

 e
x

p
e

ct
a

n
cy

 (
y

e
a

rs
)

England

Cluster

Peterborough

 

Source: http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/subnational-health4/life-expectancy-at-birth-and-at-age-65-

by-local-areas-in-england-and-wales/2009-11/stb.html 

 

• Female life expectancy: a female child born today in Peterborough (fig 4) is expected to 

live an estimated 82.6 years, a 3.9 per cent increase in LE from 2000-2, a pattern that has 

remained consistently higher than that for the cluster (and lower than for England. This 

increasing improvement in Peterborough, and indeed as in other parts of the country, is 

projected to continue. As indicated in the chart (fig 4), the trend suggests that from 2014 

onwards, female life expectancy in Peterborough is likely to overtake that for England, 

going up a further 2.5% to an estimated 84.6 years by 2016 compared to 84.3 years and 

83.9 years for England and the Cluster respectively.    

 

181



 6 

Fig 4. Female life expectancy at birth in Peterborough, Cluster,  and England. 

Trends and Projections. 2000-2 to 2009-11 (and 5-year projection)

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

200
0-

200
2

200
1-

200
3

200
2-

200
4

200
3-

200
5

200
4-

200
6

200
5-

200
7

200
6-

200
8

200
7-

200
9

200
8-

201
0

200
9-

201
1

201
0-

201
2

201
1-

201
3

201
2-

201
4

201
3-

201
5

201
4-

201
6

201
5-

201
7

li
fe

 e
x

p
e

ct
a

n
cy

 (
y

e
a

rs
)

England

Cluster

Peterborough

 

Source: http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/subnational-health4/life-expectancy-at-birth-and-at-age-65-

by-local-areas-in-england-and-wales/2009-11/stb.html 

The message on Peterborough’s health as suggested from the Longer Lives publication would 

need to be associated with other sources of information so as to provide a complete picture of 

health in Peterborough. Further work will be undertaken and presented as part of the JSNA 

refresh. 

Author: Remi Omotoye 
Senior Public Health Analyst 
 
30 August 2013 

182



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 11 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Tel.  

 

JOINT COMMISSIONING – CHILD HEALTH UPDATE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Assistant Director 
Strategy, Commissioning & Prevention 

Deadline date :  

 
The Board is asked to note the report on the recommendations for the future arrangements for Child 
Health Commissioning. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following a previous report recommending the 
development of a Joint Health and Local Authority Child Health Commissioning Unit.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to keep the Board appraised of the progress in moving 
towards gaining agreement for a Peterborough Joint Health and Local Authority Child 
Health Commissioning Unit. 

 
3. MAIN BODY OF REPORT 
 
3.1       The attached report was presented to the Peterborough and Cambridgeshire Clinical 

Management Executive Team and the Peterborough and Borderline Commissioning Forum. 
The bodies agreed that a draft Section 75 agreement should be developed to then be 
considered by the appropriate governance forums within the Local Authority and Clinical 
Commissioning Group.  

 
4.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES  
 
4.1 It is anticipated that a draft Section 75 report will be completed by the end of September. 

2013. 
 

183



184

This page is intentionally left blank



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5 
 Page 1 

 

 

 
 
MEETING:  CLIINCAL AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE TEAM 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 6.5 

 
DATE:  31 JULY 2013 
 
TITLE:  BORDERLINE AND PETERBOROUGH LCG’S FUTURE OF  

 CHILDREN’S COMMISSIONING AND SERVICES 
 
FROM:  CATHY MITCHELL 
   LOCAL CHIEF OFFICER 
 
FOR:   APPROVAL 
 
1 ISSUE 
 

1.1 Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough City Council commissioned a 
Children’s Health Services Review in early 2013 to offer an analysis on the current 
budget spend, presenting pressures and performance and quality of these services. 
Evidencefrom the Reviewclearly showsthe need to harness the commissioning work 
of the CCG in respect of child health and wellbeing, to increase the critical mass 
and economies of scale of children’s commissioning, reduce duplication of work, 
manage high risk areas and improve performance, quality and capacity. 

 

 Establishing a team in each Local Authority and oversight from the CCG with a 
strong understanding of the strategic commissioning and procurement frameworks 
for children will enable resources to be balanced more efficiently whilst building 
sustainable local expertise to maximize benefits and value for money.   

 
1.2 The CCG have given notice to CPFT on the Children’s Services Contract which 

ends on the 31 March 2014.  The CCG is not in a position to be able to procure the 
Children’s Services within this time period and therefore agreement is required to 
approach CPFT to extend their contract for up to 12 months.  The Borderline and 
Peterborough LCGs would want CPFT to agree to an improvement plan with 
timescales in order to be assured that current concerns are being addressed during 
the contract extension. 

 

Vision 
 
The vision is to establish a Joint Commissioning Unit (JCU) in each Local Authority, (in 
respect of Peterborough and Borderline LCGs there will be consideration of arrangements 
with Northants and Cambridgeshire County Councils., The aim would be to improve the 
delivery, quality and experience of services for children, young people and their families. 

185



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5
 Page 2 

This includes improved health outcomes, keeping children and young people safe, treating 
them with respect and responding to their needs by having them and their families at the 
centre of service design and delivery. 
 
The vision will be achieved through a shared commissioning function which will enable the 
Clinical Commissioning Group and the two Local Authorities to commission integrated 
pathways and services from Providers working withchildren, young people and their 
families. By developing and delivering integrated services we will strengthen our 
commissioning based on comprehensive analysis of need, leading to a whole system 
approach to planning and investment, alignment of commissioning cycles and intentions 
with  effective use of resources. This will mean that we can redesign pathways,early 
intervention solutions, increase efficiencies and prevent duplication.   There will be one 
‘virtual’ JCU across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough with a JCU in place in each Local 
Authority in partnership with the localLCG’s. 
 
The model of JCUs has the flexibility to encompass other commissioners as part of the 
membership and would want to engage NHS England throughthe Area Teams to achieve 
a fully integrated approach to commissioning for children and young people. 
 
The Borderline and Peterborough LCG’s would want to takesk the Joint Commissioning 
Unit to carry out needs analysis and make proposals for future commissioning options and 
produce a service specification prior to any formal procurement. 
 

2 STRATEGIC AIM / CCG ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK / /EQUALITY AND 
DIVERSITY GOALS AND BOARD ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK LINK 

 
 The paperis linked to Strategic Aims 1 (Quality & Patient Safety) and 3 (Change 

Management and Transformation.  It also links to the  following risks on the CCG 
Governing Body Assurance Framework and Risk Register:  QPS 1  – Failure to 
Safeguard Children and QPS 3 – Risk of potential poor quality services from 
providers which the CCG Commissions 
 
The paper also links to EDS Goal 3 – Improved patient access and experience and 
EDS Goal 4 – Inclusive leadership at all levels. 

 
3 INVOLVEMENT AND VIEWS OF APPROPRIATE LCGS 
 

 The Borderline and Peterborough LCG’s support the development of a Joint 
Commissioning Unit with the Peterborough City Council Children’s services which is 
formalised with a section 75 agreement which outlines the Commissioning 
Functions that have been delegated and has a robust governance arrangement to 
monitor the work streams using the local Boards . 

 
The LCG Boards support the extension of the CPFT contract for up to 12 months 
but wish to task the Joint Commissioning Unit to develop a integrated Service 
Specification as part of preparation prior to procurement which would require 
approval  to be gained at LCG’s and CCG level .   

 

4 KEY POINTS 
 

 The JCU will commission services to improve the experience and outcomes for 
children, young people, family/carer at every possible opportunity by improving provider 

186



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5
 Page 3 

performance.  Commissioning is the key lever to ensure children and young people 
receive quality services and care. The JCU will be expected to commission services 
which deliver and empower children & young people. 

 The JCU will identify where there are opportunities to minimise bureaucracy and 
maximise value for money, within the financial resources available from the CCG and 
The Council’s Children’s Services. 

 The governance structure of the JCU must not add to bureaucratic procedure; the 
design will ensure the JCU management structure is lean and the governance is robust 
and will be clearly laid out a section 75 which delegates the commissioning function 
only to the Council.  

 A delivery vehicle that serves the CCG and Council Children’s Services as equal 
customers and can expand to encompass the Area Team.  The joint arrangement is a 
commissioning delivery vehicle and does not challenge the statutory basis of the CCG 
and Councils Children’s Services remain accountable through the section 75 
forcommissioning. The JCU will undertake commissioning functions to deliver the 
CCG/LCG’s and Council’s children’s Services strategic outcomes. In this role, the JCU 
will serve its partners equally and be responsive to their respective needs. 

 The JCU will incorporate the LCG’s Children’s Clinical Lead into the model and, recruit 
additional resource or buy in external support, as necessary.   To achieve effective 
commissioning, the CCG and Councils Children’s Services are committed to 
harnessing plus enhancing their joint capabilities and expertise within the JCU by 
developing expertise as required, to deliver its objectives.  

 
5 RECOMMENDATION 
 
 The Clinical and Management Executive Team is asked to:- 
 

 CMET are asked to endorse the creation of a joint commissioning unit between 
Peterborough City Council and the CCG for children and Young People’s services 
underpinned by a section 75 agreement that delegates the CCG commissioning 
function only to Peterborough City Council. 
 

 CMET are asked to endorse the extension of the Children’s Contract held by CPFT 
for up to a maximum of 12 months to enable the CCG and Council to develop a 
service specification in preparation for a future procurement of Children’s services. 

 
6 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Borderline and Peterborough LCGs and the Peterborough City Council wish to 
establish a Joint Commissioning Unit (JCU) which will provide an integrated 
commissioning function for Children and Young People’s services with clearly 
defined parameters and governance laid out in a section 75, whereby the CCG 
delegates it’s commissioning function to PCC. Note this arrangement excludes 
pooling budgets.  
 
The aim is to design and specify integrated services and pathways which can form 
the basis of future procurement of a range of children’s services with the exclusion 
of acute paediatric services. 

 
 

187



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5 
 Page 4 

7 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 The Provision of Children’s Health Service in Peterborough 
 

Current children’s health services are being provided by Cambridge and 
Peterborough Foundation Trust (CPFT) to the Peterborough population. During all 
recent formal and informal consultations with the LCG’s and commissioning 
colleagues within the Peterborough City Council, high levels of concern and 
dissatisfaction with the waiting times and patient experiences have been expressed 
with the provider who was awarded the three year contract after an open tender 
exercise in 2010/11. Recent changes in senior management seem to have 
prompted a change in attitude and a promised improvement in levels of 
transparency from the provider. Data quality has improved and action plans to 
address such issues as the ADHD Assessment waiting list, have been developed 
and are already being applied. 

 
Accepting that it may take some time and effort to restore a level of trust and 
confidence in the organisation, this may be achieved by the following: 
a) an in depth analysis of service delivery and satisfaction amongst patients and 

carers,  
b) careful scrutiny and clarification of reported data 
c) Face to face meetings between commissioners and providers outside of the 

normal contract performance meetings 
d) A clear steer on the improvements required and by which date 

 
There is currently no obvious provider who would be able to deliver services when 
the current contract expires so it is essential that a decision as to the immediate 
future provision of services is reached quickly. 

 
Notice was given to the provider and their contract comes to an end on 31st March 
2014. This, of course, can be relatively easily extended and CPFT have already 
indicated their willingness to do this in order to fit with the timetable of any 
procurement exercise.  

 
Short Term Options 
Extend or issue new contract with CPFT for up to a year 
 
Long Term Options 
Include services in full CCG wide procurement exercise at the end of the Contract 
Extension period or part of Peterborough/Borderline option 
 
The Borderline and Peterborough LCGs wish to extend the contract with CPFT for 
up to 12 months whilst holding the Provider to a robust improvement plan with 
timeframes to mitigate against the concerns and risks.  Plus would support CPFT to 
be required to work with Senior Managers in CCS Children’s Services during that 
same period. 
 
During this extension period we would task the new Joint Commissioning Unit to 
draw up an integrated children’s service specification which would feed into the 
procurement and consider other contracts outside of the CPFT contract that could 
be redesigned to deliver improved outcomes across CCG and PCC.  The evaluation 

188



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5
 Page 5 

of this approach to joint commissioning could then be feedback into the CCG to 
consider the CCG wide approach to joint commissioning of children’s services. 

 
8 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 Financial 

 The CCG and PCC remain responsible for their own budgets for the delivery of 
services in the model. Either party could enter into a section 256 whereby an 
agreed sum of money is transferred to the respective organisation to commission a 
jointly procured service for the life and cost of the contract. Current examples of this 
arrangement exists between Cambridge County Council and the CCG for children’s 
respite services 

 The CCG and PCC would need to consider the respective contributions to JCU in 
their resources and/or finances to deliver the commissioning functions which would 
be contained in the section 75. 

 
Performance 

 The JCU would aim to improve Provider performance and undertake to report 
through to the LCG/CCG on performance and outcomes as set down in the section 
75. 

 
Governance 

 The CCG would require clear and robust governance to be laid out in the section 75 
reporting to the LCG/CCG and stating the necessary approvals and signoff 
processes required by the CCG prior to publishing strategies, commissioning plans 
or going out to tender. 

 
 Equality and Diversity 

 The CCG will expect PCC to adhere to all relevant legislation and local policies that 
the CCG has to ensure are in place to deliver it’s statutory duties. 

 
 Legal 

 The CCG will need to seek legal advice on the content of the section 75 and any 
future changes to services which the JCU are proposing to redesign as and when 
required. 

 
 Patient Experience 

 The CCG/LCGs will expect the JCU to ensure that children, young people and their 
families are part of the commission and contract monitoring process to deliver 
improved patient experience and outcomes. 

 
9 CONCLUSION 
 
 The Borderline and Peterborough LCG’s propose to develop a Joint Commissioning 

Unit with Peterborough City Council for Children and Young People’s services 
which is governed through a Section 75 for the delegated Commissioning Function 
only. 

 
The LCG’s will task the Joint Commissioning Unit to review the local needs and 
propose future commissioning options for Children’s services leading to the 
development of an integrated service specification . 

189



Meeting 31 July 2013 
Attachment 6.5 
 Page 6 

 
The learning from this model can then be feedback into the CCG Children’s 
Strategic Board to inform future ways of working and commissioning services.  

 
 
 
Author  Cathy Mitchell 
   Local Chief Officer 
   25/7/13 
 

 

190



                      
 

20 July 2013 
 
Dear Lead Member for Children’s Services and Chair of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, 
 
Improving health outcomes for children and young people: Delivering 
and commissioning children and young people’s public health services 
and invitation to sign the pledge 
 
You will be as shocked as we are that childhood mortality in this country is 
among the worst in Europe. You will also want to know how poor many 
outcomes are for children and young people with long-term physical and 
mental conditions as well as those who are acutely sick. April 2013 marked 
the transfer of public health from the NHS to local authorities. Local authorities 
are now responsible for delivering and commissioning a range of children and 
young people’s public health services for five to 19-year-olds, with 
responsibility for children under five following from 2015. This puts local 
authorities and health and wellbeing boards in a prime position to tackle the 
poor health outcomes experienced by children and young people. 
 
We are writing jointly to you to share the resources available to assist councils 
with this increased responsibility and to invite you to sign up to the “Better 
health outcomes for children and young people pledge”. The pledge is a part 
of the February 2013 system wide response to the Children and Young 
People’s Health Outcomes Forum Report (2012). 
 
Health and wellbeing boards are a crucial part of the new health landscape. 
Each board will want to ensure there is a proper focus on children within its 
priorities, that it has a thorough assessment of their needs through the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment, as well as from engagement with children and 
young people themselves. With a well-informed Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, services can be commissioned that will give children the best start in 
life. The resources outlined in Appendix A will help you to make this a reality.  
 
We hope that signing up to the pledge will demonstrate a commitment to 
giving children the best start in life. We also hope it will start local 
conversations about how health and wellbeing boards, local authorities, health 
and wider partners can work together to improve health outcomes for children 
and young people, and tackle the unacceptable variation in the quality of care 
for children and young people across the country and reduce health 
inequalities. The Local Government Association (LGA), the Royal Colleges, 
the Department of Health and Public Health England are proud signatories of 
the pledge. We encourage you to work with partners and to engage with local 
children and young people to adapt the pledge to reflect local needs. A copy 
of the pledge is available at Appendix B. 
 
Lead Members for Children’s Services play a key role in these conversations 
and in ensuring that the health needs and wellbeing of all children and young 
people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families 

191



                      
 
and carers, are addressed. Lead Members will want to ensure they are 
working closely with their health and wellbeing boards in doing this. 
  
We recognise that many local authorities are already doing important work to 
prioritise children’s health outcomes through integration and partnership 
working. If all local areas were as good as the best, together we could 
improve children and young people’s quality of life now, and their ability to live 
fulfilling lives as they move through childhood. We are inviting local 
authorities, health and wellbeing boards, health, schools and wider partners to 
share examples of good practice so that learning can be promoted nationally. 
If you would like to share what your local authority is doing or planning to do 
to improve health outcomes for children and young people email a short 
description to Samantha.Ramanah@local.gov.uk. All examples will be 
published on the LGA’s website and Knowledge Hub for the National Learning 
Network for Health and Wellbeing Boards to share learning. 
 
Not all change is an improvement, but there is no improvement without 
change. We ask you to make a commitment to using the information and 
resources attached to challenge the status quo and to signing the pledge. 
Bold and brave decisions will be needed if we are to give children, young 
people and families the services they deserve. 
 

 
Dan Poulter MP,  
Parliamentary Under Secretary of 
State for Health, 
Department of Health  

 
Cllr David Simmonds,  
Chair of the Children and Young 
People Board, 
Local Government Association 

 

Christine Lenehan, Director, Council 
for Disabled Children and Co-Chair of 
the Children and Young People’s 
Health Outcomes Forum 
 

 
Professor Ian Lewis, Medical Director, 
Alder Hey Children’s NHS Foundation 
Trust and Co-Chair of the Children 
and Young People’s Health 
Outcomes Forum 

 
Dr Hilary Cass,  
President,  
Royal College of Paediatrics and 
Child Health 

 
Duncan Selbie 
Chief Executive 
Public Health England 
 

192



                      
 
Appendix A – Further resources 
 
 
The Pledge can be accessed at: 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-pledge-to-improve-children-s-
health-and-reduce-child-deaths 
 
Knowledge Hub for the National Learning Network for Health and Wellbeing 
Boards (HWBs) 
The Knowledge Hub for HWBs is a free online platform, it shares information, 
resources, ideas and learning on Health and Wellbeing Boards. Members can 
ask for help from other members and participate in live question and answer 
sessions. 
Join here: 
https://knowledgehub.local.gov.uk/group/nationallearningnetworkforhealthand
wellbeingboards  
Email Samantha.Ramanah@local.gov.uk for help or further information  
 
LGA dedicated children’s health webpage 
The LGA works with local authorities, including lead members for children's 
services to deliver better health and wellbeing outcomes for children and 
young people. Access the full range of support tools and latest information on 
children's health issues including safeguarding in the reformed NHS system, 
Health and Wellbeing Boards, local Healthwatch and public health issues. 
www.local.gov.uk/childrens-health  
 
The LGA has a dedicated webpage on health with tools and resources on 
public health, Healthwatch and health and wellbeing boards. 
www.local.gov.uk/health  
 
Child Protection Information Sharing project 
The Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum welcomed the 
Department of Health’s child protection – information sharing project, which 
Dan Poulter MP announced in December 2012. This will enhance national IT 
systems in emergency departments and other unscheduled health care 
settings to include information, fed securely from local authority systems, on 
the child protection status of individual children.   
 
Local authorities are encouraged to express interest in the project now and to 
be ready to come on stream when it starts to roll out next year. More 
information can be found at:  
www.gov.uk/government/news/child-protection-information-sharing-project 
 
Child Health Profiles 
Child Health Profiles provide a snapshot of child health and well-being for 
each local authority in England using key health indicators, which enable 
comparison locally, regionally and nationally. By using the profiles local 
organisations can work in partnership to plan and commission evidence-
based services based on local need. The profiles allow local authorities to 

193



                      
 
compare the outcomes in their local population with others in order to identify 
and share best practice. Find your local profile at: www.chimat.org.uk/profiles 
 
Atlas of Variation in Healthcare for Children and Young People 
The Atlas of Variation provides information to allow clinicians, commissioners 
and service users to identify priority areas for improving outcome, quality and 
productivity.  
 
Variations in healthcare exist for many legitimate reasons. Populations and 
individuals have distinct needs, and some of the variation observed is a 
reflection of the responsiveness of the service to meeting particular needs. 
However, the degree of variation demonstrated in the Child Health Atlas 
cannot be explained solely on that basis. Identifying and tackling variations in 
healthcare will improve both the quality and efficiency of the care provided, 
and deliver the best possible health outcomes for all children and young 
people. 
www.rightcare.nhs.uk/index.php/atlas/children-and-young-adults 
 
Establishing Local Healthwatch: Engaging with Children and Young People 
Local Healthwatch’s duties extend to involving children and young people in 
their work. It includes the need to develop strategies for effectively involving 
children and young people, and particularly those who are most 
disadvantaged. This is covered in one of a series of briefings produced by the 
Local Government Association to assist local authorities and their partners in 
local communities and the NHS to support the commissioning, setting up and 
early development of local Healthwatch. http://tinyurl.com/kxartmk 
 
Factsheets for School Governors and Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Children, Young People and Families   
The Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum has published a 
range of factsheets. Local authorities may find the factsheets for school 
governors and health and wellbeing boards and children, young people and 
families of particular interest. 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-experts-set-out-
recommendations-to-improve-children-and-young-people-s-health-results 
 
Factsheet on School Nursing 
In addition the Department of Health has published a school nurse factsheet 
for head teachers and governors. The factsheet sets out details of the model 
and vision for school nursing which will positively impact on standards in all 
schools and improve health and wellbeing of school aged children and young 
people. http://tinyurl.com/kwpqvo2 
 
  

194



                      
 
Briefing on School Health Service 
The Department of Health and Local Government Association have produced 
a briefing for Lead Members for Children’s Services (LCMS) providing an 
overview of the School Health Service and sharing top tips to help LCMS think 
about how they can use the School Health services to deliver better health 
outcomes for 5-19 year olds.  
www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-health-service-briefing-for-local-
council-members 
 
From transition to transformation in public health 
The LGA and Department of Health has produced a set of online resource 
sheets. The purpose of this resource is to assist local authorities and public 
health to develop a local public health system that is designed to have the 
greatest potential for improving health, not just in councils but with all local 
partners. The focus is on transformation, showing how councils and public 
health are going beyond the practical steps of transition to develop a local 
vision public health, supported by new models for implementation.  
http://tinyurl.com/kdk5w9t 
 
National Child Measurement Programme: Briefing for elected members 
These frequently asked questions for elected members have been jointly 
produced by the Local Government Association and Public Health England. 
They address a number of transitional issues relating to the transfer of 
responsibility for delivering the National Child Measurement Programme, 
which moved from PCTs to local government in April 2013. 
http://tinyurl.com/n5etuj8 
 
'Must Knows' for lead members for children's services 
The ‘Must knows' are a long-standing source of information and support for 
lead members for children's services (LMCS). The suite of information has 
been comprehensively revised for 2013 and focuses on the key issues facing 
lead members for children's services and the current and planned reforms 
impacting on children's services. 
http://tinyurl.com/n3pdwt3 
 
Teenage pregnancy resources for elected members and officers 
The LGA has launched a number of resources on teenage pregnancy to help 
local authorities understand and address the key issues. The resources 
include: Relationships and sex education: a briefing for councillors and a 
briefing on local government’s role in tackling teenage pregnancy. 
http://tinyurl.com/l5ekp56 
 
The council's role in tackling public health issues – resources for local 
authorities 
The LGA has launched a number of resources on key public health issues 
including obesity, mental health, drugs and alcohol. 
http://tinyurl.com/cod86q6 
 
  

195



                      
 
The 2012 report of the Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-experts-set-out-
recommendations-to-improve-children-and-young-people-s-health-results  
 
The system wide response to the Forum’s Report 
http://tinyurl.com/msaupsh 
 

Statutory guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategies 
http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/jsnas-jhwss-guidance-published/ 
 
Safeguarding children in the reformed NHS system 
The Department for Education has published revised statutory guidance 
'Working together to safeguard children' (2013)  
http://tinyurl.com/brwtm77 
 
NHS England has published an updated accountability and assurance 
framework for safeguarding vulnerable children and young people which sets 
out the responsibilities of each of the key players for safeguarding in the new 
NHS system. http://tinyurl.com/c57dca4  
 
A guide for new councillors 2013/14 
This Councillors’ Guide, produced by the Local Government Association is 
designed to provide new councillors with all the information they need to 
know. It explores some of the key issues and challenges facing local 
government today and includes useful hints and tips from experienced 
councillors. 
http://tinyurl.com/l95trlg 
 
National Health Visitor Plan: progress to date and implementation 2013 
onwards 
The ‘National Health Visitor Plan’ is a joint DH, NHS England, Public Health 
England and Health Education England document. It sets out how these 
partner organisations will work with the health profession, families, local 
authorities and communities to achieve the government’s health visiting 
commitment to increase the workforce by 4,200, transform the service by April 
2015 and support its sustainability beyond 2015. 
 
In 2011 the ‘Health Visitor Implementation Plan 2011-15’ set out action to 
revitalise the health visiting service, to help an expanded workforce to provide 
a new health visitor service model. We are now at the half-way point of a 4 
year programme of recruitment and retention, professional development and 
improved commissioning linked to public health improvement.  
 
‘The National Health Visitor Plan: progress to date and implementation 2013’ 
celebrates the successes of the programme so far and sets out how partner 
organisations within the new health landscape will work with the profession, 
families and communities in delivering the national commitment up to and 
beyond 2015. www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-visitor-vision 

196



Better health outcomes 
for children and young people



England

197



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

2

}      
      

     
~(Marmot)

              
            
             

                 
     

          
            

             
             

            
              

           
       

            
             

             
               

         

We are committed to improving the health outcomes of our 

children and young people so that they become amongst the best 
in the world. 

               
                
       

198



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

3

Our shared ambitions are that:

We all have a part to play in promoting the importance of the health of our children 

and young people.

Through our joint commitment and efforts we are determined to:

reduce child deaths          
    

prevent ill health for children and young people and improve their opportunities for 

better long-term health           
            

improve the mental health of our children and young people    
           

 

support and protect the most vulnerable        
           outcomes

provide better care for children and young people with long term conditions and 

disability         

             
         1

           
             

      
2

           
            

     
3

            
            
        

4

           
         5

199



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

4

Because

the all-cause mortality rate for children aged 0 – 14 years has moved from the average 

to amongst the worst in Europe1

26% of children’s deaths showed ‘identifiable failure in the child’s direct care’2

more than 8 out of 10 adults who have ever smoked regularly started before 193

more than 30% of 2 to 15 year olds are overweight or obese4

half of life time mental illness starts by the age of 145

nearly half of looked after children have a mental health disorder and two thirds have 

at least one physical health complaint6

about 75% of hospital admissions of children with asthma could have been prevented in 

primary care7

Building momentum

    Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Board    
              

            

 Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum    
              

              
       

           
   http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2012/07/cyp-report/

For the very first time, everyone across the health and care system is determined to play 

their part in improving health outcomes for children and young people.

1                 
        

2  
3               
4    
5               

            
 

6          
7        

200



DRAFT: Working together to deliver integrated health and social care in the East of England 

 

Outline  

A full-day event in the region for up to 60 delegates by Personal Invitation. 

 

The event will aim to will help local government and NHS colleagues think through what arrangements – locally and 

regionally - are needed to support am integrated approach to health and social care and address the collective 

challenges and opportunities arising from the NHS reforms. 

 

There will be opportunities to learn about what is happening locally across the East of England to implement 

integrated health and social care, but also to contribute to the priorities and design of a collaborative approach to 

improvement across Managed Clinical Networks, local government regional improvement networks and Public 

Health England within the east of England. 

 

The event will be facilitated by Richard Humphries from the Kings Fund. 

 

Objectives for the event are to bring together partners from across the system to: 

• To identify the big challenges for the East of England arising from national developments (organisational 

change, austerity and demography) 

• To better understand the agendas facing social care, public health and CCG leaders 

• To showcase examples of innovation/transformation across the East of England 

• To debate options for how organisations and disciplines work together across the East of England in the 

context of the national architecture and what new regional/ sub-regional arrangements are needed. 

 

Audience 

• Health and Wellbeing Board Chairs 

• County and Unitary Authority chief 

Executives 

• CCG Chairs and Chief Operating Officers 

• Directors of Adult Social Services  

• Directors of Children’s Services 

• Directors of Public Health  

• NHS Commissioning Board Area Team Directors 

• Public Health England senior team 

• Key partner and stakeholder organisations  

• Representatives of national policy support 

teams eg LGA/DH 

 

Timing 

Early December 2013, 10.30am – 3.30pm (arrival and refreshments from 9.15 am) 

 

Venue 

Tbc, Cambridge.   

 

Suggested agenda 

 

9.30 Registration 

10.00 Welcome & introduction to day  

Richard Humphries – Kings Fund 

 

10.05 The national picture  

Summary of new national structures, financial challenge, demography & social change - the big 

challenges facing health and local government over next decade. ( Richard Humphries/ national 

leads ) 

 

10.20 What’s it like for you? 

Panel discussion - perspectives on the integration agenda and expectations for today’s event: 

 

What is on the top of your in tray in relation to health and social care? 

How can we create better arrangements across NHS and LG to improve Health and Wellbeing in the 

East of England - what would you hope to get out of today? 

201



 

Panel discussion with HWB Chair, CEX, DASS, DPH and CCG Lead describe the top issues for them & 

what they want to get out of today (5 minutes each) 

 

10.45 Health and social care integration 'pioneers' 

Feedback on the National Health and social care integration ‘Pioneers’ programme and short 

presentations from the East of England Pioneers. 

 

11.30 Refreshments 

11.45 Building relationships and changing behaviours - examples of innovation & transformation 

10 minute inputs from three examples of integration in the East of England, followed by a table 

discussion. 

 

What have you done to build relationships and change behaviours? 

What achievements have these changes lead to? 

What lessons have you learnt that you share with others? 

What is your top tip going forward? 

 

Short Q & A with feedback from table discussions - facilitated by Richard Humphries to focus on 

top tips 

 

12.55 Lunch and Refreshments 

1.35 Making it work in the East of England – practical session  

Building the map :10 minute inputs from NHS England, CCGs, Clinical Senates, Local Government 

(DASSs, DPHs etc) which review how existing regional structures are supporting sector-led 

improvement, what can be learnt from these arrangements; the implications of new national 

structures (e.g. Senates, Health and Wellbeing Boards) for the East of England; and options for how 

local organisations, sectors and professional disciplines work together on improvement across the 

region. 

 

2.15 Table discussions of options  

What do we need to do locally, sub regionally and across East of England? What needs to be joined 

up and how can we achieve it? 

 

2.45 Feedback from table discussion 

3.15 Action Planning & next steps 

Summary of key points arising from day 

1. Agree how this work will be taken forward and by whom? 

2. Agree to share practical information that can be shared to facilitate good working relationships 

3. Agree to come together again in the autumn to review progress 

 

3.45 Close 

Richard Humphries to facilitate collate outputs from table discussions and produce report.  

 

202



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
1
2
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 W

E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 B
O
A
R
D
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

2
P
M
 

IT
E
M
 

C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

 
 

 

1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 I
s
s
u
e
s
: 

C
C
G
/L
C
G
 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 W

a
tc
h
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
) 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll
 B
e
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

B
o
a
rd
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

      W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 
 

 

2
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 I
n
te
n
ti
o
n
s
: 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

C
C
G
/L
C
G
 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll
 B
e
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

B
o
a
rd
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

    W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

203



204

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4(a) Hydrotherapy in delivering outcomes from the HWB Board™s Strategy 2012-15
	4a. St George's Hydrotherapy Pool User Evaluation Report 2013

	6(a) Local Area Team (LAT) agreement s256 transfer
	6a. Section 256

	7(a) Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
	8(a) Winterbourn View Report
	8. Winterbourne View Stocktake Appendix 2

	8(b) Learning Disabilities
	8b. LD Annual Report
	8b. CCG_Charter_0

	9(a) Peer Challenge
	9a. Peer challenge manual

	9(b) Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Delivery Plan
	9b. Health and Wellbeing Board Deliver Plan August 2013

	10 Public Health England's Longer Life Toolkit
	10. app a The Longer Lives summary (3)

	11 Joint Commissioning - Child Health Update
	11. Future of Children's Commissioning

	12 Child Health Outcomes
	12. Appendix B - Better health outcomes for children young people pledge

	13 Health and Wellbeing Board Event
	14 Schedule of Future Meetings and Draft Agenda Programme

